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The Carter Center, in partnership with Emory
University, is guided by a fundamental commitment to
human rights and the alleviation of human suffering; it
seeks to prevent and resolve conflicts, enhance freedom
and democracy, and improve health. 

While the program agenda may change, The Carter
Center is guided by five principles:

• The Center emphasizes action and results. Based on
careful research and analysis, it is prepared to take
timely action on important and pressing issues.

• The Center does not duplicate the effective efforts 
of others.

• The Center addresses difficult problems and recognizes
the possibility of failure as an acceptable risk.

• The Center is nonpartisan and acts as a neutral in 
dispute resolution activities.

• The Center believes that people can improve 
their lives when provided with the necessary skills,
knowledge, and access to resources.

The Carter Center collaborates with other organizations,
public or private, in carrying out its mission.
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Overview 

The Carter Center was founded in 1982 by former 
U.S. President Jimmy Carter and his wife,

Rosalynn, in partnership with Emory University, to
advance peace and health worldwide. A nongovern-
mental organization, the Center has helped to improve
life for people in more than 65 countries by resolving
conflicts; advancing democracy, human rights, and eco-
nomic opportunity; preventing diseases; improving
mental health care; and teaching farmers to increase
crop production.

Accomplishments 

The Center has observed 62 elections in 25 
countries; helped farmers double or triple grain

production in 15 African countries; worked to prevent
and resolve civil and international conflicts worldwide;
intervened to prevent unnecessary diseases in Latin
America and Africa; and strived to diminish the 
stigma against mental illnesses.

Budget 
$46.8 million 2004-2005 operating budget.

Donations 

The Center is a 501(c)(3) charitable organization,
financed by private donations from individuals, 

foundations, corporations, and international development
assistance agencies. Contributions by U.S. citizens and
companies are tax-deductible as allowed by law.

Facilities 

The nondenominational Cecil B. Day Chapel and
other facilities are available for weddings, corporate

retreats and meetings, and other special events. For 
information, (404) 420-5112.

Location 

In a 35-acre park, about 1.5 miles east of downtown
Atlanta. The Jimmy Carter Library and Museum, 

which adjoins the Center, is owned and operated by 
the National Archives and Records Administration 
and is open to the public. (404) 865-7101.

Staff 
150 employees, based primarily in Atlanta.

The Carter Center at a Glance

The Carter Center has helped to improve the quality of life for people around the world.

AFRICA ASIA EUROPE NORTH
AMERICA
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President Jimmy Carter
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t The Carter Center, we bring hope to people in more than 65 countries
across the globe. Whether educating Liberians about voting during the
first presidential election since 1997 or distributing an antibiotic to 
prevent blindness in Mexican villagers, the Center builds brighter futures

for people often forgotten by the rest of the world. 
On a recent trip to Africa, we saw Ethiopians who were empowered to better

their own lives by building thousands of latrines in some of the most impoverished
and isolated communities in their country due to a comprehensive education 
campaign by The Carter Center. The latrines improve community sanitation and
help stop the spread of trachoma, a devastating infection that can cause blindness. 

Millions of people who suffered from Guinea worm disease have reason to hope
as the Center enters the final stages of disease eradication. The number of cases has
been reduced by more than 99.5 percent since the program began, from 3.5 million
cases in 1986 to fewer than 12,000 cases in 2005.

And there is hope and renewal today in countries torn apart by civil war and
political violence, such as Liberia, the Palestinian state, Ethiopia, and Mozambique,
where The Carter Center recently observed elections to promote democracy and
build a strong foundation for peace. 

As a leading expert on election monitoring, The Carter Center, in partnership
with the United Nations and other nongovernmental organizations, spearheaded
an international movement to establish election observation protocol and 
standards to create more accurate and universal evaluation criteria. 

In addition, the Center continues to work to strengthen democracy by 
promoting government transparency and campaign finance reform in Latin
American countries. 

We dare to dream the impossible and make it a reality. Peace where there 
was none before, human rights protected where they were abused, and diseases
eradicated where they were once rampant. 

We are changing lives for a more hopeful future, and we are doing it with 
your help and support. 

John Hardman John Moores
Executive Director Chairman

A

From the Executive Director and the Chairman
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Above: Carter Center Executive
Director John Hardman confers
with former Benin President
Nicéphore Soglo at a polling 
site in Mozambique. The Carter
Center monitored the country’s
presidential and legislative 
elections in December 2004.

Right: John Moores greets two
Ethiopian children who have 
just shown him their household
latrine. Moores, named chairman
of the Carter Center Board of
Trustees in 2005, joined Emory
University President Jim Wagner,
President Carter, and other
Center officials for a trip to 
Mali, Nigeria, and Ethiopia in
September 2005. 
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Looking across the many rows of
wood-and-mud shacks that house
more than 12,000 people in a

camp for displaced persons in Margibi
County, Liberia, Jacob Lablah knows 
he still has work to do. The scene inside
the camp varies little from day to day.
Women sit patiently next to stands sell-

ing combs, seasonings, and rice while
children carry toys made from tin cans
and old plastic bottles, their shirts in
tatters and hanging off their shoulders.
Men play checkers on a splintered
wooden board for hours. People here
have no jobs, no means to improve
their lives, and no real place to 
call home.

Jacob Lablah | Liberia

F C S O EofA E H P
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This displaced
persons camp
outside Kakata,
Liberia, is one of
the places where
Jacob Lablah 
registers people
to vote. 



Once a schoolteacher, Jacob Lablah (above) now teaches civics to his fellow Liberians, including
students at St. Christopher Catholic High School (right). 

Hundreds of thousands of Liberians live in
similar camps across the country, and it is in 
conditions like this that Lablah works to register
voters and conduct civic education in prepara-
tion for Liberia’s first national election since
1997. He was once a physics and math teacher
but now has devoted himself entirely to teaching
civics to his fellow Liberians. He founded a grass-
roots organization called Promoting Activities
for Development and Sustenance (PADS),
which is assisted by The Carter Center. He 
and his small staff educate voters in Margibi
County’s camps, in high schools, and across 
the region’s villages and towns.

The process has been difficult at times. 
Many Liberians were skeptical that their votes
mattered or that an election would bring change.
Their primary concern was getting food for 
their families, said Lablah, not learning about
government. But Lablah has helped them realize
that the democratic process is the means for
improving the quality of life in Liberia.

Lablah’s work involves not only instructing

voters about how to correctly fill out a ballot 
but also teaching residents the legal framework
guiding elections and their human rights as
Liberian citizens.

“We try to tell them that life is not yet 
finished,” said Lablah. “We try to make them
understand that if they aren’t a part of this 
particular election, and they aren’t a part of
selecting and electing their policy leaders, 
certainly there will be no change.”

The persistent efforts of Lablah, PADS, and
other Carter Center partners in Liberia paid off
with high voter turnout for the 2005 elections.
Some Liberians waited overnight in line to vote,
and others walked for up to seven hours to reach
their polling stations.

Now that the historic election is over, Lablah
will continue to educate Liberians about their
civic rights and responsibilities.

“My greatest hope is sustaining a democracy,”
said Lablah. “The election is not the end of the
road. It’s the beginning.”
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eak democratic institutions in the Western Hemisphere burden the 
development of peaceful and prosperous governments and impair the 
protection of basic human rights. The Americas Program helps address
these problems by promoting democracy, fostering government trans-

parency, and championing campaign finance reform. 
In May 2005, former U.S. President Jimmy Carter and 22 other leaders from 

the Western Hemisphere formed the Friends of the Inter-American Democratic
Charter to encourage dialogue about weaknesses in the region’s democracies and
ways to strengthen them through the charter. Approved by the Organization of

American States in 2001, the charter provided
a way for member countries to address threats
to regional democracy but little definition of
what constituted a threat. 

Serving as the secretariat for the Friends of
the Inter-American Democratic Charter, the
Americas Program worked with the group to
identify conditions that would constitute an
alteration of democracy, including failure to
hold elections that meet minimal international
standards, arbitrary removal of members of the
judiciary or electoral bodies, and the silencing
of political opposition, media, or civil society.
The group also sent two missions to Nicaragua
to assess the political conflict in 2005.

Also this year, the Carter Center’s Access 
to Information Project, which works to build
government transparency, expanded its pres-
ence in Jamaica and Bolivia to a third nation,
Nicaragua. The Carter Center has had a 
long relationship with Nicaragua, monitoring
elections there since 1989. The Access to
Information Project seeks to establish voluntary
openness strategies in Nicaragua through select
pilot ministries, build consensus among civil
society and the government, and provide tech-
nical assistance to legislators tasked with draft-
ing access-to-information laws. 

Another way the Americas Program is 
working to strengthen democracy is through
political finance reform, including political

8

Americas Program

Program Strengthens Democracy by 
Promoting Government Transparency

“There was a commission of inquiry in Jamaica regarding
some prison beatings. One commissioner decided that
even though it was a public process, the ordinary citizen
was not entitled to take notes. We took the case all the
way to the Supreme Court and won. The basis of that
case was that members of the press enjoy their rights 
to disseminate information because they are ordinary 
citizens, so ordinary citizens should have this right to
monitor public proceedings, too. I don’t think we can
overstate the role The Carter Center has played in 
providing training to help Jamaica move away from 
a culture of secrecy to a culture of openness.”

—Carolyn Gomes, executive director, Jamaicans for Justice
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Mariclaire Acosta 
Former Undersecretary of
Foreign Relations for Human
Rights and Democracy of
Mexico

Nicolás Ardito Barleta 
Former President of Panama 

Carlos Ayala Corao 
Former President, 
Inter-American Commission 
of Human Rights

Patricio Aylwin 
Former President of Chile

Cass Ballenger 
Former Representative of the
United States Congress

Dante Caputo 
Former Foreign Minister of
Argentina

Rodrigo Carazo 
Former President of Costa Rica

Fernando Henrique Cardoso
Former President of Brazil

Jimmy Carter 
Former President of the United
States of America

Joe Clark 
Former Prime Minister of
Canada

John Compton 
Former Prime Minister of 
St. Lucia

Diego García-Sayán 
Former Foreign Minister of
Peru

Osvaldo Hurtado 
Former President of Ecuador 

Luis Alberto Lacalle 
Former President of Uruguay

John Manley 
Former Minister of Foreign
Affairs of Canada

Maria Emma Mejía 
Former Foreign Minister of
Colombia

Inter-American Democratic Charter Initiative 
Friends of the Democratic Charter

Pedro Nikken 
Former President, 
Inter-American Court for
Human Rights, Venezuela

Andrés Pastrana
Former President of Colombia

Sonia Picado 
Chair of the Board of Directors
of the Inter-American Institute
of Human Rights

Sergio Ramirez 
Former Vice President of
Nicaragua

Arthur Robinson 
Former President of Trinidad
and Tobago

Lloyd Erskine Sandiford 
Former Prime Minister of
Barbados

Jorge Santistevan 
Former Human Rights
Ombudsman of Peru

Ernesto Zedillo 
Former President of Mexico

Advisors
Cecilia Blondet 
Former Minister for the
Advancement of Women and
Human Development of Peru 

Fernando Carrillo-Flórez
Principal Advisor, Special
Office in Europe, Inter-
American Development Bank

Peter DeShazo
Director, Americas Program 
at the Center for Strategic 
and International Studies

John Graham
Chair, Canadian Foundation
for the Americas 

Elizabeth Spehar
Former Executive Coordinator
of the OAS Unit for
Promotion of Democracy,
Canada

The Americas Program teaches community
organizations in countries like Venezuela
(right) the communication skills necessary
to help various segments of society coexist. 
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advertising. The Mapping the Media in the Americas
Project uses state-of-the-art technology to show 
exactly which news and political advertising sources
reach voters in a country’s electoral districts. Some
towns may only have one media outlet, and if the
owner favors one candidate over another, citizens 
may never know the opposition’s platform or even
that opposition exists. Accessible on the Internet
(www.mediamap.info), the map will stimulate public
discussion about the relationship between the media
and elections and will inform legislative changes to
make candidate access to the media more equitable.

Carter Center staff visited a warehouse in Bolivia where an 
association of miners had created a well-organized system for
archiving records. The Center’s Access to Information Project
helps countries develop information systems, which serve to hold
governments accountable and help citizens exercise their rights.

Noah Friedman-Rudovsky
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Conflict Resolution Program

he Center’s Conflict Resolution Program works around the world to 
curb ongoing disputes and stop violence before it escalates into war. 

In January, as part of a Carter Center election mission, President 
Carter and conflict resolution staff met with Israeli Prime Minister Arial

Sharon and Palestinian Authority President Mahmoud Abbas to discuss future
actions on the Middle East peace process. After the subsequent Gaza disengage-
ment, the program hosted a high-level conference on peace in the region. 

The 2004 assassination of Guinea-Bissau’s chief of staff of the armed forces
prompted an invitation from the Alliance for International Conflict Resolution 
for The Carter Center to assess tensions and provide recommendations to prevent
further bloodshed. Major parties accepted program staff counsel to follow the 
political process, and elections were held in a peaceful environment. 

Also in Africa, the Carter Center’s Conflict Resolution and Democracy pro-
grams have worked with the people of Liberia for a decade through the 
transition from civil war to a peace agreement and open elections this past year. 
A focal point for many conflicts in the region, security and democracy in Liberia
will have a significant impact on peace in the region. 

In Asia, the Conflict Resolution Program monitored the conflict between
Maoist insurgents and the Nepalese government, networked with Nepali leaders,
and arranged a meeting between President Carter and the key actors in the conflict. 

And in the United States, the Conflict Resolution Program co-convened its 
second consultation on the future of the nuclear nonproliferation treaty, bringing
together representatives of countries that have rejected nuclear weapons but have
the potential to develop them. President Carter wrote to 28 heads of state urging
their support for constructive reform. 

Staff Monitor and Mediate Conflicts in Africa, 
Asia, and the Middle East

“I was a battlefront commander, spending almost 
two years in the struggle. I used to harass civilians,
disturb life and property. Things were not okay then.
Now I’ve learned masonry, and I can build a house.
Now I am free, I can breathe, and everything is fine.
When I was fighting, at any moment I could die. 
But now I am fine.”

—Ex-combatant in Liberia explaining how his life has
changed following the end of civil war
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Palestinian children flash the peace sign in January 2005. The
Conflict Resolution Program is working to help end the Israeli 
and Palestinian conflict.
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streets of Liberia in October
2005 to keep peace in the
country. The Carter Center
helped Liberia transition from
civil war to peace.

Dame Margaret Anstee
Former Undersecretary-
General, Former Special
Representative of Secretary-
General in Angola

Mr. Carl Bildt
Former Prime Minister of
Sweden, Special Envoy of the
Secretary-General of the
United Nations to the Balkans

Mr. Samuel Gbaydee Doe
Former Executive Director,
West African Network for
Peace Building

Dr. Mari Fitzduff
Professor and Director of
Master’s Program in
Intercommunal Coexistence,
Brandeis University

Mr. Joseph Montville
Former Director of
Preventative Diplomacy,
Center for Strategic and
International Studies

Mr. Giandomenico Picco
Executive Director, GDP
Associates Inc.

Ambassador Mohamed
Sahnoun
Special Adviser to the United
Nations Secretary-General

Dr. William Ury
Director, Global Negotiation
Project, Harvard University

Dr. William Zartman
Jacob Blaustein Professor of
International Organization and
Conflict Resolution; Director
of Conflict Management
Program, The School of
Advanced International
Studies, The Johns Hopkins
University

International Council for Conflict Resolution

The International Council for Conflict Resolution is a body 
of internationally recognized diplomats, academics, and conflict
resolution experts who advise and complement the efforts of 
the Center’s Conflict Resolution Program. Council members 
take an active role in program activities and are engaged in its
projects. Members are encouraged to work with the program to
advance the common understanding of the art and science of 
conflict resolution.



“I believe that the observers, and President Carter in 
particular, not only give the Palestinians hope that the
elections will be as they should be but also show the
international community’s interest, and that affects the
Palestinian people themselves. We can make change
and push on even further toward the will of the 
international community and toward the people’s 
will for peace.”

—Dimitri Diliani of the People’s Campaign for Peace and
Democracy in the West Bank
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he Carter Center advances democracy worldwide by providing inde-
pendent assessments of the quality of elections and working to strengthen
democratic institutions and processes. As impartial and respected
observers, the Center’s Democracy Program works to build confidence that

elections are conducted transparently and without interference. The Center had
observed 61 elections in 25 nations as of October 2005.

In the past year, Center observers witnessed democratic gains in three African
nations and in the Middle East. 

Following the death of Yasser Arafat, Center representatives observed the 
historic Palestinian 
election of Mahmoud
Abbas as president in
January 2005. The orderly
and well-administered
elections were widely
viewed as setting an
important example of the
potential for democracy
in the Arab world and 
for opening new oppor-
tunities for building peace
in the Middle East. On

T

Democracy Program

Center Monitors Elections in Africa, Middle East

A poll worker paints ink on the thumb of a Palestinian voter.
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election day, President Carter helped Israeli officials
and Palestinians reach a compromise to resolve 
problems with voter lists at polling stations in 
East Jerusalem, allowing voters to cast their 
ballots peacefully. 

Liberians turned out in large numbers to elect 
a new president in fall 2005. The overwhelming
demonstration of commitment to democracy was a
sign of progress in the strife-torn and destitute nation,
where the Center has worked for more than a decade.
The new leader, President Ellen Johnson-Sirleaf, 
the first woman elected to lead an African country,
faces challenges to end insecurity, ensure transparent 
governance, and provide economic development to
fulfill public confidence that democracy will improve
the quality of life in Liberia.

In Ethiopia, elections for national parliament 
gave citizens a democratic choice for the first time.
Following years of civil war, military rule, and 
monarchies, new electoral reforms allowed more
access to the media by opposition parties and more
open debates between candidates. Protests and 
violence, a large number of electoral complaints, 
and a problematic dispute process marred the 

Carter Center Backs 
New Observation Standards

Representatives of nearly two dozen election
observation organizations worldwide, including

The Carter Center, joined U.N. Secretary-General
Kofi Annan in endorsing a set of common 
standards for professional and effective election
observation in October 2005.

The 12-page Declaration of Principles and an
accompanying Code of Conduct bring participating
observer groups for the first time under a common
set of standards for observation and provide guide-
lines for best practices in the field. The initiative
was started by The Carter Center, the United
Nations Electoral Assistance Division, and the
National Democratic Institute, which jointly
served as the secretariat for the project. 

“Our hope is that the declaration will enable
consistency among observer groups and ensure 
the effectiveness and credibility of observation 
missions worldwide,” President Carter said. 

The new standards commit endorsing 
organizations to act impartially, monitor all 
stages of the election process, and accept no 
funding from host governments. They also establish
prerequisites that must be met for international
observation, including freedom of movement, 
freedom to make public statements, and free 
access to information.

A Mozambican examines a ballot.

Voters at a rural polling station outside of Gudar, Ethiopia, raise
their pink voter registration cards.

President Carter watches as two election officials prepare to
count ballots by lantern light in Liberia. 
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Since the Carter Center’s groundbreaking agree-
ment with China’s Ministry of Civil Affairs

(MCA) in 1997 to assist with standardizing village
elections, the Center has expanded to working in 14
provinces across China, reaching 353,817 villages.

Last year, the Center worked with the MCA to
promote fair and competitive village elections and
enhance the governance skills of elected village 
leaders, and in May 2005, observed elections in 
a Tibetan village in Qinghai province. 

The Carter Center also partnered with the MCA
and the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences to
launch the first national survey on village elections
and self-governance, involving 520 villages in some
20 provinces. This survey will offer an independent
and scientific assessment of the quality of village 
elections and scale of villagers’ political participation. 

The Center and the National People’s Congress
cooperated to improve the quality of direct elections
and to empower local People’s Congress deputies. 

postelection period, but following re-elections 
in August, final results confirmed sizable gains in 
parliament for the opposition. 

A Carter Center team also monitored
Mozambique’s December 2004 presidential elections
as the southern African nation continued to advance
its democratic development following the end of a
brutal civil war in 1992. The Center commended the
well-functioning, peaceful voting process but urged
attention to persistent and serious problems with
voter registries and tabulation of results. 

The Center sponsored two training camps for 
the deputies in Zhenjiang, Jiangsu province, and
Weifang, Shandong province, to sharpen their 
budgeting and personnel skills and ability to 
evaluate government performance. 

The Chinese Web site on elections and governance
(www.chinaelections.org), sponsored by The Carter
Center, reached a new stage in 2005 with average
daily hits of about 4,000. It has become an important
online platform for debating reform issues and 
deliberating about democratic experiments. It is, 
in the words of one Chinese scholar, the barometer 
of China’s long-overdue political reform. 

In addition, the Center hosted Chinese election
officials to observe voting procedures during the 
U.S. presidential elections in Chattanooga, Tenn.,
and Atlanta, Ga. Officials from the MCA and 
the National People’s Congress examined local 
campaigning, voter registration, ballot counting, 
and verification procedures to determine if new 
measures could be implemented in China.

A Mozambican man relaxes next to a wall of campaign posters in
December 2004.

China Village Election Project Broadens

A delegation of Chinese election officials traveled to the United
States in November 2004 to observe voting procedures.

Poll workers tally ballots after an election in China. 
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uman rights defenders worldwide gathered 
at The Carter Center in June 2005 for their
second forum in the series “Human Rights
Defenders on the Frontlines of Freedom” to

report on abuses enabled by the global fight against
terrorism and to urge global support for nonviolent
grassroots efforts to protect human rights and 
promote democracy. 

Activists represented 14 countries as well as major
human rights organizations and included U.N. High
Commissioner for Human Rights Louise Arbour and
U.N. Special Representative for Human Rights
Defenders Hina Jilani.

The group asserted that, although the war against
terrorism is necessary, many countries claiming to be
partners in the U.S. fight against terrorism use it as a
pretext to restrict freedoms and target human rights
defenders, undermining the prospects for democracy
and human rights in those countries. Conference 
participants also condemned revelations of systematic 
torture in Iraq, Afghanistan, and Guantánamo Bay,
Cuba, as well as policies of indefinitely detaining 
terror suspects in those and other secret detention
facilities. 

Recommendations included: closing Guantánamo
and the two dozen secret detention facilities run by
the United States as soon as is practical; establishing
an independent commission with authority to investi-

gate and publicly report on places where terrorism 
suspects are held in U.S. custody; and calling for 
concerted international action to build a culture of
human rights in every nation and to combat the most
extreme human rights violations in such places as
Burma, Uzbekistan, and Zimbabwe.

On another human rights front, the long-standing
call to end execution of juveniles in the United
States, endorsed by President and Mrs. Carter, was
given a boost by the U.S. Supreme Court, which
ruled in March 2005 that executing juvenile offenders
is cruel and unusual punishment. The decision in
Roper vs. Simmons acknowledged both the national
trend against juvenile capital punishment at the state
level and the opinion of the international community,
which uniformly renounces this practice.

15

Human Rights

“I’m very grateful for The Carter Center and for Human Rights First to
create these opportunities for people to get together around this table and to
talk about the situation of human rights in the different contexts from which
they come. Because it’s not just an opportunity to vent our frustrations, 
it’s also an opportunity of finding ways to get out of those frustrations.”

—Hina Jilani, U.N. special representative to the secretary-general on human rights
defenders, speaking at the Human Rights Defenders Conference at The Carter
Center in June 2005
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A Muslim girl in Indonesia peeks through traditional dress.
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ali has consistently been ranked as one of the poorest countries in the
world, with only 19 percent of the adult population able to read and write
and more than 90 percent of Malians living on less than $2 USD a day.
Since 1991, The Carter Center has partnered with the government of

Mali to improve health, agricultural production, and election processes.
In 2004, Mali President Amadou Toumani Touré invited the Carter Center’s

Global Development Initiative to work with his government on a three-year 
program to address systemic problems in development cooperation in his country.
Both President Carter and President Touré recognized that major reforms were
needed to improve the way Mali and its donor partners interacted if Mali had 
any hope of achieving the kind of transformative economic growth necessary 
to meaningfully reduce poverty and human suffering.

Although millions of dollars in loans
and grants are made available to Mali
each year, it is not able to use significant
amounts of these resources due to 
cumbersome donor aid practices and 
government capacity constraints. The
government’s severely limited ability 
to effectively manage aid is exacerbated 
by its need to devote scarce resources to
the multiple, and sometimes conflicting,
procedures donors require for accessing
their assistance.

Problems in the management of aid 
are further complicated by the kind of aid
offered. Malian development priorities 
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Global Development Initiative

Partnership with Mali Aims for Coordinated
Development Strategy 

Top: President Carter meets with Mali
President Amadou Toumani Touré.

Bottom: The Carter Center is working
in Mali to help the country use aid
more effectively, which will help its
citizens, like this man selling pots at
market, improve their standard of liv-
ing. Mali is one of the poorest coun-
tries in the world.
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“Albania has been the fastest-growing country in southeastern
Europe and wants to advance on European integration. One 
of the challenges to doing this is developing strategies to promote
sustainable growth and development. I think the most visible
impact of the Carter Center’s work in Albania has been
expanding the participation of government, civil society, and
other representative stakeholders in the development planning
process. As a trusted impartial organization, the Center has
opened dialogue in countries where political forces have no
forum to talk to each other or where the national government
does not talk well with the local people.”

—Nadir Mohammed, country manager for the World Bank in Albania,
who attended the Fourth Development Cooperation Forum at 
The Carter Center in December 2005
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are not always considered when donors identify 
programs they are willing to fund. Disregard of the
need for a coherent Malian-led development strategy
undermines the country’s sense of ownership and
commitment to donor programs and activities.
Experience has shown that programs that are not
country owned are doomed to fail.

In response to these problems, the government 
has undertaken, with the support of the Global
Development Initiative, a number of initiatives 
to improve its aid management capacity and its 

Malians take water from the
Niger River, which divides the
southern part of the country.
Because much of Mali is
desert, the most productive
agricultural area is along the
banks of the Niger.

ability to set and defend its own development 
priorities and to identify ways for donors to simplify
their procedures. Specific activities include reforming
government aid management systems, providing
Malians with the tools needed to lead an effective
development policy dialogue with donors, and creating
an access-to-information program aimed at giving
ordinary citizens access to government documents, 
in addition to giving donors greater confidence in
knowing how their resources are being used.
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Yengussie Tebeje, 55, sits outside her hut next to a small fire in
the rural Ethiopian village of Mosebo. As flies dart around
and land on her worn face, she describes her struggle against

trachoma, a debilitating eye disease.
Like many people in her village, Tebeje endured years of repeated

eye infections, due to bacteria transmitted by eye-seeking flies.
Scarring from multiple infections caused her eyelashes to turn

inward, which was extremely painful. For a period of time, Tebeje
used homemade tweezers every two weeks to remove five or six in-
turned lashes. This was the only way she could see well enough to 
do her housework and go to the local market. But after a while, the
tweezing was no longer effective, and Tebeje’s vision deteriorated so
much that she could no longer perform daily chores like sweeping
floors and cooking meals. 

But Tebeje had reason to hope. She learned about an operation
that would improve her vision. The surgery on her eyelids was 
provided locally at no charge to Tebeje, thanks to a program by 
The Carter Center. Afterward, her vision improved, allowing her to
identify people she could not before and to do everyday activities
with ease.

Trachoma is the leading cause of preventable blindness worldwide,
affecting 6 million people, with another 500 million at risk from 
the disease. The Carter Center has worked to treat and prevent the
disease since 1998. 

Yengussie Tebeje | Ethiopia

A surgeon performs eyelid 
surgery on a patient with 
trichiasis, or advanced trachoma.
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Caption to come

H

Although surgery improved life for Tebeje, 
it is only a temporary fix. Transmission and
infection can reoccur when the conditions that
support the bacteria persist, such as lack of
latrines and inadequate hygiene practices. 

In addition, trachoma is often generational,
as it is easily transmitted by a mother’s un-
knowing touch to wipe her child’s eye. 
Tebeje’s daughter and granddaughter now 

struggle with the disease. The comprehensive
Ethiopian trachoma control program, which 
is assisted by The Carter Center, offers hope 
for all generations with immediate relief from
trachoma through surgery and antibiotics, and
long-term solutions for controlling the disease,
such as latrine building and education about
face washing. 

19

Yengussie Tebeje has battled trachoma, a debilitating eye disease, for years.

Vanessa Vick
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Guinea Worm Eradication Program

he end of Guinea worm is in sight. One by one, countries are declaring
victory over this parasitic disease as it is eliminated within their borders.
Not only are people living free of the physical pain of Guinea worms, but
communities are mending as more children can attend school and farmers

can return to their fields. 
When the Guinea Worm Eradication Program began in 1986, there were 

roughly 3.5 million cases in 20 countries in Africa and Asia. Today, there are 
fewer than 12,000 cases in nine countries—all in Africa. 

Guinea worm disease is now concentrated in only a few countries, with Sudan
and Ghana accounting for 90 percent of all cases.

For 22 years, Guinea worm control in Sudan was hindered by a civil war keeping
health workers from fully accessing much of southern Sudan. Now, more areas than
ever before are accessible thanks to a peace agreement signed in January 2005, and
Guinea worm eradication is a priority in postwar Sudan.

Ghana has renewed eradication efforts by targeting the disease for complete
elimination in the nation’s golden anniversary year, 2007. Providing additional 
visibility, Miss Ghana 2005 announced that Guinea worm eradication would be
among her major causes. 

Nigeria continues to make enormous strides. In 2004, the nation reported fewer
than 500 cases compared to the more than 653,000 cases reported in 1988, when 
it was the most endemic country in the world. Nigeria is expected to report fewer
than 200 cases for 2005 and has pledged to stop transmission in 2006.

In addition, Benin and Mauritania stopped transmission in 2004, and 
Uganda stopped transmission in 2003. 

In the past 12 months, years of hard work have spun hopes into realities, 
preparing Guinea worm to become the next disease eradicated from Earth. 

T
Fight Against Guinea Worm Targets 
Last Nine Countries

Olusoji Adeyi, M.D., M.P.H.,
Dr.PH
Coordinator of Global
Partnerships for Communicable
Diseases, The World Bank

Sir George Alleyne, M.D.,
F.R.C.P.
Director Emeritus, Pan-
American Health Organization

Julie Gerberding, M.D.,
M.P.H.
Director, Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention

David L. Heymann, M.D.
Representative of the Director-
General for Polio Eradication,
World Health Organization

Donald R. Hopkins, M.D.,
M.P.H.
Task Force Chair
Associate Executive Director, 
The Carter Center

Adetokunbo Lucas, M.D.
Adjunct Professor, 
Harvard University

David Molyneux, Ph.D., M.A.
Director, Lymphatic Filariasis
Support Centre, Liverpool
School of Tropical Medicine

Mark L. Rosenberg, M.D.,
M.P.H.
Executive Director, Task Force
for Child Survival and
Development

Harrison Spencer, M.D.,
M.P.H., D.T.M.&H.
President and CEO,
Association of Schools of
Public Health

Pascal Villeneuve, M.D.,
M.Sc.
Chief of Health, UNICEF

Dyann Wirth, Ph.D., M.A.
Professor of Immunology and
Infectious Diseases, Director of
Harvard Malaria Initiative,
Harvard School of Public
Health

Yoichi Yamagata, Ph.D., M.Sc.
Senior Adviser, Institute of
International Cooperation,
Japan International
Cooperation Agency

Notable scientists and organizations come together in this Carter
Center task force to evaluate the potential for eradicating infec-
tious diseases. The task force met from 1988 to 1992, and then it
was reconvened in 2001 with support from the Bill & Melinda
Gates Foundation. It reviews progress in disease eradication,

reviews the status of selected diseases, and recommends opportuni-
ties for eradication or better control of diseases such as Guinea
worm disease, river blindness, lymphatic filariasis, schistosomiasis,
and measles.

International Task Force for Disease Eradication

A Nigerian woman filters
drinking water.
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In a makeshift Guinea worm care center in
Savelugu-Nanton, Ghana, 6-year-old Lukma
receives treatment for a worm emerging from a 
blister on the top of his left foot. Abukari Abukari, 
a local health worker, questions Lukma’s mother
about her water-filtering practices, reminding her
that she must filter all of the family’s drinking water
to prevent the disease from occurring. She says she
uses her filter but cannot follow the children every-
where. “The children drink water I don’t know
about,” she says with a sigh of guilt and frustration. 

Lukma whimpers while Abukari massages the 
infected wound and rolls the emerging worm onto 
a roll of gauze, inch by agonizing inch. The worm
has been breaking through Lukma’s skin for one
week, and today Abukari is able to coax out 
2 inches of what will probably be a 3-foot worm.
Removing a Guinea worm is a long and painful

Join the Historic Effort

Building on the tremendous momentum of the Guinea worm eradication effort,
the Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation pledged a $5 million grant and $20 

million matching grant toward eradication. The foundation will match dollar for
dollar any gift, up to a total of $20 million, made to The Carter Center for Guinea
worm eradication. Funds from the Gates Foundation will help to expedite the
fight against this debilitating disease and meet the eradication target date of 2009. 
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process taking weeks,
sometimes months.
Abukari lightly wraps
Lukma’s foot with
gauze and requests 
to see him again in a
few days. Lukma is
told to stay out of the
water until the worm
has been completely
removed. An emerging
worm will release 

hundreds of thousands of eggs into the water.

To help break the cycle of infection, health workers
like Abukari continue to educate their communities
about the causes of the disease and teach neighbors
how to use simple filters to strain Guinea worm 
larvae from their drinking water. 

With efforts from the community level to the inter-
national arena, the last fraction of 1 percent of this
disease is dwindling. 

Above: A schoolteacher
explains to her students how
Guinea worm is transmitted.

Left: This map shows the
strides made in Guinea worm
eradication through 2004.
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Pitasia Gonzalez, a 78-year-old blind woman from Mexico, lives 
with her daughters in a home accessible only by foot. Like many of the
women nearby, Gonzalez was a strong and capable provider for her
family until damage from river blindness stole her sight many years
ago. Unable to cook, clean, or dress herself without help, Gonzalez’s
blindness has made her dependent on her daughters. But Gonzalez 
said she is hopeful because her grandchildren receive treatment for the
disease through the Carter Center-assisted Onchocerciasis Elimination
Program for the Americas. “Their generation has the opportunity to
preserve its vision,” she said. As a result, Gonzalez may be one of the
last people in the Americas to be blinded by this disease.
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ransmitted by the bite of a small black fly
that breeds near swiftly flowing rivers and
streams, onchocerciasis, or river blindness, is
one of the leading causes of preventable

blindness and is endemic to 37 countries. Worldwide,
18 million people are infected by this parasitic disease
and more than 128 million are at risk. Yet, through
the distribution of Mectizan®, a drug donated by
Merck & Co., Inc., the complications of river 
blindness can be prevented.

The Carter Center, in collaboration with Lions
Clubs International Foundation, the Bill & Melinda
Gates Foundation, the World Health Organization,
and the governments of 11 countries, is working to
control the disease in Africa and eliminate it in 
Latin America.

Since its inception in 1996, the Center’s River
Blindness Program has assisted ministries of health in
11 countries to administer more than 70 million treat-
ments, and more than 11 million of these took place
in 2004 alone. Additionally, since 2003, the six
endemic countries in Latin America have exceeded
the minimum goal of 85 percent treatment coverage
needed to eliminate transmission there. 

The program is leading the initiative forward in
Latin America through the application of community

mobilization
techniques
that rely 
on kinship
networks to
distribute
Mectizan.
Family mem-
bers are likely 
to ensure that
an absent
cousin or 
sibling will get 
the treatment
needed if he
or she misses 
a health work-
er’s visit. 

Unfortunately, Mexico and Guatemala were hit
severely by natural disasters in 2005, complicating
efforts to continue health education and Mectizan 
distribution by limiting community access and
resources. Despite these obstacles, the continent 
is well on its way to halting transmission of 
onchocerciasis. 

A local Lions Club member in Mexico 
helps a young girl paint a Styrofoam fly, 
an activity designed to teach children that
black flies transmit river blindness. Lions
Clubs International Foundation is one of 
the Carter Center’s partners.

River Blindness Program

T
Education, Drugs Combat Onchocerciasis 
in Americas, Africa
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A health worker shows
how only a small amount
of water is needed to
wash hands and faces.
Facial cleanliness is 
part of the World Health
Organization’s strategy
for trachoma control.

erhaps nowhere in the world is the gift of
sight more cherished than in Ethiopia, the
nation with one of the world’s highest rates 
of blindness. 

A third of the cases of blindness in Ethiopia are
caused by a bacterial infection called trachoma.
Trachoma’s effects are far-reaching and devastating to
Ethiopian families, who make only $100 USD a year
on average. Sighted children become caretakers for
the disabled victims, and these children often leave
school at an early age to help support their families. 

Trachoma cases are decreasing dramatically thanks
to a partnership between the Ethiopia Ministry of
Health and The Carter Center, which together imple-
ment the World Health Organization’s SAFE strategy.
SAFE is the four-prong approach to trachoma control
—surgery, antibiotics, facial cleanliness, and environ-
mental improvement. Support for the program is 
provided by the Lions-funded SightFirst Initiative. 

Transmission of the disease takes place when the
bacteria move from the eyes of young children to 
the eyes of an uninfected person via eye-seeking flies,
eye rubbing, mothers’ shawls, and shared towels.

Dedicated health workers and volunteers have 
conducted health education and prevention activities
for more than 7,000 children at three schools in the

Amhara region as well as for adults in the surrounding
communities. These programs promote good hygiene
practices such as hand and face washing. 

The Center also works to improve environmental
sanitation by encouraging the construction of latrines.
Latrines reduce the amount of human waste in the
open and limit breeding grounds for flies. 

Due to overwhelming support of village leaders and

low building costs, nearly 250,000 pit latrines have
been constructed in the Amhara region of Ethiopia in
2005 alone. In addition, Mali, Nigeria, and Niger’s
national trachoma programs surpassed their latrine-
building target by more than 20 percent in 2004. 

To treat trachoma’s early stages, The Carter Center
works with ministries of health and partner organiza-
tions to distribute Pfizer Inc.’s donation of the anti-
biotic Zithromax®. In 2004, more than 625,000 doses
were distributed in Ethiopia.

Provided political will and financial support for
these programs continue, trachoma control could 
contribute to the restoration of a nation’s vision, 

with more people
than ever before
knowing the 
precious treasure of
eyesight preserved. 

Trachoma Control Program

P
Latrine Building Flourishes in Ethiopia
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“He that is struck blind cannot forget 
the precious treasure of his eyesight lost.” 

—William Shakespeare



n Nigeria, an estimated 25 million people 
suffer from lymphatic filariasis. This parasitic
disease is transmitted by mosquito bites and
can lead to extreme swelling in legs and 

other body parts and cause fever, sweats, and other
conditions. Not only does the disease produce 
miserable symptoms, but people with the disease 
may be stigmatized and, because of their disability,
unable to farm or carry out basic daily tasks. 

Carter Center-assisted efforts in Plateau and
Nasarawa states are the only treatments for lymphatic
filariasis underway in all of Nigeria, which is the most
endemic country in Africa for the disease. 

Since beginning work on the ground in 2000, the
Lymphatic Filariasis Elimination Program has made
significant progress in fighting the disease through
health education and annual single-dose combinations
of oral medicines—albendazole donated by
GlaxoSmithKline and Mectizan® donated by Merck 
& Co., Inc. In samples of the population in Carter
Center-assisted villages between 2000–2004, the

infection rates in people
had been reduced by 78
percent, and the number
of infected mosquitoes
had dropped 79 percent. 

Another prevention
strategy is the use of
insecticide-treated 
mosquito nets, the same
nets used to control malaria. In 2004, the Nigeria
Ministry of Health donated treated bed nets to the
program to help reduce transmission of the disease 
in areas endemic for both lymphatic filariasis and
malaria. Nets also protect pregnant women and young
children who are not eligible for drug treatment. So
far, 55,881 bed nets have been distributed by village
volunteers working to combat river blindness. These
volunteers show how one community distribution 
system can be used to disseminate resources to treat
several diseases, shaping a standard for integrated 
public health systems in all developing countries.

24

Lymphatic Filariasis Elimination Program

I

Sitting on a white plastic chair, Hamisu Isa, 35, listens to members of his lym-
phatic filariasis support group describe their symptoms, challenges, successes, and
hopes. For years, he has suffered from the disease’s severest form, elephantiasis. 

Although Hamisu’s leg and foot are enlarged and it is sometimes difficult for him
to get around, he finds joy in little things that make his life easier. Today, he
shows off a custom-made shoe. Typical flip-flops would not fit over his swollen
foot, so a friend melted the strap off another shoe and attached it to a strap on
Hamisu’s shoe, creating a larger flip-flop, and as a result, a shoe that fits. 

Hamisu’s group, the Jos urban support group, is among the first of its kind. 
Led by Carter Center expert Dr. John Umaru, participants learn about the 
transmission and prevention of lymphatic filariasis and discuss techniques for 
preventing skin infections. The forum is equally important for providing a place
for people like Hamisu to discuss how to overcome seemingly insignificant 
everyday challenges, such as finding properly fitting shoes. 

A Nigerian woman with 
lymphatic filariasis demon-
strates how to wash her legs
to prevent skin infections.
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chistosomiasis is one of the most devastating
parasitic diseases in tropical countries. In
Nigeria, the world’s most schistosomiasis-
endemic country, approximately 20 million

people need treatment to prevent the disease’s serious
and sometimes life-threatening complications. 

Caused by a microscopic parasite found in fresh
water, schistosomiasis is easily contracted while per-
forming daily chores such as fetching water and herd-
ing animals. School-age children are most affected by
the disease, which prevents them from growing and
developing normally and causes bloody urine. 

Fortunately, destruction caused by urinary schisto-
somiasis can be prevented. Since 1999, The Carter
Center, in partnership with Nigeria’s Schistosomiasis
Control Program, has been working with communities
in Plateau and Nasarawa states to control the disease
in the most endemic areas. And in 2004, the program
grew to include Delta state. 

First, community members are educated about
schistosomiasis and its prevention. Then program
health workers distribute
praziquantel, a pill that
can reverse much of the
internal organ damage
caused by schistosomia-
sis, to those who need it. 

In Plateau and
Nasarawa states, The

Carter Center and the ministries of health are com-
bining prevention programs for river blindness and
lymphatic filariasis with schistosomiasis control efforts
to streamline health interventions and village visits. 

However, unlike other Carter Center health pro-
grams, the medication needed to treat schistosomiasis
is not donated and can cost as much as 20 cents USD
per tablet, which limits the number of drugs the
Center can afford to purchase. 

Despite this obstacle, the schistosomiasis program
has been increasingly successful. More than 700,000
treatments have been distributed to endemic areas
since the program began, and last year the program
achieved 103 percent of its annual objective—more
than 215,000 treatments. Some Carter Center-assisted
areas have shown an 83 percent reduction of bloody
urine between 1999 and 2004.

One village, one child at a time, The Carter
Center, its partners, and the Nigeria Ministry of
Health are making a real difference against this 
quiet, devastating plague.

A health worker measures a
Nigerian boy to determine the
proper dosage of praziquantel.
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Schistosomiasis Control Program

S
Parasitic Disease Puts Nigerian Children at Risk
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Agriculture Program

ven though the past 50 years have been the
most productive in global agricultural history,
some 203 million people are malnourished,
and each year 6 million children die in a

vicious cycle of poverty, hunger, and disease. 
Since 1986, The Carter Center has worked to

ensure that the benefits of the green revolution, the
development of new technology and higher yielding
crops, reach those who need it most in Africa. 

In partnership with the Sasakawa Africa
Association, led by Dr. Norman Borlaug, the Carter
Center’s Agriculture Program is part of a larger joint
initiative that has helped more than 4 million 
sub-Saharan farmers in 15 countries to increase 
their crop yields three- or even fourfold. 

For example, in 2004, Ethiopia experienced an
abundant harvest, the likes of which had not been
observed in years. Farmers harvested more than 14
million tons of food grain—a 24 percent increase
from 2003 and a major boon to a nation suffering
from chronic food insecurity. Ethiopia’s success is
largely the result of increased use of fertilizer and the
application of higher-yielding seeds. 

In Malawi, one of the largest consumers of maize 
in the world, farmers are unable to keep up with 
local needs, forcing the nation to import one of 
its principal food staples. As a result, the Ministry 
of Agriculture is implementing maize production
technologies promoted by the Sasakawa Africa
Association and The Carter Center to close the
domestic gap between supply and demand. 

And in Ghana, the program is strengthening farmers’
business practices through the development of self-
sustaining, business-oriented farmer organizations and
offering agribusiness courses for members. This new
emphasis on agribusiness has increased profits for
small landholders and is expected to increase the 
use of improved farming technologies. 

The Carter Center, along with its partners, realizes
the vast potential of a continent, once starving, to
someday no longer be vulnerable to famine. 

E
Agriculture Techniques 
Increase Crop Yields in Africa

Left: A woman pours maize in Ghana.

Below: An Ethiopian woman breaks up ground for farming.
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Topics such as the impor-
tance of prenatal care (left)
and health benefits of proper
ventilation for cooking areas
(top of page) are stressed in
materials developed through
the Ethiopia Public Health
Training Initiative.
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Ethiopia Public Health Training Initiative

isease is a formidable and often deadly 
adversary to the people of many poor African
nations. For Ethiopians, the single biggest
factor of poor health is lack of access to

trained health personnel. 
Less than half the population of Ethiopia currently

has access to adequate medical treatment. But a 
partnership among The Carter Center, the Ethiopia
Ministry of Education, the Ethiopia Ministry of
Health, and seven national universities and colleges 
is reducing this problem. Launched in 1997, the
Ethiopia Public Health Training Initiative is creating
a corps of qualified health care workers to serve 90
percent of the Ethiopian population in more than 
600 rural health centers.

In 2005, classroom materials were provided to each
of the partnering universities, including:

• Text and reference books valued at $15,000 USD
• Computers, printers, and photocopiers
• Periodical and journal subscriptions
• Classroom demonstration materials and basic 

laboratory equipment, including autoclaves 
and microscopes

The partner institutions—Addis Ababa, Alemaya,
Awassa, Defense, Gondar, Jimma, and Mekelle cam-
puses—hold workshops to draft and produce training
modules that address life-threatening diseases, long-
term health promotion, and disease prevention. 

One of the keys to
the initiative’s success
is the involvement of
Ethiopians in creating
program materials.

Ethiopian teaching staff work side by side with 
international experts to develop curricula that relate
to Ethiopia.

Other projects of the initiative include promoting
healthy pregnancies, providing drought assistance,
and developing teaching and learning materials for
the growing health extension worker program.

D
Initiative Partners Prepare 
Health Workers to Serve Ethiopia

Bishaw Deboch can remember when up to 200 
students would wait in line to use one or two 
books from the library at Jimma University, where
he is vice dean of the public health program. 

That was before the Ethiopia Public Health
Training Initiative began in 1997. Now Jimma
University, one of the initiatives’ seven partner
institutions, has new office equipment, computers,
and textbooks for most students.

“Students are now being trained better, which
translates into better health care for rural Ethiopians
who need help most,” Deboch said. “Students are
sent to work in rural treatment centers, where they
have an enormous impact on communities.” He
believes better medical treatment is critical to
progress on other social fronts as well, including
poverty, economics, and stability.
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“The fellowship played a major role in allowing me 
to demonstrate to journalism colleagues that mental
health is a legitimate, newsworthy topic that deserves
coverage. As my mental health reporting increased in
scope, I found that sources and organizations started 
to seek me out.”

— Caroline Clauss-Ehlers, 2004–2005 recipient of a Rosalynn
Carter Fellowship, who wrote a series of articles on how
stigma affects mental health care for Latino families

28

Mental Health Program

eople with mental illnesses have great 
obstacles to overcome. Not only do they face
personal stigma and discrimination from soci-
ety as a whole and sometimes the people in

their lives, but they also must deal with a health care
system that is underequipped to handle their needs.
Although much has been accomplished in the mental
health field since Rosalynn Carter began working on
these issues in the 1970s, many challenges remain. 

The Carter Center’s Mental Health Program works to improve mental health care
by tackling public policy and promoting public awareness.

In November 2005, The Carter Center hosted the 21st Annual Rosalynn Carter
Mental Health Symposium, which focused on improving quality of care in behavioral
health. The two-day meeting brought in experts from around the United States 
to examine and discuss patients’ experiences and build an action plan to address 
pervasive problems.

Sweeping public change begins on the local level, and because it is headquartered
in Atlanta, the Mental Health Program sponsors an annual Georgia Forum on
statewide mental health issues. This year’s forum examined the impact of the state’s
transition to managed care in the Medicaid program, which serves many people 
with mental illnesses.

Regulations and standards of care are closely linked to public opinion, and the
program seeks to bring mental health to the forefront of community and national 
discourse. The Rosalynn Carter Fellowships for Mental Health Journalism provide
stipends to journalists who research and report on topics in the field. The 2004–2005
class of recipients included eight reporters from across the United States plus two
from New Zealand and two from South Africa. Projects included a radio series 
on adolescent mental health and a magazine piece about how the 2004 tsunami
affected the mental health of people living in the region.

P
Mrs. Carter addresses partici-
pants at the May 2005 Georgia
Mental Health Forum.
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Participants at the 2005
Mental Health Symposium
brainstormed ways the
quality of mental health
services could be improved.
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President, Regis College
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Hospice Foundation of
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Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention
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University of North
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of Contracts and Grants,
Wakanyeja Pawicayapi

Nadine J. Kaslow, Ph.D.,
A.B.P.P., Professor and Chief
Psychologist, Department of
Psychiatry and Behavioral
Sciences, Emory University
School of Medicine

Sally Engelhard Pingree,
Trustee, The Charles
Engelhard Foundation;
Member, The Carter Center
Board of Trustees 

David Satcher, M.D., Ph.D., 
Surgeon General of the
United States and Assistant
Secretary for Health and
Human Services, 1994-2001;
Acting Director, Morehouse
School of Medicine

Leslie Scallet, J.D., 
Former Senior Vice
President, The Lewin Group

Joel Slack, Executive
Director, Respect
International

Beverly Tatum, Ph.D., 
President, Spelman College

Cynthia Ann Telles, Ph.D., 
Associate Clinical Professor,
Department of Psychiatry
and Biobehavioral Sciences,
The University of California
at Los Angeles School of
Medicine

Ex-Officio 
Thomas Bryant, M.D., J.D.,
Chairman, President’s
Commission on Mental
Health, 1977-78; Chairman,
NonProfit Management
Associates Inc.

Kathryn Cade, White House
Projects Director for First
Lady Rosalynn Carter, 
1977-80

Benjamin G. Druss, M.D.,
M.P.H., Rosalynn Carter
Endowed Chair for Mental
Health, Rollins School of
Public Health, Emory
University

Fellows
William Foege, M.D.,
Director, Centers for Disease
Control, 1977-83

Julius Richmond, M.D.,
Surgeon General of the
United States and Assistant
Secretary of Health and
Human Services, 1977-81;
John D. MacArthur Professor
of Health Policy, Emeritus,
Harvard University

MacArthur Foundation
Laurie Garduque, Ph.D.,
Program Officer, The 
John D. and Catherine T.
MacArthur Foundation

National Advisory
Council
Johnnetta B. Cole, Ph.D., 
President, Bennett College

Jane Delgado, Ph.D.,
President and Chief
Executive Officer, National
Alliance for Hispanic Health

Leon Eisenberg, M.D.,
Pressley Professor of Social
Medicine and Professor of
Psychiatry, Emeritus, Harvard
Medical School

Antonia Novello, M.D.,
Commissioner of Health 
for New York State
Department of Health;
Surgeon General of the
United States, 1990-93

Robert D. Ray, Governor 
of Iowa, 1969-83; President
Emeritus, Drake University

Richard Surles, Ph.D.,
Commissioner, New York
State Office of Mental
Health, 1987-94; Head of
Operations, Comprehensive
NeuroScience Inc.

Joanne Woodward, 
Actress; Director

The Carter Center Mental Health Task Force
Chaired by former First Lady Rosalynn Carter and supported by the John D. and Catherine T.
MacArthur Foundation, the Mental Health Task Force focuses on mental health policy issues.
It develops initiatives to reduce stigma and discrimination against people with mental illnesses;
seeks equity for mental health care comparable to other health care; advances prevention, 
promotion, and early intervention services for young children and their families; and works 
to increase public awareness and stimulate actions about mental health issues.

The Rosalynn Carter
Fellowships for Mental 
Health Journalism 
Advisory Board

The advisory board selects fellows
and works with them to design
and guide their projects.

Kathryn E. Cade
The Carter Center Mental Health
Task Force Liaison

Paul Jay Fink, M.D.
Professor of Psychiatry, Temple
University School of Medicine

Larry Fricks
Director of the Office of
Consumer Relations, Georgia
Department of Human Resources,
Division of Mental Health

John F. Head
Fellow 1999-2000
Freelance Journalist

Kay Redfield Jamison, Ph.D.
Professor of Psychiatry
The Johns Hopkins University
School of Medicine

Lawrence A. Kutner, Ph.D.
Co-director, Harvard Medical
School, Center for Mental Health
and Media

Catherine S. Manegold
Professor of Journalism, James M.
Cox Jr. Chair, Emory University

Bob Meyers
President, National Press
Foundation

Ellen Mickiewicz, Ph.D.
James R. Shepley Professor of
Public Studies, Duke University
Director, DeWitt Wallace Center
for Communications and
Journalism

Otto Wahl, Ph.D.
Director, The Graduate Institute 
of Professional Psychology
University of Hartford

International Advisers
Anton Harber
Caxton Professor of Journalism
and Media Studies
University of the Witwatersrand,
Johannesburg, South Africa

Raymond Nairn, Ph.D.
Senior Tutor, University of
Auckland School of Medicine,
New Zealand, The Carter Center

The Carter Center
Thomas H. Bornemann, Ed.D.
Director, Mental Health Program

Rebecca G. Palpant, M.S.
Assistant Program Coordinator
Mental Health Program
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ecognized internationally for the expertise of its staff, The Carter Center
also boasts a wealth of skills and experience among its interns who work
side by side with program staff. Internships are offered throughout the year
to undergraduate juniors and seniors, recent graduates, and graduate or

professional students who have demonstrated superior academic ability and career
interests related to Carter Center programs. 

“Our interns are a very select group, who bring a high quality of skills, academic
training, and sometimes even experiences related to the peace and health work of
the Center,” said Lauren Kent-Delany, director of educational programs at The
Carter Center. “They hail from around the world—Asia, Africa, Western Europe,
and North America—and speak a variety of languages from Hausa to Italian to
Farsi and Uzbek.

“Our goal is to make the internship a practical application of a student’s 
academic experience. You will not find interns spending much of their time on
administrative work. They are given important projects under the supervision of
experts in their field.”

In addition to supporting the Center’s work, interns learn through a series of 
formal educational programs, through mentoring by program staff, and through

interactions with intern peers. The unique opportunities
provided by the Carter Center internship program con-
sistently place it on the Princeton Review’s list of top
internship programs.

Kavitha Nallathambi, an intern last fall in the Global
Development Initiative, has been impressed with the oppor-
tunities offered at the Center. “I feel the work I do is mean-
ingful and gives me skills I plan to use in a future career,”
said Nallathambi, a recent graduate of the London School 
of Economics Development Studies Program. 

“The staff does a lot to create community among the
interns. I’ve 
met people here
I hope I can 
keep in touch
with for the 
rest of my life.” 

Internships Offer Relevant,
Meaningful Experience
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Interns

R

Zamira Yusufjonoua,
a fall 2005 intern 
in the Conflict
Resolution Program,
writes a report on
conflict potential in
Colombia and Haiti.

Intern Deborah Hakes traveled
to Liberia with the Center’s
election monitoring delegation
and kept a log about her 
experience on the Carter
Center Web site. Hakes was
an intern in the Office of
Public Information.
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Senior Staff

Senior Staff
John B. Hardman, M.D.
Executive Director
The Carter Center

Peace Programs
John Stremlau, Ph.D.
Associate Executive Director,
Peace Programs

Harold J. Berman, J.D.
Fellow
Russian Law and 
U.S.-Russian Relations

Edmund J. Cain, M.A.
Director
Global Development Initiative

David J. Carroll, Ph.D.
Director
Democracy Program

Steven H. Hochman, Ph.D.
Director, Research
Faculty Assistant to 
President Carter

Matthew Hodes, J.D., LL.M.
Director
Conflict Resolution Program

Lauren Kent-Delaney, M.A.
Director
Educational Programs

Jennifer L. McCoy, Ph.D.
Director
Americas Program

Ellen P. Mickiewicz, Ph.D.
Fellow
Commission on Radio and
Television Policy

Kenneth W. Stein, Ph.D.
Fellow
Middle East Studies

Health Programs
Donald R. Hopkins, 
M.D., M.P.H.
Associate Executive Director,
Health Programs

Norman E. Borlaug, Ph.D.
President
Sasakawa Africa Association

Thomas H. Bornemann,
Ed.D.
Director
Mental Health Program

Paul M. Emerson, Ph.D.
Technical Director
Trachoma Control Program

William H. Foege, 
M.D., M.P.H.
Senior Fellow
Health Policy

Joyce P. Murray, Ph.D.
Director
Ethiopia Public Health 
Training Initiative

Frank O. Richards Jr., M.D.
Technical Director, 
– River Blindness Program
– Lymphatic Filariasis 

Elimination Program
– Schistosomiasis Control

Program

Ernesto Ruiz-Tiben, Ph.D.
Technical Director
Guinea Worm 
Eradication Program

P. Craig Withers Jr., 
M.H.A., M.B.A.
Director
Program Support

Operations
Phillip J. Wise Jr.
Associate Executive 
Director, Operations
Corporate Secretary

Christopher D. Brown, CPA
Director, Finance
Treasurer

Deanna Congileo, M.A.
Director, Public Information

Kay T. Hamner, M.P.A.
Director, Administrative
Services

Michael J. Turner
Director, Human Resources

Office of Jimmy and
Rosalynn Carter
Faye W. Perdue
Executive Assistant to 
Jimmy Carter

Nancy R. Konigsmark
Director, Scheduling

Melissa M. Montgomery
Executive Assistant to 
Rosalynn Carter
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P I A H OH L T RN P Y
A Message About Our Donors

Donors and partners from around the globe join 
with The Carter Center in a commitment to our

peace and health projects. Individuals, foundations, 
corporations, multilateral organizations, and govern-
ments support our programs. These partnerships allow 
the Center’s work to have greater impact through a 
shared pursuit to wage peace, fight disease, and build 
hope throughout the world.  

More than 170,000 donors contributed 
more than $152 million in cash, pledges, and 
in-kind gifts in fiscal year 2004–2005
Gifts ranging from $1 to more than $25 million 
support the work of the Center. From direct mail and
Ambassadors Circle support, to planned giving and 
program-specific gifts, each donation contributes to 
the Center’s ability to realize its mission.

Donor partnerships are fundamental to the Center’s
success and reflect the global scope of our projects
For example, the Guinea Worm Eradication Program
received a $25 million challenge grant from the Bill &
Melinda Gates Foundation. Matching support for this
challenge grant includes pledges from the Canadian
International Development Agency, the Government 
of Japan, the United States Agency for International
Development, the Conrad N. Hilton Foundation, the
Government of Norway, and the Saudi Fund for
Development, among others.

Donors from more than 42 countries contributed to 
our work in 2005. The Government of Ireland pledged
major support for the Democracy Program’s Liberian elec-
tions project, and The Open Society Institute’s support 
of the Americas Program will go toward the Mapping the
Media project in Latin America. The Center recently
established The Carter Centre United Kingdom (CCUK),
a U.K.-registered charity and nongovernmental organiza-
tion created to expand donor opportunities throughout
Europe. A partnership between the CCUK and Electoral
Reform International Services, a nongovernmental organ-
ization based in London, secured a European Union grant
in 2005 to support election work in Liberia. 

The voices of many individuals 
contribute to one mission
Thousands of individual donors have united to support
the Center’s efforts. Sheila Fyfe and Mark Cohen of

Click on www.cartercenter.org to donate online—
quickly, easily, and securely.

Total Expenses as a Percentage: Fiscal Year 2004–2005

Sources of Support as a Percentage: 2004–2005

Note: Governmental revenue includes the United States and foreign governments as well
as multilateral organizations. Investment revenue is excluded from the above graph.

Individuals 13.8%

Foundations 30.1%

Governmental 6.8%

Other Revenue 2.5%

Fund Raising 8.1%

Peace 7.3%Administration 5.5%

Cross-program 0.5%

Coconut Grove, Fla., have been supporters of the Center
since 1997, as Ambassadors and through a planned gift. 
In Sheila and Mark’s words, “In a world of competing 
and complex interests, commitment to the public good 
is more important than ever. We are proud to join our
voices with the Center’s and make a commitment to
effective change around the globe.”

Generosity has an impact
The generosity and commitment of the Center’s many
donor partners has been crucial to the success of our past
work and to our ongoing efforts around the world. With a
shared vision to build hope around the world, our voices
have greater impact. Together, we make the Center’s 
mission a powerful reality.

Health 78.6%

Corporations 46.8%
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Anonymous (2)

AFLAC Japan

Ambassador and 
Mrs. Philip H. Alston

His Royal Highness Prince
Alwaleed Bin Talal Bin
Abdulaziz Al Saud Fund

The Annenberg Foundation

Lord and Lady Michael A.
Ashcroft

BASF Corporation

BellSouth Corporation

The Arthur M. Blank Family
Foundation

Mr. Richard C. Blum and The
Honorable Dianne Feinstein

Mr. Ronald W. Burkle

Callaway Foundation

Canadian International
Development Agency

Carnegie Corporation of 
New York

The Honorable Jimmy Carter
and Rosalynn Carter

The Annie E. Casey Foundation

Cox Interests

The Coca-Cola Company

Mrs. Dominique de Menil

Mr. Michael G. DeGroote

The Delta Air Lines Foundation

Government of Denmark

E.I. du Pont de Nemours &
Company

The Charles Engelhard
Foundation

The Ford Foundation

Mr. Paul Francis and 
Ms. Titia Hulst

The Franklin Mint and 
Diana, Princess of Wales
Memorial Fund

Mr. and Mrs. J.B. Fuqua

Mr. and Mrs. David H. Gambrell

David Gambrell Endowment
Fund

Bill & Melinda Gates
Foundation

Georgia Power Company

Georgia Power Foundation

The Federal Republic of
Germany

GlaxoSmithKline

Mr. and Mrs. Claus B. Halle

The Honorable Jane Harman
and Dr. Sidney Harman

Mr. and Mrs. Christopher B.
Hemmeter

The William and Flora Hewlett
Foundation

Conrad N. Hilton Foundation

The Home Depot

IBM Corporation

Inter-American Development
Bank

ITOCHU Corporation

Government of Japan

Johnson & Johnson

The Robert Wood Johnson
Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Harold Kapelovitz

The Thomas M. Kirbo and 
Irene B. Kirbo Charitable Trust

Mrs. Joan B. Kroc

Lions Clubs International
Foundation

The John D. and Catherine T.
MacArthur Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Henry K.
McConnon

Merck & Co., Inc.

Mr. and Mrs. John J. Moores Sr.

The Charles Stewart Mott
Foundation

Government of The Netherlands

Government of Nigeria

The Nippon Foundation

Nippon Keidanren

Government of Norway

The Sultanate of Oman

Donors With Cumulative Lifetime Giving of $1 Million or More

Pfizer Inc

Precision Fabrics Group

His Majesty Sultan Qaboos bin
Said Al Said

River Blindness Foundation

The Rockefeller Foundation

The O. Wayne Rollins
Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. David M.
Rubenstein

Mrs. Deen Day Sanders

The Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Bakir M. BinLadin for the Saudi
BinLadin Group

The Saudi Fund for
Development

Walter H. and Phyllis J.
Shorenstein Foundation

Southern Company

Mr. and Mrs. James N. Stanard

Mr. and Mrs. Theodore R.
Stanley

The Starr Foundation

Stephens Inc.

Government of Sweden

Turner Foundation

Government of the United 
Arab Emirates

Government of the 
United Kingdom

United Nations Children’s Fund
(UNICEF)

United States Agency for
International Development

The UPS Foundation

Mr. Holland M. Ware

Joseph B. Whitehead Foundation

Robert W. Woodruff Foundation

The World Bank

Wyeth

YKK Corporation

Mr. Tadahiro Yoshida
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$100,000 or more
Anonymous (5)
ACE INA Holdings
HRH Prince Alwaleed Bin Talal

Bin Abdulaziz Al Saud Fund
The Annenberg Foundation
BASF Corporation
Estate of Dorothy Bender
The Arthur M. Blank Family

Foundation
Mr. Richard C. Blum and The

Honorable Dianne Feinstein
Mr. Raymond W. Brandt
Mr. and Mrs. Eli Broad
Mr. Ronald W. Burkle
Canadian International

Development Agency
The Honorable Jimmy Carter

and Mrs. Rosalynn Carter
The Honorable Anne Cox

Chambers
Delta Air Lines
The Charles Engelhard

Foundation
Falconer Charitable Remainder

Trust No. 3
The Ford Foundation
Mr. Paul Francis and 

Ms. Titia Hulst
The Franklin Mint and 

Diana, Princess of Wales
Memorial Fund

Mr. and Mrs. David H. Gambrell
David Gambrell Endowment

Fund
Bill & Melinda Gates

Foundation
Estate of Claus Halle
Conrad N. Hilton Foundation
John C. and Karyl Kay Hughes

Foundation
Government of Ireland
Estate of Rhyley W. Johnson
Johnson & Johnson
Mr. Thomas J. Klutznick
Estate of Natasha Kruglak
Kuwait Fund for Arab 

Economic Development
Lions Clubs International

Foundation
Merck & Co., Inc.
Ms. Jennifer Moores
National Democratic Institute

for International Affairs
Government of The Netherlands
Mr. and Mrs. John D. Nichols Jr.
The Nippon Foundation
Government of Norway
His Majesty Sultan Qaboos bin

Said Al Said of Oman
The OPEC Fund for

International Development
Open Society Institute
The Carl Victor Page Memorial

Foundation
Mr. John W. Rendon Jr. and 

Ms. Sandra L. Libby
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald Rosenthal
Mr. and Mrs. David M.

Rubenstein
Dr. Louis K. Salkind

The Saudi Fund for
Development

Mr. and Mrs. James N. Stanard
Mr. and Mrs. Theodore R.

Stanley
The Starr Foundation
Government of the 

United Kingdom
United States Agency for

International Development
United States Department 

of State
Mr. Gerald T. Vento
Estate of Thomas Watson Jr.
Estate of Harry Wong

$25,000 - $99,999
Anonymous (5)
AFLAC
Mr. and Mrs. Benjamin B.

Alexander
Arigatou Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Josiah T. Austin
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas N. Bagwell
Dr. Richard A. Barry
Estate of Helen Jane Block
Bristol-Myers Squibb Company
Ms. Beatrice Buck
Ms. LuVella C. Burnett
Mr. and Mrs. Landon V. Butler
The Carter Centre 

UK Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen M.

Chazen
Chevron Corporation
Mr. Gustavo A. Cisneros
Miss Jean M. Cluett
Coalition America
Corporacion Andina de Fomento
Estate of Margaret Macaulay

Craig
Mr. and Mrs. John J. Cross
Mr. and Mrs. Pete Docter
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. 

Duncan Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Paul B. Edgerley
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Engelke
The Ben E Factors Foundation
Estate of Kurt Findeisen
The Friend Family Foundation
Mrs. J.B. Fuqua
Mr. J.B. Fuqua
The George Family Foundation
Mr. Richard N. Goldman
Mr. and Mrs. Philip J. Hickey Jr.
Horning Family Fund
The Hunter-White Foundation
Japan International Cooperation

Agency
The Kanbar Charitable Trust 

of the Jewish Community
Endowment Fund

Mr. John Kim
The Thomas M. Kirbo and Irene

B. Kirbo Charitable Trust
Mr. and Mrs. William H. Kleh
The John S. and James L. Knight

Foundation
Katharine P. Lanctot 

Endowment Fund
The Sherry Lansing Foundation

A.G. Leventis Foundation
Mr. Michael R. Lewis
Microsoft Corporation
Mr. and Mrs. John J. Moores Sr.
Estate of Lucille P. Moyer
Mutual of America
Dr. and Mrs. Will L. Nash
Mr. Kenneth Olivier and 

Ms. Angela Nomellini
Mr. and Mrs. Henry G. Osborne
Mr. Bernard A. Osher
Mr. and Mrs. Charles M. Parrish
Pfizer Inc
Mr. and Mrs. David E. Quint
Estate of H. Elaine Ramsey
Randstad North America
Reebok International
Mr. Fred A. Richards
Mr. and Mrs. Helmuth 

Schmidt-Petersen
Mr. Timothy Schwertfeger and

Ms. Gail Waller
The Seedlings Foundation
Mr. Jason W. Sheedy
Mr. and Mrs. Brent L. Slay
Ms. Cherida C. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Squires
Substance Abuse & Mental

Health Services
Administration

Synovus Foundation
The Tinsley Foundation
Estate of Charles E. Toedman
U.S. Centers for Disease Control

and Prevention
Ms. Lois P. Vrhel
Estate of Helen E. Warmer
The Wasserman Foundation
WellPoint Foundation
The Willow Springs Foundation

$10,000–$24,999
Anonymous (5)
Mr. and Mrs. Henry L. Aaron
AGCO Corporation
Mrs. Olfet Agrama
Mr. S. Decker Anstrom and 

Ms. Sherron L. Hiemstra
Mr. and Mrs. James H. Averill
Mr. Robert S. Avery
Mr. and Mrs. Marvin L. Bailey
Dr. W. Andrew Baldwin
Mr. and Mrs. J. Gregory

Ballentine
The Kenneth S. Battye

Charitable Trust
Mrs. Mae Woods Bell
Mr. Arno Bellack
Mrs. Margaret W. Bigham
Ms. Diana Blank
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas H. Boggs

Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Charles M. Brewer
Bridgeway Charitable

Foundation
Broadlands Charitable Lead

Annuity Trust
Mr. Charles Kent Brodie
Estate of Roy Leon Buford
Mr. and Mrs. Roy Bukstein

Mr. and Mrs. Richard L. Bulinski
Michael and Etta Cannon

Family Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald Carlisle
Dr. Gail L. Clifford
The Coca-Cola Company
Ms. Leamel A. Comparette
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. Conroy
Mr. and Mrs. R. Selwyn Copeland
Mr. Steven A. Denning and 

Ms. Roberta D. Bowman
Douglas Foundation
Dr. K. David G. Edwards
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy R. Eller
Mr. Michael G. Feinstein and

Ms. Denise Waldron
Mr. and Mrs. Ricardo A.

Fernandez
Dr. and Mrs. Jonathan H. Fisher
Ms. Mary Fitzpatrick
The Ford Foundation/China
Mr. and Mrs. Cameron H. Fowler
The Fraser Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Free
Mr. and Mrs. John C. Furlong
Mr. and Mrs. Frederick K. Gale
Mr. Cecil McMath Gayle Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Gillen
Ms. Joanne G. Gimbel and 

Mr. Clifford E. Hatch
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Goodwin
Mr. and Mrs. Ken Gouw
Mr. and Mrs. Robert H. Graham
Dr. and Mrs. Stephen L. Graham
Estate of Rocco A. Grappone
Mrs. Mary L. Greenblatt
Mr. and Mrs. Donald L.

Greenmun
Ms. Cynthia F. Grinnell
Margaret E. Haas Fund of the

Marin Community Foundation
Mr. Edward E. Haddock Jr. and

Ms. Edith K. Murphy-Haddock
Mr. Carl Haefling and 

Ms. Pamela Johnson
Mr. Rick Meeker Hayman
Heights Enterprises
Ms. Ann D. Herbert
Mr. and Mrs. Jack Herschend
Hewlett-Packard Company
Dr. Janice M. Holyfield
Mr. and Mrs. J. Clifford Hudson
Mr. Richard G. Hutcheson III
Intuit
Mr. Steven Baughman Jensen

and Dr. Rebecca McGowan
Jensen

Mr. and Mrs. Paul L. Karon
Mr. and Mrs. Richard C. Kerns
Estate of Jean M. Kolbeck
Krispy Kreme Doughnut

Corporation
Dr. and Mrs. Bidy Kulkarni
Dr. Anne P. Lanier
Dr. My T. Le
Mr. and Mrs. Robert N. Lemaire
Eli Lilly and Company

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Kurt Limbach
Ms. Marilyn Long

This report reflects donations made during the Carter Center’s fiscal year: Sept. 1, 2004 – Aug. 31, 2005
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Ms. Carolyn S. Lowrie
Mr. Fraydun Manocherian
Mr. and Mrs. Robert H.

McKinney
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen W.

McMillen
Mr. Allan K. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. D. Kris Miller
Estate of Wanda Jeanie Miller
Mr. and Mrs. George P. Mitchell
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick L. Mitchell
Dr. Masakazu Miyagi and 

Dr. Mary Miyagi
Mrs. Kenneth F. Montgomery
Gordon and Betty Moore

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Arnold Mullen
Mr. Robert E. Naser
Mr. Kent C. Nelson and 

Ms. Ann Starr
Ms. Joanne Woodward and 

Mr. Paul Newman
Mr. and Mrs. Leon Novak
Ms. Ann D. Oestreicher
Mr. and Mrs. Steven R.

Ormiston
Mr. and Mrs. Jennings Osborne
The Osprey Foundation of

Maryland
Mr. and Mrs. Richard C. Overly
The P Twenty-One Foundation
Ms. Ruth Paddison
Mr. Carl P. Page
Ms. F. Taylor Pape
Mr. and Mrs. S. Thomas Parks
Dr. and Mrs. Theodore Petroulas
Mr. John G. Pitcairn
Ms. Barbara Powe
Ms. Laurene Powell, The

Sycamore Fund at Peninsula
Community Foundation

Dr. Keith W. Prasse and 
Dr. Susan W. Prasse

Qualcomm Incorporated
Mr. Scott Ranney
Ms. Catherine C. Rasmussen
Ms. Martha J. Reddout
Ms. Lynette J. Rhodes
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce N. Ritter
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Rogers
Mr. and Mrs. Gary W. Rollins
Dr. and Mrs. Fritz M. Rottman
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald R. Rudolph
Mr. and Mrs. Conway 

Rulon-Miller
Mr. Cecil L. Russell
Ms. Andrea C. Rutherford
Salus Mundi Foundation
Mr. Daniel J. Sandin and 

Ms. Mary L. Rasmussen
Mr. and Mrs. Nathan M.

Sarkisian
Estate of Harry Schildcrout
Mr. Gary S. Selken
Dr. and Mrs. Robert E. Seymour

Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Edward C. Shearer
Mr. Joseph A. Shepard
Dr. and Mrs. P. Joe Sisson
Mr. and Mrs. Morris Slingluff

Mr. and Mrs. Brian J. Smith
Mr. Ed Stern and Ms. Claudia

Hearn
Mr. and Mrs. Scott D. Stewart
Ms. Mary B. Strauss
The Sturzenegger Family

Charitable Fund
Ms. Julia Suddath-Ranne and

Mr. Michael Ranne
Mr. and Mrs. Paul D. Sullivan
Mr. Chade-Meng Tan
Mr. Greg Teeters
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas E. Tietz
United Way of Metro Atlanta
The UPS Foundation
Vestergaard Frandsen
Mr. David R. Virden
The Honorable Paul A. Volcker
Mr. Dougin Walker and 

Ms. Elizabeth Bromley
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Weinmann
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Weissman
Dr. and Mrs. John D. Welch
Ms. Catherine S. West
Whirlpool Corporation
Mrs. Lucy M. Whitney
Mrs. Carolyn Jones Williams
Dr. Joseph N. Wilson and 

Dr. Selma P. Wilson
Mr. and Mrs. Robert O. Wilson
Ms. Lynne E. Wrocklage

$5,000–$9,999
Anonymous (5)
Mr. John B. Adams
Mr. and Mrs. Gaby Ajram
Mr. and Mrs. William E. Albers
Ms. Priscilla Alexander
Ms. Barbara Allain
The Next Generation Fund 

of the Hugh J. Andersen
Foundation

Ms. Lisa Anderson
Ms. Mary R. Angulo
Mr. and Mrs. Mike Aycock
Sirdar Aly Aziz
Mr. and Mrs. Jack L. Bacon
Mr. Maurice Balick
Bank of America
Mr. Alan S. Baral
Mr. William C. Bartholomay
Ms. Sheryl L. Bartolucci
Mr. and Mrs. Jordan J. Baruch
Mrs. Jane Erickson and 

Mr. Jeremy Baskes
Mr. and Mrs. Don Berg
Mr. John A. Boettcher
Mr. and Mrs. J. Chris Brown
Mr. and Mrs. Art Bryant
Estate of Ella Poe Burling
Estate of Florence M. Burnett
Mr. Charles W. Carson Jr.
Amy Carter Foundation
Mr. Mark Chandler and 

Ms. Christina Kenrick
Mr. Marc A. Chary
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Chen
Dr. and Mrs. Paul M.

Christensen

Robert and Bobbe’
Christopherson

Mr. Peter E. Clark Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. James R. Cochran
Ms. Nancy B. Cogsdale
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph A. Coleman
Dr. and Mrs. J. Richard Collins
Mr. Peter D. Conlon
Mr. and Mrs. Peter C. Cook
Mr. and Mrs. Ross Cooper
Mr. and Mrs. John H. Costello
Ms. Janet L. Creasman
Mr. and Mrs. William B.

Crowley
Mr. and Mrs. W. Bowman Cutter
Mr. and Mrs. William P. Davis
Mr. Thomas Dethlefs
Dr. Jianyun Dong and 

Dr. Danher Wang
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Dorwart
Mr. Michael D. Douglas
The Eaton-Yara Fund
Mr. Eugene Eidenberg and 

Ms. Anna Chavez
Mr. and Mrs. Gerard G. Emch
Mr. and Mrs. John S. Erickson
Ernst & Young
Ms. Barbara Faga
Mr. Charles D. Ferris
Flatirons Business Services
Ms. Helene J. Freed
Ms. Carol Frick
Full Circle Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Randy Fulmer
Mr. J. Rex Fuqua
Mr. James E. Furr
Estate of Dorothy M. Galley
Ms. Joanne L. Gellerman
Drs. Paul and Katherine Gerke
Estate of Lorraine Gillespie
Global Payments
Mr. Adam D. Goldsmith
Mr. Nello Gonfiantini
Google
Dr. Gary B. Green
Mr. and Mrs. James H. Greene Jr.
Ms. Bonnie B. Greenspan
Ms. Matilda M. Grey
Mr. and Mrs. Philip Grosz
The Karp/Haahr Family
Ms. Joan B. Haan
Mr. and Mrs. Harry Hagey
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Hall
Ms. Marcia Halpern
Mr. Tony Hamer
Mr. Robert T. Hanley
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald Hanna
Mr. and Mrs. Hubert L. Harris Jr.
The Luther and Susie Harrison

Foundation
Mr. Joseph R. Haun
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Heavener
Mr. David Helgren
Mr. John W. Henry and Dr.

Rachel Henry
Mr. and Mrs. Barry Herring
Mr. Andy Hirsch and 

Ms. Kate Connor
Mr. John L. Holland
Ms. Nancy Hollard

Dr. and Mrs. Dennis L. Hoover
Mr. and Mrs. Jeremy Howard
HSBC Bank USA
Janssen, L.P.
Ms. Phyllis Cady Johnson
The Robert Wood Johnson

Foundation
The Fletcher Jones Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Lewis H. Jordan
Mr. Louis Katsikaris Sr.
Mr. Philip D. Kearns
Mr. David S. Kellberg
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. Kitchin
Mr. and Mrs. Wyck Knox
Mr. Koji Kobayashi
Dr. and Mrs. Patrick G. Kraft
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy E. Kraft
Mr. and Mrs. Roger Lang
Mr. William M. Layson
Mr. and Mrs. Rodney M. Lee
Mr. and Mrs. Paul R. Leonard Jr.
Mr. David R. Lewis
LFP, Inc.
Ms. Elizabeth A. Liebman
Life Center Cathedral
Mr. and Mrs. N. Colin Lind
Ms. Sara D. Lipscomb
William and Marian Littleford

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Anthony Lourey
Mr. Peter Lowe
Dr. and Mrs. Steven P. Lynch
Mr. and Mrs. Richard F. Lyon
Mr. and Mrs. Nicholas Martin Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. William L.

Masterton
Mr. Thomas J. McCarthy
Ms. Melani J. McCullough
The Honorable and Mrs. Alonzo

L. McDonald Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. James M.

McKinney
Mr. Peter G. Meyer-Viol
Mr. Robert B. Moffett
Mr. Glenn Murer
Dr. and Mrs. Edward M. Nathan
NDCHealth
Ms. Lynn Nesbit
Mr. and Mrs. Lowell Northrop
Mr. Peter P. Rogers and Ms.

Suzanne P. Ogden
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel L.

Ostrander
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Overbeck
Pajwell Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Ray W. Paulin
PDM, Inc.
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Phillips
The Pitrof Fund of The Chicago

Community Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph L. Powell Jr.
Mrs. Rita Coveney Pudenz
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald M.

Rafshoon
RARE Hospitality International
Mr. and Mrs. William T. 

Ratliff Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. 

Rearden Jr.
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Mr. Daniel Reiber and 
Ms. Gaye Laurell

Dr. and Mrs. Thomas Reppun
Ms. Harriet Rosenbloom
Mr. and Mrs. Albert H. Rusher
Ms. Elizabeth H. Russell
Mr. and Mrs. W. Timothy Ryan
Mr. Walter H. Sanderson
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin J. Sauder
Mr. and Mrs. John H. Schaff
Mr. and Mrs. Allen H. Seckinger
Estate of Martha Luelle Shaw
Mr. William C. Shelton
Ms. Cynthia J. Sherman
Mr. Lawrence E. Silverton
The Simmons Family

Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. William H.

Simpson
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel Smart
Ms. Maureen Spain
Aruna and David Spencer
Ms. Margaret J. Spencer and 

Ms. Patricia J. Lahti
Sterling Charitable Gift Fund

Trust
Mr. William P. Stevens
Ms. Elizabeth Stewart
Ms. Gertrude L. Sullivan
Mr. Lee B. Thomas Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. LeRoy S. Troyer
Mr. Gary L. Vandenberg
Mr. and Mrs. Cyril Viguier
Ms. Ellen M. Violett
Mr. Roger R. Wagner
Ms. Nancy Wallace
Ms. Jane Wallgren
Mr. and Mrs. Denton Ward
Mr. and Mrs. Jack H. Ward
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Warren
Mr. and Mrs. Sam A. Way III
Mr. and Mrs. George Weaver
Mrs. Robert Weidenhammer
WestWind Foundation
Dr. Betty Jo White
Ms. Dorothy G. Whitmore
Mr. Timothy Willke and 

Ms. Dana Pogorzelski
Mr. David Douglas Wilson and

Ms. Melody Wilder Wilson
Kate and Richard Wolters

Foundation
World Reach
Mr. and Mrs. C. Angus Wurtele
Mr. Robert A. Yellowlees
Mr. Rich Yonash
Yoshida Scholarship Foundation
Peggy and Lee Zeigler

$2,500–$4,999
Anonymous (4)
Ms. Marjorie B. Abshire
Dr. Alan Adams
Mr. and Mrs. Curtis Adams
Mr. and Mrs. Shawn M. Aebi
AHM Associates
Mr. Ralph W. Albrecht
Mr. H. Richard Alexander
Ms. Nina D. Alexander
Ms. Susan W. Almy

The Honorable and 
Mrs. Brady Anderson

Argonaut Group
Mr. Jeffrey Arnold and 

Ms. Ellen Neely
Arnold Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. W. F. Askins
Dr. and Mrs. Emerson M. Babb
Mr. and Mrs. Gordon H. Bald
Ken and Ginger Baldwin
Dr. John R. Ball
Mr. Joe T. Bamberg
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. 

Barrow III
Dr. Joseph Barry
Mr. and Mrs. Brad R. Benton
Mr. and Mrs. Harold Berger
Mr. Jeff Bernard
Ms. Susan E. Bevington
Ms. Melinda Bieber
Lt. Col. George J. Bifolchi
Black Family 1994 Charitable

Lead Trust
Dr. Virginia Y. Blacklidge
Mr. David Blair
Mr. and Mrs. Lee N. Blatt
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth L. Block
Mr. and Mrs. David W. Blood
Mr. Franz-Josef Boll
Mr. Allan A. Bonney
Young Boozer Family Foundation
Estate of Frederick Bordwell
Estate of Rachel Boston
Mr. and Mrs. Kent R. Bourquin
Ms. Kristi D. Bradford
Ms. Betty J. Branlund
Ms. Jane T. Breece
The Brodsky Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Rob Broin
The Honorable and Mrs. Harold

Brown
Mr. Willard B. Brown
Lt. Col. William T. Browne and

Dr. Evelyn W. Browne
Mr. Thomas Bundrick
Mr. and Mrs. Joe S. Burkle
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald E.

Burmeister
Mr. Robert J. Buttel
Capital One
Dr. and Mrs. John B. Carter
Mr. Dan T. Cathy
Ms. Miriam Chapman
Mr. John Chuldenko
The Honorable and 

Mrs. Benjamin R. Civiletti
Mr. David R. Clark
Mr. and Mrs. Terry M. Clark
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Cline
Mr. and Mrs. W. Randall Cline
Mr. and Mrs. Alan M. Cody
Mr. Darvy M. Cohan
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Cole III
Mr. and Mrs. Jerry D. Conn
Drs. Camille and Bill Cosby
Edward and Anne Covert
Mr. William A. Crider Jr.
Mrs. Helen S. Curry
Mr. and Mrs. Rollin Dart
Mrs. Paul A. Deckard

Mrs. Janet Dey
Ms. Cynthia G. Downman
Ms. Catherine W. Dukehart
Mr. and Mrs. Burt Eder
Mr. Don Endres and Ms. Jill

LaPlante
Mr. John Eskew and 

Ms. Rita Vaidya
Mr. C. Paul Estep
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Ferguson
The Samuel Finkel Foundation
Fleur De Lys Textile Company
Ms. Nancie Forrest
Ms. Linda C. Frank
A.J. Frank Family Foundation
Ms. Alice Franklin
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew D.

Franklin
Mr. Robert T. Fredericks
Mr. Robert E. Friedman and 

Ms. Kristina Kiehl
Ms. S. Marce Fuller
Gannett Foundation
Ms. Stephanie Garber and Mr.

David M. Collins
GE Consumer Finance
Mr. and Mrs. Roger Gibson
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Gillig
Mr. Paul M. Ginsburg
Dr. John Godersky and 

Ms. Barbara Covey
Mr. and Mrs. George Googasian
Dr. and Mrs. Martin C. Gregory
Mr. Fred Grob and 

Ms. Dorothy Kinney
Mr. and Mrs. Walter E. Grubbs
Mr. Robert S. Hagge Jr.
The Hale Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John Wayne Hall
Mr. and Mrs. Larry R. Hamilton
Mr. and Mrs. J.R. Harris
Robert and Shirley Harris 

Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. Harris
Dr. Nabil Hatoum
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey A.

Heimbuck
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin J. Heneghan
Mr. Daniel J. Hewitt
Mr. and Mrs. James D. Hier
Mr. B. Harvey Hill Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Hilton
Mr. and Mrs. Bernard Hlavac
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Hoag
Mr. and Mrs. Philip Holladay
Dr. and Mrs. Peter W. Holm
Dr. and Mrs. Matthew Hulbert
Jana Foundation
Mr. Robert L. Jennings and 

Ms. Barbara H. Bott
Ms. Jennifer L. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Steve Johnston
Ms. Miyoung Joo
K2, Inc.
Dr. Julian Kadish
The Karma Foundation
Ms. Stacey Keare
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce

Kirschenbaum
Estate of Erna Klesper

Mrs. Howard L. Knaack
Ms. Karen J. Knudson and 

Ms. Teresa M. Tachovsky
Sonja and Tom Koenig and

Family
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Koran
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence N.

Kugelman
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Lamm
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Lammert
Ms. Wilma M. Langhamer
Dr. James T. Langland and 

Dr. Penny I. Langland
Ms. Julia C. Langston
A. Charles & Lillemor Lawrence

Foundation
Le Fort-Martin Fund of 

The Chicago Community
Foundation

Ms. Isabel Leavitt
Mr. Michael Lebowitz
Mr. Dale W. Leibach and 

Ms. Kathleen Patterson
Ms. Joan Leonard
Mr. and Mrs. David Levine
Mr. Bruce Lincoln
Mr. Lawrence P. Littlewood and

Dr. Edna M. Littlewood
Dr. Daniel Loes
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Luongo
Mr. and Mrs. Theodore C. Lutz
Ms. Randi G. Mack
Ms. Stephanie Makishima
Mr. Dmitriy Mandel
Ms. Nancy R. Manderson
Mr. Robert Marsh
Mr. and Mrs. Mark A. Massengill
Mr. Michael Mathieu and Ms.

Kathleen Washienko
Mr. and Mrs. Brian K. Mazar
Dr. Barbara E. McAlpine
Mr. James A. McBride and 

Ms. Mary Morse
Mr. Mark McCall and 

Ms. Marianna Kulak
Mr. Robert F. McCullough
Mr. and Mrs. Ben G. McDow
Mr. Wade F. McKenzie
Mr. and Mrs. David P. Mehney
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Miller
The Honorable and Mrs. Walter

F. Mondale
Mr. Peter D. Noerdlinger and

Ms. Maribel B. Aguilos
Mr. Joshua Oppenhuis
Mr. Larry Orr and Ms. Nicole

Lederer
Dr. Jayoung Pak
Mr. William C. Paley
Mr. Paul Palmeri
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Paulien
Dr. Deborah S. Lee and 

Mr. John W. Peifer
Peter Max Global Works

Foundation
PGA Tour
Ms. Cheryl Pond
Dr. and Mrs. Allen A. Posner
Mr. and Mrs. Robert N. 

Prentiss Jr.
Ms. Pamela Rand
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Mr. and Mrs. Carlton M. Ray
Mr. Robert P. Reedy
Dr. and Mrs. Charles C. Reith
Dr. and Mrs. John Reuwer
Ms. Laura M. Rice
Mr. and Mrs. Richard K. Riess
Mr. and Mrs. Claude D. Roberts
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Rodman
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Roeder
Mr. G. William Rogers
Mr. Paul I. Roller
Mr. David Roth and 

Ms. Beverly Bear
Mr. and Mrs. Brian D. Rye
Mr. and Mrs. Fred Saltvold
Ms. Virginia D. Samplawski
Dr. Farzad Sani
Mrs. Peter A. Santucci
Ms. Susan Sarandon
Mr. and Mrs. J. Albert Schultz
The Selig Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Shavlik
Mr. Richard L. Shewell Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. George Siegrist
Mr. and Mrs. Ted Sielaff
The Sikand Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. William Silver
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory R.

Simpson
Mr. and Mrs. Emil J. Slowinski
Ms. Juereta Smith
Dr. and Mrs. R. Bob Smith III
Ms. Deborah A. Smith-Callahan
Snowbird Corporation
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald C. Souza
Spellissy Foundation
Mr. Lane S. Srochi
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Srygley
Ms. Lynn Stahl
Mr. Thomas O. Stanley
Ms. Elizabeth Steele
Mr. Matthew S. Stegemiller
Dr. and Mrs. Daniel L.

Stephenson
Ms. Connie W. Stewart
Mr. and Mrs. N. Robert Stoll
Mr. David P. Stoutamire
The Stronge Family Foundation
Mr. Harry C. Tabak and 

Ms. Nava Atlas
Taipei Economic and Cultural

Office in Atlanta
Mr. and Mrs. Louis J. Taratoot
Ms. Jo Ellen Teasdale
Mr. Theodore H. Thomas and

Ms. Colette Chabbott
Ronald and Diane Tucker
Mr. Steven P. Turner and Ms.

Thuy Nguyen
Mr. and Mrs. Frank R.

Unterberger
Mr. and Mrs. Meeks B. 

Vaughan Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Edgar Villchur
Wachovia Bank of Georgia
Mr. Bruce Wahle
Mr. and Mrs. R. Lee Waits
Mr. and Mrs. Robert P.

Warmington
Ms. Elizabeth Warren

Mr. and Mrs. Andrew M. Weir
Ms. Cherie C. Welch
Ms. Willy Werby
Ms. Helen H. West
Ms. Grace B. Wilkins
Ms. Carolyn S. Willard
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Williams
Dr. Hans G. Wolfhard
Mr. Daniel M. Wright
Mr. Walter Wurfel and 

Ms. Sara Fitzgerald
Mr. Jeremy Wynn
Mr. Arnold H. Zidell

$1,000–$2,499
Anonymous (24)
A & A Enterprises
Mr. John Abbott
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Abel
Ms. Lynn M. Abess
Mr. and Mrs. W. Randy Abney
Mr. Alan R. Abrams
Accent Nursery
Ms. Raydean Acevedo
Mr. and Mrs. Daryl Ackerman
Mr. William A. Ackerman
Ms. Kay E. Adair
Ms. Joan Adkins
Dr. and Mrs. W. Dane Adkinson
Adobe Systems Incorporated
Mr. and Mrs. David Aha
Leile Aiken
Mr. Ralph W. Albrecht
Ms. Phyllis T. Albritton
Mr. and Mrs. Brent Alderfer
The Honorable and 

Mrs. George Aldrich
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Z. Aliber
Mr. and Mrs. Steven J. Allard
Mr. H. Inman Allen
Mr. James H. Allen
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Allen
Mrs. Tricia Allen
Mr. and Mrs. William G. 

Allen Sr.
Mr. Robert E. Alspaugh
Ms. Eleanor Alston
Mr. and Mrs. Edward A. Ambs
American International Group
Dr. Amin Amershi
Ms. Sarah J. Andersen
Ms. Angelique Anderson
Ms. Barbara E. Anderson
Ms. Cris Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Carl R. Anderson
Ms. Deborah J. Anderson
Mr. Eric Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Philip A. Anderson
Dr. Walter E. Anderson
Mr. David M. Andreotta
Dr. and Mrs. Charles A.

Andrews
Mr. Greg Angelides
Mr. Brian Anthony and 

Mr. Joe Fitzpatrick
The Arches Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Frederick H.

Armbrust
Dean and Carolyn Armentrout

Mr. Douglas N. Arnold and 
Ms. Maria-Carme Calderer

Ms. Gertrude Arnold
Mr. John M. Arnsparger and 

Ms. Susan L. Weingarten
Ms. Kazuko K. Artus
Ms. Ann Ashton
Mr. John Ashworth
AstraZeneca PLC
Mr. Roger Atkinson and 

Ms. Janet Arey
The Atlanta Peachtree 

Rotary Club
Mrs. Phoebe Atwood
Mr. and Mrs. Randal Auer
Ms. Pauline Austin
Mr. and Mrs. Moses Awe
Ms. Ann C. Bacon
Ms. Beverly A. Bacon
Ms. Kathleen M. Bader
Mr. Wallace K. Bailey
Ms. Mary Baird
Dr. and Mrs. Alfred L. Baker
Mr. Bill R. Baker
Mr. and Mrs. Damon W. Baker
Dr. Marjorie K. Balazs
Rev. Allan Baldwin
Mr. and Mrs. James S. Balloun
Mrs. Margaret L. Banister
Dr. David O. Bankole
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Bannan
Mr. Leo T. Barber Jr.
Ms. Patricia Y. Bario
Mr. Russell Baris and 

Ms. Marjorie Golden
Mr. and Mrs. Jim F. Barlow
Mr. Robert Barnum
Mr. James F. Barth
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence Barton
Mr. William G. Bateman
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Bates
Ms. Lorraine Bayer
Ms. Ann Beck
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth L. Becker
Ms. Elisabeth Cordy Beckstead
The Beggs Family Foundation
Ms. Erin Bell
Mr. Gregory Bell
Bellsouth Corporation
Mr. C.B. Benenson
Ms. Leora Benioff
Benjamin Peace Foundation
Mr. David L. Bennett
Mr. and Mrs. Donald V. Benson
Ms. Rebecca C. Bent
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Benton
Dr. and Mrs. Robert A. Berenson
Mr. and Mrs. Eric W. Berg
Mrs. Jean B. Bergmark
Mr. and Mrs. John W. Bergstrom
Ms. Lila W. Berle
Mr. and Mrs. Michael S. Berman
Mr. and Mrs. Warren L. Berry
Mr. David H. Berwald
Mr. Jonathan A. Best
Mr. Bruce Bidle
Ms. Rebecca J. Bigbee
Michael and Rosemarie Bikales
Dr. Robert D. Billinger Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Eivind A. Bjerke

Mr. David C. Black
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph E. Black
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Black
Eugenia Price/Joyce Blackburn

Foundation
Ms. Mary Blackhear
Mr. Fred H. Blackwood
Dr. Tallis Blalack and 

Ms. Katherine Weller
Mrs. Jean Blechman
Ms. Sue Blessing
Mr. and Mrs. Mitchell Block
Mr. and Mrs. Glendon W. Blume
Ms. Margaret H. Bly
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne T. Blythe
Mr. and Mrs. Joshua Boger
Henry and Stephanie Bond
Mr. and Mrs. William R. 

Bonsal III
Mr. Michael G. Borck and Ms.

Kathleen A. Brannan
Dr. Norma Bork
Mr. Timothy M. Boudreau
Ms. Roseann H. Bove
Mr. and Mrs. William I. 

Bowen Sr.
Mr. Brett Boye
Mr. Stephen Boyle
Ms. Joan N. Braddi
Mr. and Mrs. Ernest H. Bradley
Mr. Robert Bradshaw
Ms. Mary Jane Bragg
Mr. James E. Bramsen
Mr. and Mrs. Cabell Brand
Mr. and Mrs. Henry C. 

Brevard Jr.
Mr. Roger L. Brewer
Mr. Joseph Bridges
Ms. Rebecca S. Brinkley
Ms. Katherine K. Brobeck
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey I. Brodsky
Mrs. D. L. Broncucia
Mr. and Mrs. Peter R. Broner
Ms. Carol J. Brooks
Leigh W. Brooks, Ph.D.
Ms. Beth Brown
Mr. Christopher D. Brown
Mr. Corey Brown
Mr. Donald K. Brown
Mr. and Mrs. Orville Brown
Mr. and Mrs. Clyde R.

Brownstone
Ms. Barbara Bruner
Mr. Gordon A. Bryant
Dr. Margaret C. Buck
Mr. Larry J. Buckley
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas S.

Buechner III
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Bugg Jr.
Allen and Virginia Buhler
Mr. and Mrs. Richard W. Burg
Ms. Mary Burgher
Mr. Clarence Burleson Jr.
Ms. Deborah A. Burnette and

Ms. Melanie C. Eyre
Dr. and Mrs. Ned H. Burns
Mr. and Mrs. Steven F. Burrall
Mr. Allen D. Burt
Mr. and Mrs. Henry L. Burton
Mr. and Mrs. Eliot A. Butler



Donors During 2004-2005

This report reflects donations made during the Carter Center’s fiscal year: Sept. 1, 2004 – Aug. 31, 2005

38

Dr. and Mrs. Paul R. Butler
Dr. Martha J. Butterfield
Mr. Gary A. Butts and 

Ms. Katherine Long
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew W. Byrd
Ms. Ellie Byrd
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce C. Byrne
Mr. Demetrio E. Cabarga
Mrs. Barbara C. Cade
Mr. and Mrs. William H.

Calhoun
Ms. Anne L. Calkins
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence P.

Callahan
Mr. James Callanan and 

Ms. Elke Adler
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Callinan
Mr. Timothy J. Cambias Sr.
Mr. and Mrs. William W.

Cameron
Mr. and Mrs. Alan L. Cameros
Ms. Elizabeth E. Campbell
Ms. Karen Campbell
Mrs. W.F. Campbell
Mr. David G. Canzler
Ms. Kathleen Carey
Mr. David Carliner
Mr. David Carlino
Mr. Bertram W. Carp and 

Ms. Lynn McReynolds
Mr. and Mrs. John L. Carr
Mr. Robert E. Carr
Ms. Susan A. Carr
Mr. Dan Carrigan
Mr. and Mrs. James B. Carson Jr.
Mrs. Sylvia Cart
Mr. Greg Cartee
Dr. Ronald D. Carter and 

Ms. Judith Carter
Ms. Sharon Carter
Ms. Matilda R. Cartledge
Dr. Ana M. Castellanos
Mr. Neil Caudill
Dr. and Mrs. Richard E.

Cavanagh
Mr. and Mrs. Viktor E. Cea
Mrs. Ruth H. Celle
Dr. Louis Centofanti and 

Ms. Wanda Rachels
Ms. Yetta Chaiken
Mr. and Mrs. Donald B. Chalker
Ms. Mary Beth Chamberlain
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Chanin
Dr. and Mrs. Lloyd Chapman
Ms. Louisa Chapman
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Chase
Mr. and Mrs. Guy Cherwonuk
Mr. Daniel M. Chew
Chick-fil-A
Dr. Stephen J. Chiulli
Mr. and Mrs. David Christopher
Mr. John Church
Mrs. Julia Church
The Citigroup Private Bank
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Claeys
Mr. and Mrs. Barry Clapsaddle
Mr. Noble Clark
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley D. Clark II
Mr. and Mrs. Steven C. Clark
Mr. and Mrs. William D. Clarke

Ms. Linda M. Clary
Mrs. Billy G. Clayborn
Ted and Diva Clendenin
Chris Cline
Mr. and Mrs. Barrett Cobb
Keith and Wanda Coburn
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas M.

Cochrane
Mr. David H. Cofrin and Ms.

Christine Tryba-Cofrin
Mr. Mark B. Cohen and 

Ms. Sheila M. Fyfe
Mr. Michael Cohen and 

Ms. Patricia Collins
Dr. Johnnetta B. Cole
Ms. Millie McDaniel Cole
Mr. Lynn R. Coleman
Ms. Charlotte Coles
Mr. and Mrs. Richard B. Collins
Mr. Roger C. Conant
Mr. Merrill R. Conner
Mrs. Teresa M. Connick
Mr. Christopher Connolly and

Ms. Marjorie Liner
Dr. Kate Connor
Mr. and Mrs. John V. Conti
Mr. Robert A. Cook
Mr. William Cook and Ms.

Monika Mevenkamp
Ms. Margaret A. Cook-Levy
Mr. Ben I. Cooper
Mr. and Mrs. Warren N.

Coppedge
Ms. Ellyn Corey
Ms. Cassandra M. Cornell and

Mr. Michael R. McNally
Dr. and Mrs. John R. Cornell
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Cotton
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Couric
Mr. Greg Cowan
Mr. John H. Cox
Ms. Elizabeth B. Crane
Mr. Erik Crank and 

Mrs. Laura Arbilla
Mrs. Jay Crawford
Mr. Thomas H. Critchlow
Mr. Douglas Crocker II
Ms. Eleanor B. Crook
Mrs. Afton E. Crooks
Mr. and Mrs. C.R. Crowell
Mr. Adrian Cueto
Culver Family Foundation
Dr. F. Gary Cunningham
Mrs. Ben S. Custer
Mr. and Mrs. Eliot R. Cutler
Mr. and Mrs. Elbert F. Cutshaw
Ms. Marlene Czarkowski
Mr. James F. Dalton
Ms. Judith Ellen Daniel
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen S.

Danielsen
Mr. and Mrs. George C. Dannals
Ms. Leslie H. Danoff
Mr. Alf Danzie
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J. Darger
Data Processing Sciences
Dr. William H. Daughaday
Mr. Daniel H. Davenport
Ms. Meryl M. David
Mr. Roger Davidson

Ms. Adalyn Davis
Ms. Alice K. Davis
Mr. Christopher L. Davis
Ms. Janine K. Davis
Ms. Madeleine Davis
Ms. Margaret K. Davis
Mr. and Mrs. Richard S. Davis
Ms. Florence B. Dawson
Mr. Bruce C. Gunter and 

Ms. Kathleen Day
Mr. and Mrs. Deane K. Dayton
Mr. James H. de Graffenreidt Jr.
Gary and Linda De Kock
Ms. Nissa Partain de Lisle
Ms. Roseline De Muizon
Ms. Mary J. Dean
Mr. and Mrs. Charles A.

DeBenedittis
Mr. John Deeter
Mr. and Mrs. Alan Deichler
Mr. Kenneth Deken
Mr. William T. Delany
Wayne and Lynn Delker
Dell Foundation
Ms. Carol A. Denison
Mr. and Mrs. Geoffrey E. J.

Dennis
Mr. Jeffrey Dennis
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Van Auken

Dennler
Mr. Kevin Derby
Ms. Lopa S. Desai
Ms. Carole Desnoes
Ms. Ludell Deutscher
Ms. Tina Devries
Mr. and Mrs. Charles F. Dewald
Mr. George T. Dewey III
Mr. Gordon Dexter and 

Ms. Barbara A. Grandolfo
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin S. Dibble
Mr. and Mrs. Mark S. Dichter
Dr. and Mrs. W. Reed Dickinson
Dickson Family Fund
Mr. David B. Dillard
Dr. Leland W. Doan
Ms. Heidi Wright Dobrzak
Mr. and Mrs. David E. Dodge
Ms. Sarah C. Doering
Mr. Robert L. Doll and 

Ms. Ronny L. Savage-Doll
Ms. Sheila P. Dominy
Mr. James Donnell
Mr. Gary D. Dorminey
Mr. Roy A. Dorsey
Ms. Bonnie B. Dorwart
Mr. and Mrs. David Doseff
Mr. and Mrs. John Doucette
Ms. Jean Wallace Douglas
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Doumani
Ms. Elizabeth Douthitt
Ms. Rebecca Dowdakin and 

Ms. Flora McMartin
Mr. Mark E. Dowhy
Ms. Linda S. Downs
Mrs. Margaret Downward
Mr. Thomas R. Doyle
Mr. and Mrs. Clarence

Drummond
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Dryer
Ms. Dorothy Du Bose

Mr. Richard A. DuBord
Family of Ethel Lee Duewer
Mr. Drew Dolak and Ms.

Kathleen E. Duffy
Mr. Norman J. Duffy
Mr. Bruce Duke
Mr. Michael Dull
Keith and Jane Dunavant 

Fund of the Community
Foundation of North Texas

Michael Dunbar Family
Charitable Fund

Mr. and Mrs. Robert D. Duncan
Mr. and Mrs. Mark W. Dundon
Mr. Richard Dunkelberger
Ms. Dorene M. Dunn
Mr. Michael Durbin
Ms. Kathleen Durdin
Mrs. Mildred G. Durham
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Dybeck
Ms. Darcy J. Dye
Mr. Douglas Dye
Dr. and Mrs. Richard D. Dyer
Dr. Margaret J. Early
Mr. and Mrs. W. Frank 

Easterlin Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Ben Eastman
Dr. Al Eaton
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Eaton
Mr. and Mrs. Walter Eberspacher
Mr. and Mrs. Frank M. Eccles
Mr. Charles E. Edmonson
Ms. Kimberly A. Edwards
Ms. Mary Kaye Edwards
Mr. Nick Egelanian
Ms. Dana Eggerts
Mr. and Mrs. Bryon K. Ehlmann
Mr. Albert N. Eisenberg
The Honorable and 

Mrs. Stuart E. Eizenstat
Mr. and Mrs. Gayne R. Ek
Mr. and Mrs. David T. Elliott
Mr. and Mrs. Jack K. Ellison
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J.

Ellsworth
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel M.

Ellsworth
Mrs. Julia S. Elsee
Mr. and Mrs. James P. Elster
Ms. Audrey F. Embs
Emerson Ecologics
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Emery
Mr. Richard S. Emmet
The Honorable and Mrs. James

England
Dr. Mary Jane England
Mr. Frederick Entwistle and 

Dr. Carol Entwistle
Epworth United Methodist

Church Women
Ms. Gail M. Ervin
Estate of Gary B. Esten
Mr. Max Etheart
Mr. Arthur Evans
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Evans
Mr. Robert V. Evers
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J.

Ewersmann Jr.
Dr. David Ewing and 

Dr. June Ewing
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Ms. Lucia P. Ewing
Mr. Gerald D. Eyestone
Mr. William Michael Fagen and

Ms. Elizabeth McCleary
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Fahey Jr.
Marjorie A. Farley
Mr. and Mrs. Gary P. Fazzino
Mr. Jay M. Feinman
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Felt
Dr. Flora Fennimore
Dr. R. Fenton-May
Dr. and Mrs. Emmet Ferguson Jr.
Mrs. Enza A. Ferrante
Mr. Alvin M. Ferst Jr.
Ms. Mary K. Field
Ms. Wendy Fiering
First Congregational Church of

Litchfield, Connecticut
Mr. and Mrs. Perry W. Fisher
The Reverend Sue Fitzgerald
Mr. and Mrs. Tony Fitzgerald
Mr. and Mrs. Charles E. Fix
Mr. Christopher Flament
Ms. Elsebeth Flarup
Mr. and Mrs. Eli M. Fletcher
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Fletcher
Mr. and Mrs. Denny Flick
Mr. and Mrs. Maurice R. Fliess
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Flood
Mr. Ausrowe L. Florence
Rufus and Nancy Follette
Mrs. Anne B. Folsom
Mr. Falko Forbrich
Mr. Robert M. Forcey
Mr. and Mrs. Jerome Forkosh
Mr. and Mrs. Milton Formby
Ms. Nancy V. Foster
Mr. and Mrs. Roy Fountain
Mr. and Mrs. F.B. Fowler Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Arthur W. Frank Jr.
Mr. Robert Frankland and 

Ms. Helen Owens
Ms. Darlene F. Franklin
Ms. Bonnie Frazer
Freddie Mac Foundation
Mr. S. David Freeman
Ms. Jeanette French
Mr. Adam L. Frey
Mr. Max L. Fritzler and Ms.

Gayle Haugen
Mr. Phillip T. Fujii
Ms. Cheryl Furey
Mr. and Mrs. John B. Gabusi
Mr. and Mrs. Stanely A.

Galanski
Ms. Carol Gallant
Ms. Cynthia A. Gallie
Mr. and Mrs. William R. 

Gamber II
Mr. and Mrs. David Gamper
Mr. and Mrs. Juan M. 

Garcia-Passalacqua
Ms. Caroline Gardner
Dr. Sydney A. Garrett
Mr. and Mrs. Martin Garvey
Ms. Frances R. Gaver
Ms. Larae Gayler
Mr. Greg Gerhard
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald J. Gibson
Ms. Lois Giffen

The Honorable Gordon D.
Giffin

Mr. Reg Gilliam
Mr. Michael F. Gilligan and 

Ms. Anne K. Helgen
Dr. Patricia I. Gillis
Mr. Timothy L. Gillis
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Gilmartin
Mr. and Mrs. Hubert Gilmore
Mr. Lawrence D. Gilson
Mr. T.E. Gingrich and Ms. Julie

A. Wollam-Gingrich
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A.

Giordano
Mr. William A. Glasgow
Mr. and Mrs. Frank Glass
Mr. Arthur J. Glatfelter
GlaxoSmithKline Foundation
Ms. Marsha Gleeman
Ms. Susan Gale Gleghorn
Mr. and Mrs. Edward F. Gliwa Jr.
Dr. M. A. Glover
Mr. and Mrs. Bobby D. Godbee
Mr. and Mrs. Nitin Godiwala
Ms. Sybil Walzer Goepper
Mr. Jack R. Goetz
Mr. Martin J. Goldberg
Ms. Laura S. Goldblum
Jackson and Irene Golden 1989

Charitable Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Jack Goldstein
Mr. and Mrs. Bradley P.

Goodman
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A.

Goodrich
Mr. Gordon L. Goodwin
Mrs. Pat Gordin
Mr. David Graber
Ms. Linda E. Graden
Mr. and Mrs. Robert D. Graff
Mr. and Mrs. David B. Graham
Mr. and Mrs. Kyle Granholm
Ms. Barbara Grant and Ms.

Maureen MacCarthy
Ms. Judith Grassilli
Ms. Kelly B. Gray
Great Western Bank
Greater Bridgeport Area

Foundation
Ms. Nancy M. Grebe
Mr. and Mrs. Colin Green
Mr. Douglas Green
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph H. Green
Mr. and Mrs. Chesley M. Greene
Ms. Connie Greenfield
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Greenman
Mr. James Gregg
Ms. Cathryn Gries
Ms. Katrina Griessman
Dr. E. Rawson Griffin III and Ms.

D. Clark Griffin-Eddings
Linda J. Griffith and Scott K.

Kellogg
Mr. Charles W. Grigg
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph F. Grinnell
Mr. and Mrs. Frank Grobman
Mr. and Mrs. Charley Gross
Mr. Joseph W. Groutage
Ms. Diana Grove
Mr. Richard Grover

Ms. Georgia Grummon
GSF Mortgage Corporation
Gualala Fund at The Boston

Foundation
The Guinness Family

Foundation of The Cleveland
Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Ken Gunther
Ms. Karen Gupta
Jake and Jennifer Gusman
Mr. and Mrs. Carlton Gutschick
Mr. Johathan T. Guyton
Ms. Linda Haas
The Joanne and Peter Haas Jr.

Fund of the Marin Community
Foundation

Mr. Mark Haber
Mr. and Mrs. Mark A. Hackett
Dr. Eleanor Hadley
Ms. Mary Haering
Ms. Alexis B. Hafken
Mr. Martin Haig
Mr. David P. Hale and 

Ms. Laura A. Torres
Ms. Anne Cathcart Hall
Mr. and Mrs. Donald R. Hall
Mr. Robert S. Hall
Ms. Elaine Halliday
Ms. Gaye L. Hamilton
Mr. and Mrs. John J. Hamilton
Mr. and Mrs. Herman H.

Hamilton
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Hamilton
Mr. and Mrs. David G. Hannay
Ms. Patricia Hansen
Mr. and Mrs. Sam Harben Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Harden
Ms. Mary L. Hardesty
Dr. John S. Harding
Mrs. L.G. Hardman Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. John B. Hardman
Mr. Charles L. Hardwick
Ms. Laura M. Hardy
Ms. Lynn T. Haremski
Mr. Steve Harkreader
Mr. Dennis Harms and 

Ms. Susan Bergman
Mr. E.C. Harper
Mr. and Mrs. William T. Harper
Ms. Patricia G. Harrington
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Harris
Mr. and Mrs. Paul W. Harris
Mr. and Mrs. Robert H. Harris
Ms. Sara Harris
Mr. Wayne Harsh
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Hart
Mr. and Mrs. G. Keith Hartge
Ms. Ellen Weaver Hartman
Ms. Anne B. Hartnett
Mr. and Mrs. William L. Haskins
Mr. Stephen Hatcher
Dr. William P. Hausdorff
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W.

Haviland
Dr. and Mrs. George N. Hay
Mr. Norman M. Hayes
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick Hearing
Ms. Ellen M. Heath
Mr. Robert M. Heath
Mr. Marvin Hedegard

Mr. and Mrs. James A. Heindl
Mr. Sascha Hellen
Mr. Russell Helms and 

Ms. Wendy Greene
Ms. Laurel Henderson
Ms. Mary Hendrickson and 

Mr. Duncan E. Anderson
Ms. Kimberly Henney
Ms. Toni D. Hennike
Mr. and Mrs. Kim Henry
Mr. Joseph E. Herbst
Ms. Alexis M. Herman
Ms. Jean Herman
Ms. Mary D. Herr
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J.

Herrmann
Mr. Stanley N. Hershey
Dr. and Mrs. Francis C. 

Hertzog Jr.
Mr. Edward D. Hess and 

Ms. Katherine L. Acuff
Mrs. F. Hesselgesser
The William and Flora Hewlett

Foundation
Dr. Kenneth R. Hey
Mrs. Juliane Heyman
Ms. Virginia Hiatt
Dr. and Mrs. Carlton T. Hicks
Ms. Anne E. Higgins
Dr. and Mrs. David W. Hill
Ms. Dorothy L. Hill
Mr. and Mrs. Lee H. Hill Jr.
Leland Hill
Mr. R. Glenn Hilliard
Ms. Avis P. Hillips
Mr. and Mrs. John Hinman
Dr. and Mrs. Dar-Veig Ho
Ms. Nancy Hoagland
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne E.

Hochstetler
Mr. James Hodges
Ms. Jane E. Holcombe
Mr. Fred H. Hollenberg
Mr. Steven Hollingsworth and

Ms. Daidee Springer
Dr. Joseph G. Hollowell Jr. and

Ms. Emily A. Russell
Ms. Mary E. Holly
Mr. Carey C. Holman
Mrs. Joan B. Holman
Mr. Robert Holmes
Holy Trinity Sharing Fund
Dr. Paul Holzman and 

Ms. Barbara Crass
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Hooks
Dr. and Mrs. Linton Hopkins
Dr. Janet Horenstein
Ms. Louise F. Horney
Mr. Steven Horvath
Mr. Wayne Horvitz
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Hosking
Dr. Alvin E. Houser
Mr. and Mrs. Walter J. Howard
Mr. and Mrs. Ernest M. Howell
Ms. Hilda Howell
Mr. Albert Hu
Dr. Victor Huang
Mr. Donald H. Hubbs
Mr. and Mrs. Darwin A. Hudson
Ms. Monica Hughes
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Mr. and Mrs. Robert Hugi
Mr. and Mrs. C. Curtis Hunt
Mr. and Mrs. John T. Hunt
Mr. Farley A. Hunter
Mr. and Mrs. G. David Hurd
Mr. Phil Hurt
Mr. and Mrs. Alan D. Husak
Dr. Wallace N. Hyde and

Ambassador Jeanette W. Hyde
Mr. and Mrs. Michael H.

Iacolucci
Ms. Jacqueline Ikeda
Illinois Tool Works Foundation
Images Everywhere
Indoor Air
Admiral and Mrs. Bobby R.

Inman
International Humanitarian

Foundation
Mr. George Inverso and 

Ms. Emma Garkavi
Mr. and Mrs. B. William Irlbeck
Ms. Ellin M. Irwin
Mr. Wallace Irwin Jr.
The Reverend Thomas P. Ivory
Mr. and Mrs. John Izard
Mr. Mark H. Izard and 

Ms. Janet Humphreys
Chris and Val Jackson
Ms. Deborah J. Jackson
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Jackson
Mr. and Mrs. Anthony Jacobs
Mr. and Mrs. Paul J. Jacobs
Mr. and Mrs. Marc Jacoby
Ms. Diane S. Jacqmin
Mr. Sharad Jain
Mr. Robert C. Jambou and 

Mrs. Diana June Blalock
Mr. and Mrs. Roderick Jameson
Janus
Mr. Jerry J. Jasinowski and 

Ms. Isabel Hyde
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Jay
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Jennaro
Mr. Renz D. Jennings
Ms. Marjorie Jennings
Mr. Patrick Jennings
Mr. Peter Jessen
Mr. and Mrs. C. Gene Jester
Dr. Michael L. Jesudason
Ms. Betty W. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Charles A. Johnson
Mr. Darwin Johnson and Ms.

Deborah Bombard
Mr. and Mrs. Irving Johnson
Ms. Luci Baines Johnson
Ms. Marilyn Johnson
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas D. Johnson
Mrs. Claire M. Johnston
Mrs. Boisfeuillet Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Burton L. Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Chris Jones
General and Mrs. David C. Jones
Ms. Deborah Jones
Ms. Elsie H. Jones
Mr. Stephen Jones and 

Ms. Carol Flint
Dr. Johanna R. Jorizzo
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Julien
Ms. Katherine Kademian

Ms. Marsha A. Kademian
Mr. and Mrs. John S. Kahler
Mr. Richard M. Kail
Mrs. Roland Kampmeier
Ms. Anne N. Kast
Dr. Charles D. Kay and 

Ms. Margaret Tragesser-Kay
Mr. Charley Kearns
Mr. and Mrs. Robert E. Keith Jr.
Mr. Joseph Kelaghan
Mr. David J. Keller
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey S. Kelley
Mr. Kent A. Kelley and Ms.

Mary Louise Beardsley
Mr. and Mrs. Myron T. Kelley
Ms. Annita Kelly
Mr. David W. Kelly
Mr. J. Michael Kelly
Mr. and Mrs. Peter G. Kelly
Mr. and Mrs. Peter J. Kelly
Mr. and Mrs. Scot Kelly
Mr. Jonathan L. Kempner
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Kennedy
Ms. Joan M. Kent
Mr. Stephen W. Kent
Mrs. Jill B. Keogh
Donald and Marilyn Keough

Foundation
Ms. Mary Kester
Mr. and Mrs. Michael G. Kilgore
Mr. Raymond Killgrove
The Reverend Billy Kim
Mrs. Collier C. Kimball
Ms. Brenda K. King
Mrs. George S. King
King & Spalding
Ms. Patricia Kinman
David and Marilyn Kirk
Ms. Katherine M. Kirmse and

Mr. Keith Russ
Mr. and Mrs. Donald C. Klawiter
Ms. Sherri L. Klebe
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Klein
Ms. Vicky Kleinman
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan B. Kluger
Ms. Ursula Knaeusel
Ms. Marily Knieriemen
Ms. Esther P. Knierim
Mr. Robert N. Knight Jr.
Ms. Sandra L. Kobel
Mr. Joseph Kolshak
Mr. Peter Kondor
Konu Town
Ms. Eleanor M. W. Kornbau
Dr. and Mrs. M. Roman Kotlarek
Mr. Elias G. Koury
Mr. Robert C. Kowerski
Mr. Donald Kraft
Mr. Orin S. Kramer
Mr. and Mrs. Abraham Krasnoff
Mr. Frank Kratovil
Dr. Bruce Krawisz and Dr. Jane

Krawisz
Delmar and Sigrid Krehbiel
Ms. Melinda S. Krei
Mr. and Mrs. John Kreitler
Mr. Steven Kremm and 

Ms. Susan Corbett
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Kresge
Mr. and Mrs. Neil Krivanek

Ms. Carole Kronenberg
Phillip E. and Mary Krueger
Mr. and Mrs. Ehren S. Kruger
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W.

Krughoff
Drs. Robert F. and 

Ruth H. Krywicki
Mr. Nickolas J. Kyser
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J.

Labowsky
Mr. Adam J. Laden and 

Ms. Liz Lieberman
Mrs. Julia Ladner
Mr. and Mrs. Michael S.

Laflamme
Mr. George Lagario
Mr. John R. Laing and Ms.

Kathleen B. King
Ms. Debra Lamfers
Ambassador and Mrs. James T.

Laney
Mr. Richard Lapidos
Dr. Margot C. LaPointe
Carl and Lillian Larrick
Mr. Kent Larsen
Mr. and Mrs. Robert F.

Lassandrello
Mr. Thomas A. Last
Mr. Solomon Lausch
Mr. and Mrs. Rejean Laverdiere
Mr. and Mrs. Robert E. Layman
Mrs. Shirley Lazonby
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick T. Leahy
Mr. and Mrs. David Ledrick
Mr. and Mrs. Eugene C. Lee
Dr. and Mrs. John E. Lee
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley Lee
Ms. Julie Lee-Ancajas
The Reverend and Mrs. Richard

J. Lehman
Mr. David O. Leiwant
Mr. Thomas P. Lemke
Mr. and Mrs. Harold Lenhart
Mr. Jay Leno
Mr. Richard A. Lenon
Ms. Suzanne L. Lerner
Mr. Jan Leschly
Dr. Lotte Leschly and 

Mr. Jan Leschly
Mr. Corey D. Lesh
Mr. and Mrs. Larry N. Lesh
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond M.

Leuthold
Mr. Jeremy Leven and 

Ms. Roberta Danza
Ms. Beatrice Lewis
Mr. H.R. Lewis
Mr. Richard Lewis
Dr. Joyce A. LiBethe and 

Dr. Gary T. Raflo
Mr. Wilbert Lick
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Lieb
Mrs. Mary E. Liebman
Mr. Stephen Lilienthal
Mr. Mark Lindborg and Ms.

Laurie Parson
Dr. Stan Lindenfeld
Mr. and Mrs. Frank E. Lindquist
Mr. Eugene M. Link and Ms.

Ann Marie Hirsch
Mr. and Mrs. Roger C. Linn

Mr. and Mrs. Peter Lion
Dr. Hester J. Lipscomb
Mr. and Mrs. Harry Lipstein
Mr. Robert Livsey and 

Ms. Terri Boyd
Dr. Michael Lloyd
Ms. Dorothy Lockspeiser
Mr. and Mrs. James Logie
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Lohin
Ms. Edith A. Lohman
Mr. and Mrs. George Lohrer
Ms. Carroll Long
Mr. Harold K. Lonsdale and 

Ms. Bryn Hazell
Mrs. Gay M. Love
Mr. and Mrs. John Lovitt
The Honorable James G.

Lowenstein
Reed Lowenstein and Melanie

Hanan Philanthropic Fund 
of The Jewish Community
Foundation of Greater 
Kansas City

Dr. Willa Dean Lowery
Lubrizol Corporation
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Ludema
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. Luebke
Ms. D’Arcy Luna
Mr. Eric A. Lutkin
Mrs. Edgar F. Luton
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas V. Lydon
Ms. Joanne Lyman
Ms. Marian Lyons
Ms. Anne Marie Macari
The John D. and Catherine T.

MacArthur Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. James A. Mack
Mr. Christopher M. Mackey and

Ms. Donna L. Cherniak
Mr. Grant Macleod
Ms. Donna C. MacPherson
Mr. Matt MacWilliams
Dr. and Mrs. Robert L. Maddox
Dr. James H. Maguire
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Mahan
Mr. and Mrs. George Mallouk
The Honorable and Mrs. Charles

T. Manatt
Ms. Catherine S. Manegold
Dr. Robert W. Mann
Ms. Carol Mannen
Mr. A. Russell Marane
Mr. and Mrs. James F. 

Marchman III
Mr. David R. Mares and Ms. Jane

Milner Mares
Ms. Susie W. Margolin
Ms. Petra A. Marquart
Ms. Gertrude Marquay
Mr. Colin A. Marshall and 

Ms. Maureen A. Ulicny
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. Marshall
Mr. J. Thomas Martin
The Honorable Anne C.

Martindell
Mr. Thomas F. Maser
Mr. John S. Mason
Julien and Helen Mason
Mr. and Mrs. Ken Mason
Mr. and Mrs. Lowell B. Mason
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Mason Brothers Architectural
Salvage

Ms. Suzanne Massey
Ms. Annik J. Mathias
Mr. and Mrs. Steve Mathias
Mr. and Mrs. Benjamin L.

Mathis
Mr. and Mrs. Stewart K. Mattson
Mr. Michael A. Matuson and

Ms. Jean M. Suplick
Albert and Myriam Mauch
Mr. Kurt R. Maurer
Max Re House
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Maxwell
Mr. and Mrs. Marc Mayer
Mr. and Mrs. Oscar G. Mayer
Dr. Wallace D. Mays
Mr. Raymond Mazurek
Mr. Walter L. Mc Intosh
Mr. and Mrs. Alex F. McCalla
Ms. Clare McCamy
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen McCarter
Mr. and Mrs. George R.

McCarthy
Mr. and Mrs. Stuart McCarty
Mr. Vern E. McCarty and 

Ms. Susan Schlittler-McCarty
Mrs. Russell McCaughan
Mr. and Mrs. David E. McClean
Mr. Wade C. McCluggage
Mr. William Tom McCollister Jr.
Mr. Doug McConnell
Col. and Mrs. Richard D.

McFarland, USA (Ret.)
Dr. and Mrs. Sam G. McFarland
Mr. John Warren McGarry and

Ms. Marietta Ethier
Dr. Mary Jo McGee-Brown
Mr. and Mrs. James T. 

McIntyre Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. David L. McKee
Professor Neil McKelvie
Mr. and Mrs. Steven A.

McKenna
Mr. and Mrs. Hugh J. McLellan
Mr. Patrick McMahon
Dr. Rene McNall-Knapp
Mr. S. McNally
Ms. Yone McNally
Ms. Virginia L. McPhearson
Mr. and Mrs. Walter McRackan
Ms. Marilyn J. Gohr McTaggart
The Honorable Ned R.

McWherter
Mr. James Meeks
Ms. Bonnijane G. Mehlhop
Mr. and Mrs. Mathias

Meinzinger
Mr. Joseph Meiring
Eddye Melaragro
Bill and Marie Melton
Dr. Hugh E. Meredith
Mr. Pat Meriam
Mr. John Merryman and Ms.

Jennifer Carr
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher

Messina
Mr. W. Peter Metz
Mr. and Mrs. Richard L.

Michaux

Michigan Campus Compact
Mr. David Wayne Miedzinski
Mr. and Mrs. C. David Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Donald L. Miller
Mr. Douglas E. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Edward R. Miller
The Honorable and Mrs. G.

William Miller
Mr. and Mrs. James H. Miller
Mr. Larry Miller
Ms. Margaret E. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Martin J. Miller
Ms. Patricia J. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Virgil L. Miller
Mrs. Janene Milliken
Mr. Andrew Mills
Mr. John Mills
Mr. Phillip Minix and 

Ms. Gretchen Blythe
Miss Merle Mitchell
Mr. E. Dennis Mock
Ms. Sharon K. Mohler
Mr. H. Mohrenweiser
Dr. and Mrs. James J. Mongan
Mr. David Moninger
Mrs. Stella Montavon
Mr. Richard T. Monteith
Mr. and Mrs. Richard L. Moody
Mr. and Mrs. James F. Moore
Mr. and Mrs. Leslie Moore
Ms. Anne C. Moos
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis Moran
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas F. Moran
J.P. Morgan Chase.
Mr. and Mrs. David Morris
Mr. Harold E. Morris
Mr. Robert J. Morstad
Ms. Jill L. Mortensen and 

Ms. S. Kay Phillips
The Honorable Alfred H. Moses
The Honorable Ambler H. 

Moss Jr.
Ann and Jerry Moss
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Mount
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth F.

Mountcastle Jr.
Mr. Pushkor Mukerji
Mr. Richard A. Muller
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher G.

Mumford
Mr. Arshad Mumtaz
Dr. and Mrs. Robert S. 

Munford III
Ms. Myra Munson
Mr. David Murphy
Mr. and Mrs. Edward Murray
Dr. Susan Murray
Mr. Richard Myers
Ms. Susan Myers
Myung Sung Church
Ms. Ethel C. Naffah
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew Nagle
Dr. Carolyn Nash
Dr. and Mrs. Daniel E. Nathan
Mr. Irvin B. Nathan
National Geographic Society
National Instruments
Dr. and Mrs. George W.

Naumburg Jr.

Dr. and Mrs. John J. Naveau
Mr. William B. Neely
Mr. Seth Neiman and 

Dr. Lauren Speeth
Ms. Lisa A. Nelms
Ms. Carol Nelson
Mrs. Daisy B. Nelson
Dr. Diana F. Nelson
Mr. and Mrs. Earnest J. Nelson
Ms. Achsah Nesmith
Mr. and Mrs. Frederic Neuburger
Mr. Daniel Nevins
New Leaf Fund
Mrs. Bernice Newburg
Ms. Teresa A. Nicholl
Mr. Ezra H. Nichols
Mr. and Mrs. Joe Nicholson
Dr. Aileen Nicoletti
Nigerian Women Association 

of Georgia
Mr. and Mrs. George O. 

Nokes Jr.
Ms. Pamela K. Nolen
Mr. Claude Nolle and 

Ms. Nancy E. Badura
Mr. Alan Nordin
Mr. Gary Norton
Mr. Robert T. Nutt
Dr. Joseph Nye
Ms. Kelly E. O’Brien
Mr. and Mrs. Gary O’Callaghan
Mr. Daniel O’Donnell
Ms. Mary L. O’Keefe
Ms. Lyndi B. O’Laughlin
Ms. Terri O’Quin
Mr. George W. O’Quinn
Mr. Dennis W. Ohearn
Ms. Hilda Oliven
David and Lynn Oliver
Dr. Gilbert S. Omenn and 

Ms. Martha A. Darling
Mr. and Mrs. Randy Ong
Dr. and Mrs. Kent L. Oots
Mr. and Mrs. Mark F. Opel
Orange County Community

Foundation
Mrs. Eunice B. Ordman and 

Dr. Edward T. Ordman
Ms. Anne V. Osborn
Ms. Hilvie E. Ostrow
Ms. Susan Otto
Mr. William H. Overby
Mrs. Dorothy B. Padgett
Ms. Le Gene Padgett
Mrs. Lisa Page
Dr. and Mrs. William P. Palmore
Dr. and Mrs. Neil Pape
Parachin Design Studios
Dr. Lois J. Paradise
Mr. Richard A. Park
Dr. Tae K. Park
Ms. Anna Maria Parker
Ms. Geraldine J. Parker
Mr. and Mrs. John Parker
Mr. and Mrs. Mark S. Pash
Mr. Douglas Passage
Dr. and Mrs. Robert A. Pastor
Mr. Samir Patel
Dr. Joyce M. Paterson

Mr. and Mrs. Christopher D.
Patton

Mr. and Mrs. Gary Payne
Mr. and Mrs. Steven N. Payne
Ms. Sandra J. Payzant
Ms. Millicent Peabody
Mr. Daniel J. Peacock
Mr. and Mrs. William Peake
Mr. Dwight Pedersen
Mr. Stephen Peet
Mr. Stephen J. Pelleriti
Mr. Leonard Pellettiri and 

Ms. Mary B. Rose
Dr. and Mrs. E. Raymond

Penhollow
Mr. Michael Peretzian
Mr. Rodney M. Perlman
Mr. and Mrs. Godfrey Perrott
Mr. Frank L. Perry
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas C. Perry
Ms. Marcia C. Peters
Mr. and Mrs. Henry Peterson
Dr. John T. Peterson and 

Dr. Mary Vander Maten
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Peterson
Mr. Nicholas Petraglia
The Honorable Donald K.

Petterson
Mr. and Mrs. Robert C. Pew
Mr. J. Randall Peyser
Mr. and Mrs. David P. Phillips
Ms. Tammy Phillips
Mr. James B. Phipps
Mr. and Mrs. David Charles

Pickard
Mr. and Mrs. Jack E. Pierce
Ms. Una Marie Pierce
Mr. and Mrs. Lee Pinnell
Mr. Anders Platou
Ms. Lynn Ploughman
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas S. Plum
Mr. and Mrs. William M.

Plummer
Mr. Dan Buttimer and Dr.

Elizabeth Plunkett-Buttimer
Ms. Angelina T. Pommier
Mr. Waitat Peter Poon
Ms. Sheila Poore
Mr. William Wade Pope
Ms. Alice Popkin
Ms. Martha Popper
Mr. Raymond L. Poston Jr.
Tim and Linda B. Potter
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce Powell
Ms. Karen D. Powell
Mr. Thomas A. Power
The Honorable Frank Press and

Dr. Billie K. Press
Mr. and Mrs. J. Stephen

Prestwood
Ms. Donna Price
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory K. Price
Mr. Chesley H. Prince and 

Mrs. Cathy A. Wilkins
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Pritchard Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. William M.

Protheroe
Mrs. Elizabeth P. Prothro
Mr. Will Provost
The Prudential Foundation
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Mr. and Mrs. Terry L. Pruitt
Thomas Pruitt Builders
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph J. Pulliam
Ms. Anne L. Putnam
Dr. Alma Quigley
Mr. Loyd Y. Quinn
Dr. and Mrs. Leonard Radecki
Mr. William L. Raiser
Mr. and Mrs. Donald J. Raithel
Ms. Mary S. Ramseur
Mr. and Mrs. Ned Rand Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Peter A. Raquet
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Rathert
Mr. Kurt N. Rathjen
Ms. Amelie L. Ratliff
Mr. and Mrs. William T. 

Ratliff III
Mr. Rajesh K. Raut
Mr. and Mrs. Arthur Ravicz
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Rea
Mr. Bennie C. Reagan
Miss Alice C. Reaves
Mr. and Mrs. L. Drew Redden
Mr. N. Damodar Reddy
Mr. Prentiss Reed
Mr. and Mrs. D. Paul Regan
Mr. Michael Reich and 

Ms. Ann Terry
Ms. Grace Reichenberger
Mr. Richard M. Reilly
Mr. Mark Reinhardt
Mr. Michael J. Repass
Mr. and Mrs. William Revelle
Ms. Nancy Reyes
Linda K. and David Reynolds Jr.
Mr. Skip Rhodes
Ms. Muriel E. Riano
Ms. Pamela Richard
Mr. and Mrs. Anthony J.

Richards
Dr. and Mrs. Frank O. 

Richards Sr.
Dr. and Mrs. Frank O. 

Richards Jr.
Mr. James H. Richardson
Ms. Shelly Riden
Mr. Clarence H. Ridley
Rivendell Bicycle Works
Mr. and Mrs. Hal Rives
Mr. Jerry B. Roberts
Ms. Teresa L. Roberts
Nora Roberts Foundation
Mr. Patrick F. Robertson
Mr. Sanford R. Robertson
Ms. Shelby B. Robertson
Mr. Douglas G. Robinson
Dr. and Mrs. Edward H.

Robinson
Mr. G. Chase Robinson
Dr. Harriet L. Robinson
Mr. Paul V. Robinson
Mr. Ted E. Rodd
Mr. Alexander R. H. Rodriguez
Ms. Sheila Roher
Ms. Laura Rohlik
Mr. George W. Rohrig
Robert and Barbara Rohwer
Ms. Ethel G. Romm
Dr. and Mrs. Edward H. Romond
Mr. Rod Roquemore

Mr. and Mrs. Richard Ross
Dr. Randi V. Rosvoll
Mr. Rob Rosztoczy
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Roth
Ms. Rose Roth
Mr. and Mrs. Jack R. Rued
Dr. Ernesto Ruiz-Tiben and 

Mrs. Emilia Ruiz
Mr. Herman J. Russell
Dr. George S. Rust and 

Dr. Cynthia T. Rust
Rutgers University
Ms. Julie Ruth
Ms. Vickie Rutkowski
Mr. and Mrs. Nicholas M. Ryan
Ms. Carina A. Ryder
Michael and Cindy Saarela
The SAD Foundation
Mr. Eric Sahn
Dr. Marla E. Salmon
Mr. Noel D. Sanborn
Mr. Peter S. P. Sanborn
Ms. Felicia Sanchez
Mr. Myron L. Sandberg and 

Dr. Marva J. Dawn-Sandberg
Mrs. Deen Day Sanders
Ms. Kendal C. Sandlin
Mr. Don W. Sands
Ms. Yoriko Saneyoshi
Mr. and Mrs. Floyd C. Sanger Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathon D.

Saphier
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Sapsford
Mr. and Mrs. Russell G. Sarner
Mr. and Mrs. Myrl Sauder
Sauder Manufacturing Company
Ms. Marjorie Sauers
Mr. and Mrs. Michael R.

Saunders
Ms. Lisa M. Scales
Mr. and Mrs. Don R. Scarbrough
Mr. Michael B. Schaedle
Mr. Philip A. Schaefer
Mr. Tom Schaffnit
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D.

Schattman
Ms. Gail Schatz
Dr. Ronald Schechter
Ms. Joanne Schehl
Mr. and Mrs. Richard F. Schiferl
Ms. Mary Schlechter
Mr. Mark J. Schmaltz
Dr. and Mrs. Lanny D. Schmidt
Dr. Ruth A. Schmidt
Mr. and Mrs. Darwin W. Schmitt
Mr. Bruce E. Schnittman
Ms. Ruth Schoenbeck
Mr. Mark W. Schoppe
Mr. and Mrs. John G. Schreiber
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth L.

Schueller
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Schule
Mr. and Mrs. William

Schumacher
Mr. David A. Schwartz
The Honorable and Mrs.

William B. Schwartz Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Carl Schweser
Mr. Nicholas E. Scordalakes
Craig and Evelyn Scott

Ms. Marjorie Y. Scott
Mr. Anthony Sease
Stephen and Janice Seele
Mr. and Mrs. William H.

Seemann III
Mr. Paul Seiden
Mr. Robert C. Seidman
Dr. Timothy H. Self and 

Dr. Melissa Matlock-Self
Mr. Marc M. Seltzer
Serge Semenenko Family

Foundation
Dr. Jane K. Setlow
Mr. Michael F. Sexton
Ms. Glenda Seyfarth
Seyfarth Shaw Charitable

Foundation
Mr. Charles M. Shaffer Jr.
Mr. Lalit Shahani
Dr. and Mrs. Naveed Shams
Dr. Lloyd S. Shapley
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy Sharon
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Sharp
Mr. Scott G. Shaw
Sheffield Harrold Charitable

Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Dudley Sheffler
Ms. Emily S. Sheketoff
Ms. Del K. Sheldon
Ms. Susan B. Shelton
Ms. Sally A. Shelton-Colby
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen C.

Sheppard
Dr. Lincoln Shimomura
Shin Poong Pharmaceutical
Mr. Harold J. Shinsato
Mr. and Mrs. Sudheer Shirali
Ms. Dorothy Shirk
Mr. William M. Sharp and 

Ms. Jane E. Shivers
Dr. Mark M. Shoemaker and 

Dr. Joyce N. Shoemaker
Mr. and Mrs. Martin H. Shuler
Mr. Gary A. Sick
Mr. Martin Leon Sidwell
Dr. William C. Silberman
Mr. and Mrs. L. William Silzle
Mr. Don W. Simmons
Dr. Elisabeth Simms
Mr. Tom Simone
Ms. Lela Walton Simpson
Mr. and Mrs. Murali Sivarajan
Ms. Virginia O. Skinner
Mr. and Mrs. Benjamin D.

Slingluff
Mr. George Small
Ms. Alicia W. Smith
Mr. Byrom J. Smith
Ms. Catherine Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Smith
Ms. Diana L. Smith
Ms. Donna K. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas R. Smith
Dr. Forrest A. Smith and 

Mr. Jack P. Philpot
Mr. James R. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Joel Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Kirby Smith III
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence P. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Louis C. Smith

Ms. Marilyn Smith
Ms. Marsha N. Smith
Dr. Marshall S. Smith and 

Dr. Nicki C. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. P. R. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Richard C. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Richard M. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald N. Smith
Mr. Sean S. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen R. Smith
Mr. David S. Smoak
Ms. Helen C. Snodgrass
Mr. and Mrs. S. Gary Snodgrass
Ms. Katheryn Soller
Mr. and Mrs. Peter J. Solomon
Mr. and Mrs. Joachim R.

Sommer
Ms. Barbara Sommers
Mr. and Mrs. Neeraj Soni
Sony Pictures Entertainment
Mr. and Mrs. Mento A. Soponis
Ms. Lola Sorrells
Mr. and Mrs. Bernard A. Sottili
Mr. Garry South and Ms.

Christine W. Lee
South Moon Sales
Ms. Dawn Spaulding
Mr. and Mrs. Carlton E. Speck
Mr. and Mrs. Phillip L. Spector
Dr. Stuart Speedie and 

Dr. Marilyn Speedie
Mr. Arthur G. Speight
Mr. Clay D. Spence
Mr. David W. Spence
Ms. Dorcel M. Spengler
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Spiner
Mr. and Mrs. Rex J. Spivey
John D. and Catherine R.

Spragins
Ms. Joanne Springer
Mr. Billy L. Spruell and 

Ms. Barbara H. Aiken
Dr. Anne St. Goar
Dr. and Mrs. Robert V. Stachnik
Mr. Marc A. Stackler
Mr. and Mrs. Bill Stanback
Ms. Polly Stanbridge
Ms. Constance Stanton
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth P. Stapp
Dr. Michael D. Stargel
Ms. Cynthia V. Stauffacher
Dr. and Mrs. Jery R. Stedinger
Mr. and Mrs. Louis A. Steinberg
Mr. Charles F. Steineger III
Ms. Wilhelmina M. Stemmer
Ms. Marjorie M. Stephens
Mr. and Mrs. Robert I. Stern
Mr. and Mrs. W. Rod Stern
Mr. Roger A. Stevens
Richard W. and Mildred F.

Steves Family Foundation
Ms. Marilyn Steward
Mr. and Mrs. Gordon C. Stewart
Ms. Jackie Stewart
Mr. James W. Stewart III
Mr. Norman Stewart and 

Ms. Carolyn A. McDonald
Mr. Robert P. Stewart
Mr. and Mrs. Robert D. Stillman
Dr. and Mrs. Verner Stillner
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Mr. and Mrs. John Stolzenberg
Mr. and Mrs. John Stone
Ms. Misty M. Stone
Mr. Robert M. Stone and 

Ms. Diane E. Christensen
Mr. James W. Storm
Ms. Ann L. Stovall
Mr. and Mrs. Wally Stover
Ms. Margaret A. Strahl
Estate of Marie Strain
Mr. and Mrs. Earl Strang
Ms. Jennifer Streit
Mr. Joel Alden Streng
Dr. and Mrs. Avery W.

Strickland
Ms. Christianna Strohbeck
Mr. and Mrs. Eugene Stuckey
Mr. Mike P. Sturdivant Sr.
Ms. Margaret Sturtevant
Mr. and Mrs. William C. Stutt
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Sullivan
Steve and Thelma Sullivan
Mr. James Eric Summers
Mr. and Mrs. James E.

Summerville Jr.
Ms. Mary P. Sundheimer
Ms. Monica F. Suryapranata
Dr. Brian P. Sutton and 

Ms. Cheryl Santagate-Sutton
Suwon Central Baptist Church

of Seoul, Korea
Gary and Loralee Swaner
Ms. Constance Swank
Ms. Susan Swartz
Dr. Richard Swensen and 

The Reverend Grace Swensen
Ms. Emilia S. Switgall
Mr. and Mrs. Byrdelle N. Sworin
Mr. Akram Syed
Dr. and Mrs. Zia E. Taheri
Mr. Roy N. Tamura and 

Ms. Debra K. Warner
Mr. Forrest Tancer
Mr. Shao Kang Tang
Ms. Lynda Tarone
Mr. and Mrs. Dan C. Tate Sr.
Ms. Carolyn Taylor
Ms. Elizabeth Taylor
Mr. and Mrs. Gary G. Taylor
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory Taylor
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Taylor
Mr. Ralph Taylor
Mr. and Mrs. Richard R. Taylor
Mr. Ronald Taylor
Ms. Barbara Teichert
Mr. Michael Temcov
Mr. Christopher P. Terilli
Dr. and Mrs. Claude E. Terry
Mr. Patrick A. Terry
Mr. and Mrs. Carl Terwilliger
Dr. Michael H. Thaut
Mr. and Mrs. David Thayer
Mr. and Mrs. Mike P. Thayer
Ms. Allison Thomas
Ms. Melinda M. Thomas
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas L. Thomas
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas J.

Thomasma
The Reverend and Mrs. J. 

Vern Thompson

Mrs. Rita Lee Thompson and 
Dr. J. Dan Thompson

Ms. Margot K. Thomson
Ms. Elizabeth Thornhill
Mr. Jonathan C. Throop
Janice K. and Richard Tiggelaar
Mrs. Olive Tiller
Mr. and Mrs. Earl Tish
Mr. James M. Toomey
Ms. Beverly Toppin
The Reverend Dr. and 

Mrs. Gordon M. Torgersen
Ms. Lois D. Torgerson
Mr. and Mrs. Gino Torretta
Ms. Dorset Townley
Mr. and Mrs. Theodore W. Tozer
Wayne and Lynn Trenbeath
Mr. and Mr. Frederick Tresher
Mr. and Mrs. Charles H. Trillich
Ms. Dari Tritt
Mr. William Truitt
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Tucker
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Tudor
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy C. Tuff
Mr. and Mrs. Leslie G. Turner
Mr. Carter B. Tyler
Mr. James R. Uber
Ms. Jane R. Uhlig
United Parcel Service
United Way of San Diego

County
University Presbyterian Church
The Honorable Thomas A.

Unverferth
Mr. David L. Vadis
Mr. James M. Vaillancourt
Ms. Judith Valor
Van Andel Foundation
Mary and Lowell Van DeRiet

Family Fund of the
Minneapolis Foundation

The Reverend and Mrs. Lowell
W. Van Tassel

Dr. Jennifer S. Van Vickle and
Ms. Carolyn H. Cole

Ambassador and Mrs. William J.
vanden Heuvel

Mr. and Mrs. J. Edward Varallo
Mr. David Vatthauer
Mr. and Mrs. Roger P. Vincent
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Vinton
Mr. and Mrs. James P. Volcker
Mr. Paul Von Kuster
Mr. Bud Vos
Ms. Kathleen A. Vrana
Mr. and Mrs. William D. Waddill
Dr. Judith Elaine Wade
Ms. Juanita Z. Walker
Mr. Matthew S. Walker
Mr. and Mrs. Jim B. Wallace
Mr. Lester D. Wallace
Ms. Nancy Walter
Mr. Donald J. Ward and Ms.

Jennifer L. Eis
Mr. Edward W. Ward
The Honorable Horace T. Ward
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Ward
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Warlick
Mr. and Mrs. Frank W. 

Warner III

Mr. and Mrs. J. N. Warren
Mr. and Mrs. Roger D. Warren
Mr. and Mrs. William L. Warren
Estate of Elsie O. Watts
Mr. and Mrs. Fred Watts
Dr. and Mrs. Nelson B. Watts
Dr. and Mrs. J. Dix Wayman
Mr. John C. Weaver
Dr. Joseph G. Weaver
Mr. and Mrs. Charles E. Webster
Mr. Rogers Weed
Ms. Susen Wehner
Mr. George T. Wein
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley C.

Weinberg
Mr. and Mrs. James Weiss
Mr. Stanley P. Weiss
Mr. Samuel H. Weissbard
Mr. Marvin F. Weissberg
Ms. Suzanne H. Welles
Mr. and Mrs. John Wells
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Wells
Mr. and Mrs. Robert C. Welter
Ms. Amanda M. Westerkam
Dr. Joseph D. Duffey and 

The Honorable Anne Wexler
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Whalen
Ms. Marilee Wheeler
Mr. Dewey Johnson and 

Ms. Livia Whisenhunt-Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher White
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph F. White
Ms. Madge Mae White and 

Ms. Maude Cobb Allen
Ms. Patricia White
Mr. Samuel P. White and 

Ms. Eva R. Cordes
Ms. Tracey W. Whitehouse
Mr. and Mrs. Woodrow

Whitlach
The Carter and Woodrow

Whitlatch Fund
Ms. Nancy G. Whitney
Mr. and Mrs. Paul K. Wichman
Rodney K. and Barbara

Wicklander
Dr. and Mrs. Per H. Wickstrom
Dr. and Mrs. David A. Wiebe
Dr. and Mrs. Hartmut

Wiedersich
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence Wieland
Mr. Thomas Wielenga
Ms. Kitty Sue Wiggins
Ms. Carolyn Wood and Mr.

Leigh Wilco
Mr. and Mrs. Peter D. Wildes
Ms. Alma Wiley
Ms. Cheryl Wilfong
John and Marcia Wilkinson
Mr. and Mrs. Anthony Williams
Mrs. Barbara Williams
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas D.

Williams
Mrs. Lillie B. Williams
Dr. Marilyn Williams
Mr. Roger Williams
Ms. Terri L. Williams
Mr. Tim Williams
Mr. James W. Williamson

Dr. John S. Willis and 
Dr. Judith Horwitz Willis

Ms. Dena G. Willmore
Mr. Edward J. Wilson
Mrs. Elaine C. Wilson
Mr. and Mrs. John C. Wilson
Mr. Kenneth J. Wilson
Ms. Peggy A. Wilson
Mr. and Mrs. Matthew A.

Wiltshire
Ms. Mary K. Winchester
Stephen M. and Elinda Wing
Miss Rainey Isabel Wise
The Honorable Milton A. Wolf
Mr. Thomas Wolfe and 

Ms. Barbara Wallace
The Wonderful Foundation
Ms. Josephine Wood
Ms. Julia T. Wood
Mr. and Mrs. Leonard W. Wood
Mr. and Mrs. Peter H. Wood
Dr. Patricia A. Woodall
Mr. and Mrs. James R. Woodbury
The Woodbury Group
Ms. Marion Woodfield
Mr. Albert C. Woodroof III
Ms. Doris Woods
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas T.

Woodson
Mr. and Mrs. J. Allen Woodward
The World Bank
Dr. and Mrs. Stinson E. Worley
Dr. L. Marian Wouters
Ms. Gina Wright
Ms. Heidi Wright
Mr. Homer Wright
Mr. Alexander Wu
Mr. and Mrs. Prescott P.

Wurlitzer
Mr. and Mrs. Merrill A. Yavinsky
Ms. Mary Yeakel and 

Ms. Virginia Metcalf
Ms. Barbara Yenner
Ms. Brigid Yentz
Harvey I. Yoder Foundation
Ms. Elaine B. Yost
Mr. Hai Tee Young
Ms. Marie Elise Young
Mr. and Mrs. Michael P. Young
Mr. Steven Young
Mr. and Mrs. Stuart Young
Mr. Dave Youngs
Mrs. Mae Zahl
Mr. Richard W. Zahn
Jean Schiro-Zavela and 

Vance Zavela
Mr. and Mrs. Tim Zeak
Ms. Clare P. Zens
Mr. Eric Zerof
Mr. James R. Ziegler
Ms. Patricia Ziegler
Ms. Bernadette Zigalo
Ms. Susan Zimicki
Ms. Virginia Allen Zimmerman
Mr. and Mrs. Brooks Zug
Mr. Richard Zurek
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Cabinet $10,000 or more
Anonymous (3)
Mrs. Olfet Agrama
Mr. and Mrs. James H. Averill
Mr. and Mrs. Marvin L. Bailey
Mr. and Mrs. J. Gregory

Ballentine
Ms. Sheryl L. Bartolucci
Mr. Arno Bellack
Ms. Diana Blank
Bridgeway Charitable

Foundation
Mr. Charles Kent Brodie
Michael and Etta Cannon

Family Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald Carlisle
Miss Jean M. Cluett
Ms. Leamel A. Comparette
Mr. and Mrs. John J. Cross
Mr. Steven A. Denning and Ms.

Roberta D. Bowman
Mr. and Mrs. Pete Docter
Douglas Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. 

Duncan Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Paul B. Edgerley
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy R. Eller
Dr. and Mrs. Jonathan H. Fisher
Ms. Mary Fitzpatrick
Mr. and Mrs. Cameron H. Fowler
The Fraser Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John C. Furlong
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Goodwin
Mr. and Mrs. Ken Gouw
Mrs. Mary L. Greenblatt
Mr. and Mrs. Donald L.

Greenmun
Margaret E. Haas Fund of the

Marin Community Foundation
Mr. Carl Haefling and Ms.

Pamela Johnson
Mr. Rick Meeker Hayman
Heights Enterprises
Ms. Ann D. Herbert
Mr. and Mrs. Jack Herschend
John C. and Karyl Kay Hughes

Foundation
Mr. Steven Baughman Jensen

and Dr. Rebecca McGowan
Jensen

Mr. and Mrs. Richard C. Kerns
Mr. John Kim
Mr. and Mrs. William H. Kleh
Dr. Anne P. Lanier
Dr. My T. Le
Mr. and Mrs. Robert N. Lemaire
Mr. and Mrs. Kurt Limbach
Ms. Carolyn S. Lowrie
Mr. and Mrs. Robert H.

McKinney
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen W.

McMillen
Mr. Allan K. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick L. Mitchell
Mrs. Kenneth F. Montgomery
Mr. Robert E. Naser
Mr. Kent C. Nelson and 

Ms. Ann Starr
Ms. Joanne Woodward and 

Mr. Paul Newman

Ms. Ann D. Oestreicher
Mr. Kenneth Olivier and Ms.

Angela Nomellini
Mr. and Mrs. Steven R.

Ormiston
Mr. and Mrs. Richard C. Overly
Ms. Ruth Paddison
Mr. Carl P. Page
Ms. F. Taylor Pape
Dr. and Mrs. Theodore Petroulas
Mr. John G. Pitcairn
Ms. Barbara Powe
Dr. Keith W. Prasse and Dr.

Susan W. Prasse
Mr. Scott Ranney
Ms. Catherine C. Rasmussen
Ms. Lynette J. Rhodes
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce N. Ritter
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald A.

Rosenthal
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald R. Rudolph
Mr. Cecil L. Russell
Ms. Andrea C. Rutherford
Mr. Daniel J. Sandin and Ms.

Mary L. Rasmussen
Mr. and Mrs. Nathan M.

Sarkisian
Mr. Timothy Schwertfeger and

Ms. Gail Waller
Mr. Gary S. Selken
Mr. Joseph A. Shepard
Mr. and Mrs. Morris Slingluff
Mr. and Mrs. Brian J. Smith
Aruna and David Spencer
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Squires
Mr. Ed Stern and 

Ms. Claudia Hearn
The Sturzenegger Family

Charitable Fund
Mr. Chade-Meng Tan
Mr. Greg Teeters
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas E. Tietz
Mr. David R. Virden
The Honorable Paul A. Volcker
Mr. Dougin Walker and 

Ms. Elizabeth Bromley
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Weinmann
Dr. and Mrs. John D. Welch
The Willow Springs Foundation
Ms. Lynne E. Wrocklage

Diplomat $5,000–$9,999
Anonymous (3)
Mr. John B. Adams
Mr. and Mrs. Gaby Ajram
Ms. Priscilla Alexander
Ms. Barbara Allain
Ms. Lisa Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Mike Aycock
Sirdar Aly Aziz
Mr. Maurice Balick
Mr. Alan S. Baral
Mr. William C. Bartholomay
Mr. and Mrs. Jordan J. Baruch
Mr. and Mrs. Don Berg
Mr. and Mrs. Harold Berger
Mr. John A. Boettcher
Mr. and Mrs. Art Bryant
Mr. Charles W. Carson Jr.
Amy Carter Foundation

Mr. Marc A. Chary
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Chen
Dr. and Mrs. Paul M.

Christensen
Robert and Bobbe’

Christopherson
Mr. Peter E. Clark Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. J. Richard Collins
Mr. Peter C. Cook
Mr. and Mrs. Ross Cooper
Mr. and Mrs. John H. Costello
Ms. Janet L. Creasman
Mr. Thomas Dethlefs
Mr. Michael D. Douglas
The Eaton-Yara Fund
Mr. Eugene Eidenberg and 

Ms. Anna Chavez
Mr. and Mrs. John S. Erickson
Ms. Barbara Faga
Mr. Michael G. Feinstein and

Ms. Denise Waldron
Ms. Helene J. Freed
Ms. Carol Frick
Full Circle Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Randy Fulmer
Mr. J. Rex Fuqua
Mr. James E. Furr
Drs. Paul and Katherine Gerke
Ms. Joanne G. Gimbel and 

Mr. Clifford E. Hatch
Mr. Adam D. Goldsmith
Dr. Gary B. Green
Ms. Bonnie B. Greenspan
Ms. Matilda M. Grey
Mr. and Mrs. Philip Grosz
The Karp/Haahr Family
Ms. Joan B. Haan
Mr. and Mrs. Harry Hagey
Mr. Tony Hamer
Mr. Robert T. Hanley
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald Hanna
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Heavener
Mr. David Helgren
Mr. John W. Henry and 

Dr. Rachel Henry
Mr. and Mrs. Barry Herring
Mr. and Mrs. Philip J. Hickey Jr.
Mr. Andy Hirsch and 

Ms. Kate Connor
Mr. John L. Holland
Dr. and Mrs. Dennis L. Hoover
Mr. and Mrs. Jeremy Howard
Ms. Phyllis Cady Johnson
The Fletcher Jones Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Lewis H. Jordan
Mr. Louis Katsikaris Sr.
Mr. Philip D. Kearns
Mr. David S. Kellberg
Mr. and Mrs. Wyck Knox
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy E. Kraft
Mr. and Mrs. Roger Lang
Mr. William M. Layson
Mr. and Mrs. Rodney M. Lee
Mr. and Mrs. Paul R. Leonard Jr.
Mr. David R. Lewis
LFP, Inc.
Ms. Elizabeth A. Liebman
Ms. Sara D. Lipscomb
William and Marian Littleford

Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Anthony Lourey
Mr. Peter Lowe
Mr. and Mrs. Richard F. Lyon
Mr. and Mrs. Nicholas Martin Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. William L.

Masterton
Mr. Thomas J. McCarthy
Mr. Doug McConnell
Ms. Melani J. McCullough
The Honorable and Mrs. Alonzo

L. McDonald Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. James M.

McKinney
Mr. Peter G. Meyer-Viol
Mr. and Mrs. George P. Mitchell
Mr. Robert B. Moffett
Mr. Glenn Murer
Dr. and Mrs. Will L. Nash
Ms. Lynn Nesbit
Mr. and Mrs. Lowell Northrop
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Overbeck
Mr. and Mrs. Ray W. Paulin
PDM, Inc.
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Phillips
The Pitrof Fund of The Chicago

Community Foundation
Mrs. Rita Coveney Pudenz
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. 

Rearden Jr.
Daniel L. and Sophie K. Reiber

Charitable Trust
Ms. Harriet Rosenbloom
Dr. and Mrs. Fritz M. Rottman
Mr. and Mrs. Albert H. Rusher
Mr. and Mrs. W. Timothy Ryan
Dr. Marla E. Salmon
Mr. Walter H. Sanderson
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin J. Sauder
Mr. and Mrs. John H. Schaff
Mr. William C. Shelton
Ms. Cynthia J. Sherman
Mr. Lawrence E. Silverton
The Simmons Family

Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. William H.

Simpson
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel Smart
Ms. Cherida C. Smith
Ms. Maureen Spain
Ms. Margaret J. Spencer and 

Ms. Patricia J. Lahti
Sterling Charitable Gift Fund
Mr. David P. Stoutamire
Mr. Lee B. Thomas Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. LeRoy S. Troyer
Mr. Gary L. Vandenberg
Ms. Ellen M. Violett
Ms. Nancy Wallace
Ms. Jane Wallgren
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Warlick
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Warren
Mr. and Mrs. Sam A. Way III
Mr. and Mrs. George Weaver
Mrs. Robert Weidenhammer
WestWind Foundation
Ms. Dorothy G. Whitmore
Mr. David Douglas Wilson and

Ms. Melody Wilder Wilson
Kate and Richard Wolters

Foundation
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Mr. and Mrs. C. Angus Wurtele
Mr. Rich Yonash
Peggy and Lee Zeigler

Envoy $2,500 - $4,999
Anonymous (3)
Ms. Marjorie B. Abshire
Dr. Alan Adams
Mr. and Mrs. Curtis Adams
Mr. and Mrs. Shawn M. Aebi
AHM Associates
Mr. Ralph W. Albrecht
Ms. Susan W. Almy
The Honorable and 

Mrs. Brady Anderson
Arnold Family Foundation
Mr. Jeffrey Arnold and 

Ms. Ellen Neely
Dr. and Mrs. Emerson M. Babb
Mr. and Mrs. Gordon H. Bald
Ken and Ginger Baldwin
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. 

Barrow III
Dr. Joseph Barry
Mr. and Mrs. Brad R. Benton
Mr. Jeff Bernard
Ms. Susan E. Bevington
Ms. Melinda Bieber
Dr. Virginia Y. Blacklidge
Mr. David Blair
Mr. and Mrs. Lee N. Blatt
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth L. Block
Mr. and Mrs. David W. Blood
Mr. Franz-Josef Boll
Mr. Allan A. Bonney
Young Boozer Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Kent R. Bourquin
Ms. Betty J. Branlund
Ms. Jane T. Breece
The Brodsky Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Rob Broin
Mr. Willard B. Brown
Lt. Col. William T. Browne and

Dr. Evelyn W. Browne
Mr. Shawn M. Budde
Mr. Thomas Bundrick
Mr. and Mrs. Joe S. Burkle
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald E.

Burmeister
Mr. Robert J. Buttel
Dr. and Mrs. John B. Carter
Mr. Dan T. Cathy
Ms. Miriam Chapman
The Honorable and 

Mrs. Benjamin R. Civiletti
Mr. David R. Clark
Mr. and Mrs. Terry M. Clark
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Cline
Mr. and Mrs. W. Randall Cline
Mr. and Mrs. Alan M. Cody
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph A. Coleman
Mr. and Mrs. Jerry D. Conn
Drs. Camille and Bill Cosby
Edward and Anne Covert
Mr. William A. Crider Jr.
Mrs. Helen S. Curry
Mr. and Mrs. Rollin Dart
Mrs. Paul A. Deckard
Ms. Cynthia G. Downman

Ms. Catherine W. Dukehart
Mr. and Mrs. Burt Eder
Mr. Don Endres and 

Ms. Jill LaPlante
Mr. John Eskew and 

Ms. Rita Vaidya
Mr. C. Paul Estep
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Ferguson
The Samuel Finkel Foundation
Fleur De Lys Textile Company
Ms. Nancie Forrest
A.J. Frank Family Foundation
Ms. Linda C. Frank
Ms. Alice Franklin
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew D.

Franklin
Mr. Robert E. Friedman and 

Ms. Kristina Kiehl
Ms. S. Marce Fuller
Mr. and Mrs. Roger Gibson
Mr. Paul M. Ginsburg
Dr. John Godersky and 

Ms. Barbara Covey
Mr. and Mrs. George Googasian
Dr. and Mrs. Stephen L. Graham
Mr. Fred Grob and 

Ms. Dorothy Kinney
Mr. and Mrs. Walter E. Grubbs
Mr. Robert S. Hagge Jr.
The Hale Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John Wayne Hall
Mr. and Mrs. Larry R. Hamilton
Mr. and Mrs. J. R. Harris
Robert and Shirley Harris 

Family Foundation
Dr. Nabil Hatoum
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey A.

Heimbuck
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin J. Heneghan
Mr. B. Harvey Hill Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Hilton
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Hoag
Mr. and Mrs. Philip Holladay
Dr. and Mrs. Peter W. Holm
Dr. and Mrs. Matthew Hulbert
Mr. Richard G. Hutcheson III
Jana Foundation
Mr. Robert L. Jennings and 

Ms. Barbara H. Bott
Ms. Jennifer L. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Steve Johnston
Ms. Miyoung Joo
The Karma Foundation
Ms. Stacey Keare
Mrs. Howard L. Knaack
Ms. Karen J. Knudson and 

Ms. Teresa M. Tachovsky
Ms. Sandra L. Kobel
Sonja and Tom Koenig 

and Family
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Koran
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence N.

Kugelman
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Lamm
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Lammert
Dr. James T. Langland and 

Dr. Penny I. Langland
A. Charles & Lillemor Lawrence

Foundation

Le Fort-Martin Fund of 
The Chicago Community
Foundation

Ms. Isabel Leavitt
Mr. Michael Lebowitz
Mr. Dale W. Leibach and Ms.

Kathleen Patterson
Ms. Joan Leonard
Mr. and Mrs. David Levine
Mr. Bruce Lincoln
Mr. Lawrence P. Littlewood and

Dr. Edna M. Littlewood
Dr. Daniel Loes
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Luongo
Mr. and Mrs. Theodore C. Lutz
Ms. Randi G. Mack
Ms. Nancy R. Manderson
Mr. Robert Marsh
Mr. and Mrs. Mark A. Massengill
Mr. Michael Mathieu and 

Ms. Kathleen Washienko
Mr. and Mrs. Brian K. Mazar
Mr. James A. McBride and 

Ms. Mary Morse
Mr. and Mrs. Ben G. McDow
Mr. Wade F. McKenzie
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Miller
Mr. Peter D. Noerdlinger and

Ms. Maribel B. Aguilos
Mr. Joshua Oppenhuis
Mr. Larry Orr and 

Ms. Nicole Lederer
Dr. Jayoung Pak
Mr. William C. Paley
Mr. Paul Palmeri
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Paulien
Dr. Deborah S. Lee and 

Mr. John W. Peifer
Ms. Cheryl Pond
Dr. and Mrs. Allen A. Posner
Mr. and Mrs. Robert N. 

Prentiss Jr.
Ms. Pamela Rand
Dr. and Mrs. Charles C. Reith
Dr. and Mrs. John Reuwer
Ms. Laura M. Rice
Mr. and Mrs. Richard K. Riess
Mr. and Mrs. Claude D. Roberts
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Rodman
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Roeder
Mr. and Mrs. Brian D. Rye
Mr. and Mrs. Fred Saltvold
Ms. Susan Sarandon
Mr. and Mrs. J. Albert Schultz
Mr. Robert C. Seidman
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Shavlik
Mr. and Mrs. Ted Sielaff
The Sikand Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory R.

Simpson
Mr. and Mrs. Emil J. Slowinski
Dr. Marshall S. Smith and 

Dr. Nicki C. Smith
Dr. and Mrs. R. Bob Smith III
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald C. Souza
Spellissy Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Srygley
Mr. Thomas O. Stanley
Ms. Elizabeth Steele

Dr. and Mrs. Daniel L.
Stephenson

Ms. Connie W. Stewart
The Stronge Family Foundation
Ms. Monica F. Suryapranata
Mr. Harry C. Tabak and 

Ms. Nava Atlas
Taipei Economic and Cultural

Office in Atlanta
Mr. and Mrs. Louis J. Taratoot
Mr. and Mrs. Frank R.

Unterberger
Mr. and Mrs. Meeks B. 

Vaughan Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Edgar Villchur
Mr. and Mrs. R. Lee Waits
Mr. and Mrs. Robert P.

Warmington
Ms. Willy Werby
Ms. Helen H. West
Ms. Grace B. Wilkins
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Williams
Dr. Hans G. Wolfhard
Mr. Daniel M. Wright
Mr. Steven Young

Emissary $1,000–$2,499
Anonymous (20)
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Abel
Ms. Lynn M. Abess
Mr. and Mrs. W. Randy Abney
Mr. Alan R. Abrams
Accent Nursery
Ms. Raydean Acevedo
Mr. and Mrs. Daryl Ackerman
Mr. and Mrs. W. Dane Adkinson
Mr. and Mrs. David Aha
The Honorable and 

Mrs. George Aldrich
Mr. and Mrs. Benjamin B.

Alexander
Mr. and Mrs. Steven J. Allard
Mr. H. Inman Allen
Mr. James H. Allen
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Allen
Mrs. Tricia Allen
Mr. and Mrs. William G. 

Allen Sr.
Ms. Eleanor Alston
Mr. and Mrs. Edward A. Ambs
Ms. Sarah J. Andersen
Ms. Barbara E. Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Carl R. Anderson
Ms. Deborah J. Anderson
Dr. Walter E. Anderson
Mr. David M. Andreotta
Dr. and Mrs. Charles A.

Andrews
Mr. Greg Angelides
Mr. Brian Anthony and 

Mr. Joe Fitzpatrick
The Arches Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Frederick H.

Armbrust
Mr. Douglas N. Arnold and 

Ms. Maria-Carme Calderer
Mr. John M. Arnsparger and 

Ms. Susan L. Weingarten
Ms. Kazuko K. Artus
Ms. Ann Ashton
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Mr. John Ashworth
Mr. Roger Atkinson and 

Ms. Janet Arey
Mrs. Phoebe Atwood
Mr. and Mrs. Randal Auer
Mr. and Mrs. Moses Awe
Ms. Ann C. Bacon
Ms. Beverly A. Bacon
Ms. Kathleen M. Bader
Mr. Wallace K. Bailey
Ms. Mary Baird
Dr. and Mrs. Alfred L. Baker
Mr. Bill R. Baker
Mr. and Mrs. Damon W. Baker
Dr. Marjorie K. Balazs
Dr. John R. Ball
Mr. and Mrs. James S. Balloun
Mrs. Margaret L. Banister
Dr. David O. Bankole
Mr. Leo T. Barber Jr.
Ms. Patricia Y. Bario
Mr. and Mrs. Jim F. Barlow
Mr. Robert Barnum
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence Barton
Mr. William G. Bateman
Ms. Lorraine Bayer
Miss Roxanne W. Beardsley
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth L. Becker
Ms. Elisabeth Cordy Beckstead
The Beggs Family Foundation
Mr. Gregory Bell
Mr. C.B. Benenson
Ms. Leora Benioff
Mr. David L. Bennett
Mr. and Mrs. Donald V. Benson
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Benton
Dr. and Mrs. Robert A. Berenson
Mr. and Mrs. Eric W. Berg
Mr. and Mrs. John W. Bergstrom
Ms. Lila W. Berle
Mr. and Mrs. Michael S. Berman
Mr. and Mrs. Warren L. Berry
Mr. David H. Berwald
Mr. Bruce Bidle
Ms. Rebecca J. Bigbee
Dr. Robert D. Billinger Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Eivind A. Bjerke
Mr. David C. Black
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph E. Black
Eugenia Price/Joyce Blackburn

Foundation
Mr. Fred H. Blackwood
Dr. Tallis Blalack and 

Ms. Katherine Weller
Mrs. Jean Blechman
Ms. Sue Blessing
Mr. and Mrs. Mitchell Block
Mr. and Mrs. Glendon W. Blume
Ms. Margaret H. Bly
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne T. Blythe
Mr. and Mrs. Joshua Boger
Mr. and Mrs. William R. 

Bonsal III
Mr. Michael G. Borck and 

Ms. Kathleen A. Brannan
Dr. Norma Bork
Mr. Timothy M. Boudreau
Ms. Roseann H. Bove

Mr. and Mrs. William I. 
Bowen Sr.

Ms. Teresa A. Boyd
Mr. Stephen Boyle
Mr. and Mrs. Ernest H. Bradley
Mr. James E. Bramsen
Mr. and Mrs. Cabell Brand
Mr. and Mrs. Henry C. 

Brevard Jr.
Ms. Rebecca S. Brinkley
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey I. Brodsky
Mr. and Mrs. Peter R. Broner
Leigh W. Brooks, Ph.D.
Mr. Christopher D. Brown
Mr. Corey Brown
Mr. Donald K. Brown
Mr. and Mrs. Clyde R.

Brownstone
Ms. Barbara Bruner
Mr. Gordon A. Bryant
Dr. Margaret C. Buck
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas S.

Buechner
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Bugg Jr.
Ms. Mary Burgher
Dr. and Mrs. Ned H. Burns
Mr. and Mrs. Henry L. Burton
Mr. and Mrs. Eliot A. Butler
Dr. and Mrs. Paul R. Butler
Mr. Gary A. Butts and 

Ms. Katherine Long
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew W. Byrd
Mrs. Barbara C. Cade
Mr. and Mrs. William H.

Calhoun
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence P.

Callahan
Mr. James Callanan and 

Ms. Elke Adler
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Callinan
Mr. Timothy J. Cambias Sr.
Mr. and Mrs. William W.

Cameron
Mr. and Mrs. Alan L. Cameros
Ms. Elizabeth E. Campbell
Mr. David G. Canzler
Mr. David Carliner
Mr. David Carlino
Mr. Bertram W. Carp and 

Ms. Lynn McReynolds
Mr. and Mrs. John L. Carr
Ms. Susan A. Carr
Mr. Dan Carrigan
Mr. and Mrs. James B. Carson Jr.
Mrs. Sylvia Cart
Mr. Greg Cartee
Dr. Ronald D. Carter and 

Ms. Judith Carter
Ms. Matilda R. Cartledge
Dr. Ana M. Castellanos
Dr. and Mrs. Richard E.

Cavanagh
Mr. and Mrs. Viktor E. Cea
Dr. Louis Centofanti and 

Ms. Wanda Rachels
Ms. Yetta Chaiken
Mr. and Mrs. Donald B. Chalker
Ms. Mary Beth Chamberlain
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Chanin
Dr. and Mrs. Lloyd Chapman

Ms. Louisa Chapman
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Chase
Mr. and Mrs. Guy Cherwonuk
Mr. Daniel M. Chew
Chick-fil-A
Dr. Stephen J. Chiulli
Mr. and Mrs. David Christopher
Mr. John Chuldenko
The Citigroup Private Bank
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Claeys
Stan and Caroline Clark
Mr. and Mrs. Steven C. Clark
Mr. and Mrs. William D. Clarke
Ms. Linda M. Clary
Dr. Gail L. Clifford
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas M.

Cochrane
Mr. and Mrs. Alan M. Cogy
Mr. David H. Cofrin and 

Ms. Christine Tryba-Cofrin
Mr. Mark B. Cohen and Ms.

Sheila M. Fyfe
Mr. Michael Cohen and Ms.

Patricia Collins
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Cole III
Mr. Lynn R. Coleman
Mr. and Mrs. Richard B. Collins
Mr. Roger C. Conant
Mr. Christopher Connolly and

Ms. Marjorie Liner
Dr. Kate Connor
Mr. and Mrs. John V. Conti
Mr. Robert A. Cook
Mr. William Cook and 

Ms. Monika Mevenkamp
Ms. Margaret A. Cook-Levy
Mr. Ben I. Cooper
Mr. and Mrs. Warren N.

Coppedge
Ms. Ellyn Corey
Ms. Cassandra M. Cornell and

Mr. Michael R. McNally
Dr. and Mrs. John R. Cornell
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Cotton
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Couric
Mr. Greg Cowan
Ms. Elizabeth B. Crane
Mr. Erik Crank and 

Mrs. Laura Arbilla
Mrs. Jay Crawford
Mr. Thomas H. Critchlow
Mr. Douglas Crocker II
Ms. Eleanor B. Crook
Mrs. Afton E. Crooks
Mr. and Mrs. C.R. Crowell
Culver Family Foundation
Mrs. Ben S. Custer
Ms. Marlene Czarkowski
Mr. James F. Dalton
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen S.

Danielsen
Mr. and Mrs. George C. Dannals
Ms. Leslie H. Danoff
Mr. Alf Danzie
Data Processing Sciences
Mr. and Mrs. Gaston Daumy
Mr. Daniel H. Davenport
Ms. Meryl M. David
Mr. Roger Davidson

Ms. Adalyn Davis
Ms. Alice K. Davis
Mr. Christopher L. Davis
Ms. Madeleine Davis
Ms. Margaret K. Davis
Mr. and Mrs. Richard S. Davis
Ms. Florence B. Dawson
Mr. Bruce C. Gunter and 

Ms. Kathleen Day
The Honorable Drew S. Days III
Mr. and Mrs. Deane K. Dayton
Mr. James H. de Graffenreidt Jr.
Ms. Nissa Partain de Lisle
Ms. Mary J. Dean
Mr. and Mrs. Charles A.

DeBenedittis
Mr. John Deeter
Mr. and Mrs. Alan Deichler
Ms. Carol A. Denison
Mr. and Mrs. Geoffrey E.J.

Dennis
Mr. Jeffrey Dennis
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Van Auken

Dennler
Ms. Lopa S. Desai
Mr. and Mrs. Charles F. Dewald
Mr. George T. Dewey III
Mr. Gordon Dexter and 

Ms. Barbara A. Grandolfo
Mrs. Janet Dey
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin S. Dibble
Mr. and Mrs. Mark S. Dichter
Dr. and Mrs. W. Reed Dickinson
Dickson Family Fund
Mr. David B. Dillard
Dr. Leland W. Doan
Mr. and Mrs. David E. Dodge
Ms. Sarah C. Doering
Mr. Robert L. Doll and 

Ms. Ronny L. Savage-Doll
Ms. Sheila P. Dominy
Mr. James Donnell
Mr. Gary D. Dorminey
Mr. Roy A. Dorsey
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Dorwart
Mr. and Mrs. John Doucette
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Doumani
Ms. Elizabeth Douthitt
Ms. Rebecca Dowdakin and 

Ms. Flora McMartin
Mrs. Margaret Downward
Mr. Thomas R. Doyle
Mr. and Mrs. Clarence

Drummond
Dr. and Mrs. Richard D. Dyer
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Dryer
Ms. Dorothy Du Bose
Mr. Richard A. DuBord
The Family of Ethel Lee Duewer
Mr. Drew Dolak and 

Ms. Kathleen E. Duffy
Mr. Norman J. Duffy
Mr. Bruce Duke
Mr. Michael Dull
Keith and Jane Dunavant Fund

of the Community Foundation
of North Texas

Mr. and Mrs. Robert D. Duncan
Mr. and Mrs. Mark W. Dundon
Ms. Dorene M. Dunn
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Mr. Michael Durbin
Ms. Kathleen Durdin
Mrs. Mildred G. Durham
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Dybeck
Ms. Darcy J. Dye
Dr. Margaret J. Early
Mr. and Mrs. W. Frank 

Easterlin Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Ben Eastman
Dr. Al Eaton
Mr. and Mrs. Walter Eberspacher
Mr. and Mrs. Frank M. Eccles
Ms. Kimberly A. Edwards
Mr. Nick Egelanian
Ms. Dana Eggerts
Mr. and Mrs. Bryon K. Ehlmann
Mr. Albert N. Eisenberg
The Honorable and 

Mrs. Stuart Eizenstat
Mr. and Mrs. Gayne R. Ek
Mr. and Mrs. David T. Elliott
Mr. and Mrs. Jack K. Ellison
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J.

Ellsworth
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel M.

Ellsworth
Mrs. Julia S. Elsee
Mr. and Mrs. James P. Elster
Ms. Audrey F. Embs
Mr. and Mrs. Gerard G. Emch
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Emery
Mr. Richard S. Emmet
The Honorable and 

Mrs. James England
Dr. Mary Jane England
Mr. Frederick Entwistle and Dr.

Carol Entwistle
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Evans
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J.

Ewersmann Jr.
Dr. David Ewing and 

Dr. June Ewing
Ms. Lucia P. Ewing
Mr. William Michael Fagen and

Ms. Elizabeth McCleary
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Fahey Jr.
Marjorie A. Farley
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Felt
Dr. R. Fenton-May
Dr. and Mrs. Emmet Ferguson Jr.
Mrs. Enza A. Ferrante
Ms. Susan S. Ferson
Mr. Alvin M. Ferst Jr.
Ms. Mary K. Field
Mr. Jay M. Fineman and 

Ms. Carol A. Wood
Mr. and Mrs. Perry W. Fisher
The Reverend Sue Fitzgerald
Mr. and Mrs. Tony Fitzgerald
Mr. Christopher Flament
Mr. and Mrs. Eli M. Fletcher
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Fletcher
Mr. and Mrs. Denny Flick
Mr. and Mrs. Maurice R. Fliess
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Flood
Mr. Ausrowe L. Florence
Mr. Robert M. Forcey
Mr. and Mrs. Jerome Forkosh
Ms. Nancy V. Foster

Mr. and Mrs. Ray Fountain
Mr. and Mrs. Arthur W. Frank Jr.
Mr. Robert Frankland and 

Ms. Helen Owens
Ms. Bonnie Frazer
Mr. Phillip T. Fujii
Ms. Donna Fuellenbach
Ms. Cheryl Furey
Mr. and Mrs. John B. Gabusi
Mr. and Mrs. Stanely A.

Galanski
Ms. Carol Gallant
Ms. Cynthia A. Gallie
Mr. and Mrs. William R. 

Gamber II
Ms. Stephanie Garber and 

Mr. David M. Collins
Mr. and Mrs. Juan M. 

Garcia-Passalacqua
Ms. Caroline Gardner
Dr. Sydney A. Garrett
Mr. and Mrs. Martin Garvey
Ms. Frances R. Gaver
Ms. Larae Gayler
Mr. Greg Gerhard
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald J. Gibson
The Honorable Gordon D.

Giffin
Mr. Reg Gilliam
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Gillig
Mr. Michael F. Gilligan and Ms.

Anne K. Helgen
Dr. Patricia I. Gillis
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Gilmartin
Mr. and Mrs. Hubert Gilmore
Mr. Lawrence D. Gilson
Mr. T.E. Gingrich and 

Ms. Julie A. Wollam-Gingrich
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A.

Giordano
Mr. William A. Glasgow
Mr. Arthur J. Glatfelter
Ms. Marsha Gleeman
Mr. and Mrs. Edward F. Gliwa Jr.
Dr. M.A. Glover
Mr. and Mrs. Bobby D. Godbee
Mr. and Mrs. Nitin Godiwala
Ms. Sybil Walzer Goepper
Mr. Jack R. Goetz
Mr. Martin J. Goldberg
Ms. Laura S. Goldblum
Jackson and Irene Golden 1989

Charitable Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Bradley P.

Goodman
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A.

Goodrich
Mr. Gordon L. Goodwin
Mrs. Pat Gordin
Mr. David Graber
Ms. Linda E. Graden
Mr. and Mrs. Robert D. Graff
Mr. and Mrs. David B. Graham
Mr. and Mrs. Kyle Granholm
Ms. Barbara Grant and Ms.

Maureen MacCarthy
Ms. Judith Grassilli
Ms. Nancy M. Grebe
Mr. Douglas Green
Mr. Eric Green

Mr. and Mrs. Joseph H. Green
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Greenman
Dr. and Mrs. Martin C. Gregory
Ms. Cathryn Gries
Dr. E. Rawson Griffin III and 

Ms. D. Clark Griffin Eddings
Linda J. Griffith and Scott K.

Kellogg
Mr. Charles W. Grigg
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph F. Grinnell
Mr. and Mrs. Frank Grobman
Mr. and Mrs. Charley Gross
Mr. Joseph W. Groutage
Ms. Diana Grove
Ms. Georgia Grummon
GSF Mortgage Corporation
The Guinness Family

Foundation of The Cleveland
Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Ken Gunther
Ms. Karen Gupta
Mr. and Mrs. Carlton Gutschick
Ms. Linda Haas
The Joanne and Peter Haas Jr.

Fund of the Marin Community
Foundation

Mr. Mark Haber
Mr. and Mrs. Mark A. Hackett
Mr. Edward E. Haddock Jr. and

Ms. Edith K. Murphy-Haddock
Dr. Eleanor Hadley
Ms. Alexis B. Hafken
Mr. Martin Haig
Mr. David P. Hale and 

Ms. Laura A. Torres
Ms. Anne Cathcart Hall
Mr. and Mrs. Donald R. Hall
Ms. Elaine Halliday
Ms. Gaye L. Hamilton
Mr. and Mrs. John J. Hamilton
Mr. and Mrs. Herman H.

Hamilton
Mr. and Mrs. David G. Hannay
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Harden
Dr. and Mrs. John B. Hardman
Mrs. L.G. Hardman Jr.
Ms. Lynn T. Haremski
Mr. Steve Harkreader
Mr. Dennis Harms and 

Ms. Susan Bergman
Mr. E. C. Harper
Mr. Steven P. Harper
Mr. and Mrs. William T. Harper
Ms. Patricia G. Harrington
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Harris
Mr. and Mrs. Paul W. Harris
Mr. and Mrs. Robert H. Harris
Ms. Sara Harris
Mr. Wayne Harsh
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Hart
Mr. and Mrs. G. Keith Hartge
Ms. Ellen Weaver Hartman
Mr. and Mrs. William L. Haskins
Mr. Stephen Hatcher
Dr. William P. Hausdorff
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W.

Haviland
Mr. Norman M. Hayes
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick Hearing
Ms. Ellen M. Heath

Mr. and Mrs. James A. Heindl
Ms. Laurel Henderson
Ms. Kimberly Henney
Ms. Toni D. Hennike
Mr. and Mrs. Kim Henry
Mr. Joseph E. Herbst
Ms. Mary D. Herr
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J.

Herrmann
Mr. Stanley N. Hershey
Dr. and Mrs. Francis C. 

Hertzog Jr.
Mr. Daniel J. Hewitt
Dr. Kenneth R. Hey
Mrs. Juliane Heyman
Dr. and Mrs. Carlton T. Hicks
Dr. and Mrs. David W. Hill
Ms. Dorothy L. Hill
Mr. and Mrs. Lee H. Hill Jr.
Mr. R. Glenn Hilliard
Mr. and Mrs. John Hinman
Dr. and Mrs. Dar-Veig Ho
Ms. Nancy Hoagland
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne E.

Hochstetler
Mr. James Hodges
Ms. Jane E. Holcombe
Mr. Fred H. Hollenberg
Mr. Steven Hollingsworth and

Ms. Daidee Springer
Dr. Joseph G. Hollowell Jr. and

Ms. Emily A. Russell
Ms. Mary E. Holly
Mrs. Joan B. Holman
Mr. Robert Holmes
Holy Trinity Sharing Fund
Dr. Paul Holzman and 

Ms. Barbara Crass
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Hooks
Dr. Janet Horenstein
Ms. Louise F. Horney
Mr. Wayne Horvitz
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Hosking
Dr. Alvin E. Houser
Mr. and Mrs. Walter J. Howard
Mr. and Mrs. Ernest M. Howell
Dr. Victor Huang
Ms. Shirley M. Hufstedler
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Hugi
Mr. and Mrs. C. Curtis Hunt
Mr. and Mrs. John T. Hunt
Mr. and Mrs. G. David Hurd
Mr. and Mrs. Alan D. Husak
Dr. Wallace N. Hyde and

Ambassador Jeanette W. Hyde
Mr. and Mrs. Michael H.

Iacolucci
Ms. Jacqueline Ikeda
Indoor Air
Admiral and Mrs. Bobby R.

Inman
International Humanitarian

Foundation
Mr. George Inverso and 

Ms. Emma Garkavi
Ms. Ellin M. Irwin
The Reverend Thomas P. Ivory
Mr. and Mrs. John Izard
Ms. Deborah J. Jackson
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Jackson
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Mr. and Mrs. Anthony Jacobs
Mr. and Mrs. Paul J. Jacobs
Mr. and Mrs. Marc Jacoby
Ms. Diane S. Jacqmin
Mr. Robert C. Jambou and 

Mrs. Diana June Blalock
Mr. and Mrs. Roderick Jameson
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Jay
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Jennaro
Mr. Renz D. Jennings
Ms. Marjorie Jennings
Mr. Patrick Jennings
Mr. Peter Jessen
Mr. and Mrs. C. Gene Jester
Dr. Michael L. Jesudason
Ms. Betty W. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Charles A. Johnson
Mr. Darwin Johnson and Ms.

Deborah Bombard
Mr. and Mrs. Irving Johnson
Ms. Luci Baines Johnson
Ms. Marilyn Johnson
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas D. Johnson
Mrs. Boisfeuillet Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Burton L. Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Chris Jones
General and Mrs. David C. Jones
Ms. Deborah Jones
Mr. Stephen Jones and 

Ms. Carol Flint
Ms. Katherine Kademian
Ms. Marsha A. Kademian
Mr. and Mrs. John S. Kahler
Mr. Richard M. Kail
Mrs. Roland Kampmeier
Ms. Anne N. Kast
Dr. Charles D. Kay and 

Ms. Margaret Tragesser-Kay
Mr. Charley Kearns
Mr. and Mrs. Robert E. Keith Jr.
Mr. David J. Keller
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey S. Kelley
Mr. Kent A. Kelley and 

Ms. Mary Louise Beardsley
Mr. and Mrs. Myron T. Kelley
Ms. Annita Kelly
Mr. David W. Kelly
Mr. J. Michael Kelly
Mr. and Mrs. Peter G. Kelly
Mr. and Mrs. Peter J. Kelly
Mr. and Mrs. Scot Kelly
Mr. Jonathan L. Kempner
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Kennedy
Ms. Joan M. Kent
Mr. Stephen W. Kent
Mrs. Jill B. Keogh
Ms. Mary Kester
Mr. and Mrs. Michael G. Kilgore
The Reverend Billy Kim
Mrs. Collier C. Kimball
Mr. and Mrs. Donald C. Klawiter
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Klein
Ms. Vicky Kleinman
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan B. Kluger
Ms. Ursula Knaeusel
Ms. Marily Knieriemen
Ms. Esther P. Knierim
Mr. Robert N. Knight Jr.
Mr. Peter Kondor

Konu Town
Dr. and Mrs. M. Roman Kotlarek
Mr. Elias G. Koury
Mr. Robert C. Kowerski
Mr. Donald Kraft
Dr. and Mrs. Patrick G. Kraft
Mr. Orin S. Kramer
Mr. and Mrs. Abraham Krasnoff
Mr. Frank Kratovil
Dr. Bruce Krawisz and 

Dr. Jane Krawisz
Mr. and Mrs. John Kreitler
Mr. Steven Kremm and 

Ms. Susan Corbett
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Kresge
Mr. and Mrs. Neil Krivanek
Ms. Carole Kronenberg
Mr. and Mrs. Ehren S. Kruger
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W.

Krughoff
Dr. and Dr. Robert F. Krywicki
Mr. Nickolas J. Kyser
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J.

Labowsky
Mr. Adam J. Laden and 

Ms. Liz Lieberman
Mrs. Julia Ladner
Mr. and Mrs. Michael S.

Laflamme
Mr. John R. Laing and Ms.

Kathleen B. King
Ms. Debra Lamfers
Mr. Richard Lapidos
Dr. Margot C. LaPointe
Mr. and Mrs. Robert F.

Lassandrello
Mr. Thomas A. Last
Mr. and Mrs. Rejean Laverdiere
Mr. and Mrs. Michael B. Laws
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick T. Leahy
Mr. and Mrs. David Ledrick
Mr. and Mrs. Eugene C. Lee
Dr. and Mrs. John E. Lee
Ms. Julie Lee-Ancajas
The Reverend and 

Mrs. Richard J. Lehman
Mr. David O. Leiwant
Mr. and Mrs. Harold Lenhart
Mr. Jay Leno
Mr. Richard A. Lenon
Ms. Suzanne L. Lerner
Mr. Jan Leschly
Dr. Lotte Leschly and 

Mr. Jan Leschly
Mr. and Mrs. Larry N. Lesh
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond M.

Leuthold
Mr. H.R. Lewis
Dr. Joyce A. LiBethe and 

Dr. Gary T. Raflo
Mr. Wilbert Lick
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Lieb
Mrs. Mary E. Liebman
Mr. Mark Lindborg and 

Ms. Laurie Parson
Dr. Stan Lindenfeld
Mr. and Mrs. Frank E. Lindquist
Mr. Eugene M. Link and 

Ms. Ann Marie Hirsch
Mr. and Mrs. Roger C. Linn

Mr. and Mrs. Peter Lion
Mr. Robert Livsey and 

Ms. Terri Boyd
Dr. Michael Lloyd
Ms. Dorothy Lockspeiser
Mr. and Mrs. James Logie
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Lohin
Ms. Edith A. Lohman
Mr. and Mrs. George Lohrer
Mr. Harold K. Lonsdale and 

Ms. Bryn Hazell
Mrs. Gay M. Love
Mr. and Mrs. John Lovitt
The Honorable James G.

Lowenstein
Reed Lowenstein and Melanie

Hanan Philanthropic Fund 
of The Jewish Community
Foundation of Greater 
Kansas City

Dr. Willa Dean Lowery
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Ludema
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. Luebke
Ms. D’Arcy Luna
Mr. Eric A. Lutkin
Mrs. Edgar F. Luton
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas V. Lydon
Ms. Joanne Lyman
Ms. Marian Lyons
Ms. Anne Marie Macari
Dr. and Mrs. James A. Mack
Mr. Christopher M. Mackey and

Ms. Donna L. Cherniak
Mr. Grant Macleod
Mr. Matt MacWilliams
Dr. and Mrs. Robert L. Maddox
Dr. James H. Maguire
Mr. Mark Manasse and 

Ms. Janet Mohle-Boetani
The Honorable and 

Mrs. Charles T. Manatt
Ms. Catherine S. Manegold
Dr. Robert W. Mann
Mr. A. Russell Marane
Mr. and Mrs. James F. 

Marchman III
Mr. David R. Mares and 

Ms. Jane Milner Mares
Ms. Susie W. Margolin
Ms. Petra A. Marquart
Mr. Colin A. Marshall and 

Ms. Maureen A. Ulicny
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. Marshall
Mr. J. Thomas Martin
The Honorable Anne C.

Martindell
Mr. Thomas F. Maser
Mason Brothers Architectural

Salvage
Mr. John S. Mason
Mr. and Mrs. Lowell B. Mason
Mr. and Mrs. Steve Mathias
Mr. and Mrs. Benjamin L.

Mathis
Mr. and Mrs. Stewart K. Mattson
Mr. Michael A. Matuson and

Ms. Jean M. Suplick
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Maxwell
Mr. and Mrs. Marc Mayer
Mr. and Mrs. Oscar G. Mayer

Mr. Raymond Mazurek
Mr. Mark McCall and 

Ms. Marianna Kulak
Mr. and Mrs. Alex F. McCalla
Ms. Clare McCamy
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen McCarter
Mr. and Mrs. George R.

McCarthy
Mr. and Mrs. Stuart McCarty
Mrs. Russell McCaughan
Mr. William Tom McCollister Jr.
Col. and Mrs. Richard D.

McFarland, USA (Ret.)
Dr. and Mrs. Sam G. McFarland
Mr. John Warren McGarry and

Ms. Marietta Ethier
Dr. Mary Jo McGee-Brown
Mr. and Mrs. James T. 

McIntyre Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. David L. McKee
Mr. and Mrs. Steven A.

McKenna
Mr. and Mrs. Hugh J. McLellan
Mr. Patrick McMahon
Ms. Virginia L. McPhearson
Mr. and Mrs. Walter McRackan
Ms. Marilyn J. Gohr McTaggart
The Honorable Ned R.

McWherter
Ms. Bonnijane G. Mehlhop
Mr. and Mrs. Mathias

Meinzinger
Dr. Hugh E. Meredith
Mr. John Merryman and Ms.

Jennifer Carr
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher

Messina
Mr. W. Peter Metz
Mr. and Mrs. Richard L.

Michaux
Mr. and Mrs. C. David Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Donald L. Miller
Mr. Douglas E. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Edward R. Miller
The Honorable and 

Mrs. G. William Miller
Mr. and Mrs. James H. Miller
Mr. Larry Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Martin J. Miller
Ms. Patricia J. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Virgil L. Miller
Mr. Phillip Minix and 

Ms. Gretchen Blythe
Miss Merle Mitchell
Mr. Richard P. Moe
Mr. H. Mohrenweiser
Dr. and Mrs. James J. Mongan
Mr. David Moninger
Mrs. Stella Montavon
Mr. Richard T. Monteith
Mr. and Mrs. Richard L. Moody
Mr. and Mrs. Leslie Moore
Ms. Anne C. Moos
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas F. Moran
Mr. and Mrs. David Morris
Mr. Harold E. Morris
Ms. Jill L. Mortensen and 

Ms. S. Kay Phillips
The Honorable Alfred H. Moses
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The Honorable Ambler H. 
Moss Jr.

Ann and Jerry Moss
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Mount
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth F.

Mountcastle Jr.
Mr. Pushkor Mukerji
Mr. Richard A. Muller
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher G.

Mumford
Mr. Arshad Mumtaz
Dr. and Mrs. Robert S. 

Munford III
Ms. Myra Munson
Mr. and Mrs. Edward Murray
Dr. Susan Murray
Myung Sung Church
Dr. and Mrs. Daniel E. Nathan
Dr. and Mrs. Edward M. Nathan
Mr. Irvin B. Nathan
Dr. and Mrs. George W.

Naumburg Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. John J. Naveau
Mr. William B. Neely
Mr. Seth Neiman and 

Dr. Lauren Speeth
Ms. Lisa A. Nelms
Ms. Carol Nelson
Mrs. Daisy B. Nelson
Dr. Diana F. Nelson
Mr. and Mrs. Earnest J. Nelson
Ms. Achsah Nesmith
Mr. and Mrs. Frederic Neuburger
New Leaf Fund
Ms. Edith Ngan
Mr. Ezra H. Nichols
Mr. and Mrs. Joe Nicholson
Dr. Aileen Nicoletti
Mr. and Mrs. George O. 

Nokes Jr.
Ms. Pamela K. Nolen
Mr. Claude Nolle and 

Ms. Nancy E. Badura
Mr. Robert T. Nutt
Dr. Joseph Nye
Mr. and Mrs. Gary O’Callaghan
Ms. Mary L. O’Keefe
Ms. Lyndi B. O’Laughlin
Ms. Terri O’Quin
Mr. George W. O’Quinn
Dr. Gilbert S. Omenn and 

Ms. Martha A. Darling
Dr. and Mrs. Kent L. Oots
Mr. and Mrs. Mark F. Opel
Mrs. Eunice B. Ordman and 

Dr. Edward T. Ordman
Ms. Anne V. Osborn
Ms. Hilvie E. Ostrow
Mr. William Overby
Mrs. Dorothy B. Padgett
Mrs. Lisa Page
Pajwell Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. William P. Palmore
Parachin Design Studios
Dr. Lois J. Paradise
Mr. Richard A. Park
Dr. Tae K. Park
Ms. Geraldine J. Parker
Mr. and Mrs. Mark S. Pash

Dr. and Mrs. Robert A. Pastor
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher D.

Patton
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Payne
Mr. and Mrs. Steven N. Payne
Ms. Sandra J. Payzant
Ms. Millicent Peabody
Mr. Daniel J. Peacock
Mr. and Mrs. William Peake
Mr. Dwight Pedersen
Mr. Stephen Peet
Mr. Leonard Pellettiri and 

Ms. Mary B. Rose
Dr. and Mrs. E. Raymond

Penhollow
Mr. and Mrs. Godfrey Perrott
Mr. Frank L. Perry
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas C. Perry
Mr. and Mrs. Henry Peterson
Dr. John T. Peterson and Dr.

Mary Vander Maten
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Peterson
Mr. Nicholas Petraglia
The Honorable Donald K.

Petterson
Mr. and Mrs. Robert C. Pew
Mr. J. Randall Peyser
Mr. and Mrs. David P. Phillips
Mr. James B. Phipps
Mr. and Mrs. David Charles

Pickard
Mr. and Mrs. Jack E. Pierce
Mr. Anders Platou
Ms. Una Marie Pierce
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas S. Plum
Mr. and Mrs. William M.

Plummer
Mr. Dan Buttimer and Dr.

Elizabeth Plunkett-Buttimer
Ms. Angelina T. Pommier
Mr. Waitat Peter Poon
Mr. William Wade Pope
Ms. Alice Popkin
Mr. Raymond L. Poston Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce Powell
Ms. Karen D. Powell
Mr. Thomas A. Power
The Honorable Frank Press and

Dr. Billie K. Press
Ms. Donna Price
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory K. Price
Mr. Chesley H. Prince and 

Mrs. Cathy A. Wilkins
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Pritchard Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. William M.

Protheroe
Mrs. Elizabeth P. Prothro
Thomas Pruitt Builders
Mr. and Mrs. Terry L. Pruitt
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph J. Pulliam
Ms. Anne L. Putnam
Dr. and Mrs. Leonard Radecki
Mr. William L. Raiser
Mr. and Mrs. Donald J. Raithel
Ms. Mary S. Ramseur
Mr. and Mrs. Ned Rand Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Peter A. Raquet
Ms. Amelie L. Ratliff
Mr. and Mrs. William T. 

Ratliff III

Mr. Rajesh K. Raut
Mr. and Mrs. Arthur Ravicz
Mr. and Mrs. Carlton M. Ray
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Rea
Mr. Bennie C. Reagan
Mr. N. Damodar Reddy
Mr. and Mrs. D. Paul Regan
Mr. Michael Reich and 

Ms. Ann Terry
Mr. Richard M. Reilly
Mr. Mark Reinhardt
Mr. Michael J. Repass
Mr. and Mrs. William Revelle
Mr. Skip Rhodes
Ms. Pamela Richard
Mr. and Mrs. Anthony J.

Richards
Dr. and Mrs. Frank O. 

Richards Sr.
Mr. Clarence H. Ridley
Rivendell Bicycle Works
Mr. and Mrs. Hal Rives
Nora Roberts Foundation
Mr. Jerry B. Roberts
Ms. Teresa L. Roberts
Mr. Patrick F. Robertson
Mr. Sanford R. Robertson
Ms. Shelby B. Robertson
Mr. Douglas G. Robinson
Dr. and Mrs. Edward H.

Robinson
Dr. Harriet L. Robinson
Mr. Alexander R. H. Rodriguez
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Rogers
Dr. and Mrs. Edward H. Romond
Mr. Rod Roquemore
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Ross
Dr. Randi V. Rosvoll
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Roth
Ms. Rose Roth
Mr. and Mrs. Jack R. Rued
Mr. Herman J. Russell
Dr. George S. Rust and 

Dr. Cynthia T. Rust
Ms. Julie Ruth
Ms. Vickie Rutkowski
Mr. and Mrs. Nicholas M. Ryan
Ms. Carina A. Ryder
The SAD Foundation
Ms. Virginia D. Samplawski
Mr. Noel D. Sanborn
Mr. Peter S. P. Sanborn
Mr. Myron L. Sandberg and 

Dr. Marva J. Dawn-Sandberg
Mr. Don W. Sands
Mr. and Mrs. Floyd C. Sanger Jr.
Mrs. Peter A. Santucci
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathon D.

Saphier
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Sapsford
Mr. and Mrs. Russell G. Sarner
Sauder Manufacturing Company
Mr. and Mrs. Myrl Sauder
Ms. Marjorie Sauers
Mr. and Mrs. Michael R.

Saunders
Ms. Lisa M. Scales
Mr. and Mrs. Don R. Scarbrough
Mr. Michael B. Schaedle

Mr. Philip A. Schaefer
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D.

Schattman
Ms. Gail Schatz
Dr. Ronald Schechter
Ms. Joanne Schehl
Mr. and Mrs. Richard F. Schiferl
Ms. Mary Schlechter
Mr. Mark J. Schmaltz
Dr. and Mrs. Lanny D. Schmidt
Dr. Ruth A. Schmidt
Mr. and Mrs. Darwin W. Schmitt
Ms. Ruth Schoenbeck
Mr. and Mrs. John G. Schreiber
Dr. and Mrs. Steven A.

Schroeder
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Schule
Mr. and Mrs. William

Schumacher
The Honorable and Mrs.

William B. Schwartz Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Carl Schweser
Mr. Nicholas E. Scordalakes
Ms. Marjorie Y. Scott
Mr. and Mrs. William H.

Seemann II
Mr. Paul Seiden
Dr. Timothy H. Self and 

Dr. Melissa Matlock-Self
Mr. Marc M. Seltzer
Dr. Jane K. Setlow
Mr. Michael F. Sexton
Ms. Glenda Seyfarth
Mr. Charles M. Shaffer Jr.
Mr. Lalit Shahani
Dr. Naveed Shams and 

Mrs. Seema N. Shams
Dr. Lloyd S. Shapley
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy Sharon
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Sharp
Sheffield Harrold Charitable

Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Dudley Sheffler
Ms. Del K. Sheldon
Ms. Sally A. Shelton-Colby
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen C.

Sheppard
Dr. Lincoln Shimomura
Mr. and Mrs. Sudheer Shirali
Ms. Dorothy Shirk
Mr. William M. Sharp and 

Ms. Jane E. Shivers
Dr. Mark M. Shoemaker and 

Dr. Joyce N. Shoemaker
Mr. and Mrs. Martin H. Shuler
Dr. William C. Silberman
Mr. and Mrs. L. William Silzle
Mr. Tom Simone
Mr. and Mrs. Murali Sivarajan
Mr. and Mrs. Benjamin D.

Slingluff
Mr. Byrom J. Smith
Ms. Catherine Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Smith
Dr. Forrest A. Smith and 

Mr. Jack P. Philpot
Mr. and Mrs. Joel Smith
Ms. Juereta Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Kirby Smith III
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Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence P. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Louis C. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. P.R. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Richard C. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Richard M. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen R. Smith
Mr. David S. Smoak
Mr. and Mrs. S. Gary Snodgrass
Mr. and Mrs. Peter J. Solomon
Mr. and Mrs. Joachim R.

Sommer
Ms. Barbara Sommers
Mr. and Mrs. Neeraj Soni
Mr. and Mrs. Mento A. Soponis
Mr. and Mrs. Bernard A. Sottili
Mr. Garry South and 

Ms. Christine W. Lee
South Moon Sales
Mr. and Mrs. Carlton E. Speck
Dr. Stuart Speedie and 

Dr. Marilyn Speedie
Mr. Clay D. Spence
Mr. David W. Spence
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Spiner
Mr. and Mrs. Rex J. Spivey
Ms. Joanne Springer
Mr. Billy L. Spruell and 

Ms. Barbara H. Aiken
Mr. Lane S. Srochi
Dr. Anne St. Goar
Dr. and Mrs. Robert V. Stachnik
Mr. Marc A. Stackler
Mr. and Mrs. Bill Stanback
Ms. Polly Stanbridge
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth P. Stapp
Dr. Michael D. Stargel
Dr. and Mrs. Jery R. Stedinger
Mr. and Mrs. Louis A. Steinberg
Mr. Charles F. Steineger III
Ms. Wilhelmina M. Stemmer
Mr. and Mrs. Robert I. Stern
Mr. and Mrs. W. Rod Stern
Mr. Roger A. Stevens
Richard W. and Mildred F.

Steves Family Foundation
Ms. Marilyn Steward
Mr. and Mrs. Gordon C. Stewart
Ms. Jackie Stewart
Mr. James W. Stewart III
Mr. Norman Stewart and 

Ms. Carolyn A. McDonald
Mr. and Mrs. Robert D. Stillman
Dr. and Mrs. Verner Stillner
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Stone
Mr. and Mrs. John Stone
Ms. Misty M. Stone
Mr. Robert M. Stone and 

Ms. Diane E. Christensen
Ms. Ann L. Stovall
Mr. and Mrs. Wally Stover
Ms. Jennifer Streit
Dr. and Mrs. Avery W.

Strickland Jr.
Ms. Margaret Sturtevant
Mr. and Mrs. William C. Stutt
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Sullivan
Ms. Thelma Sullivan
Mr. and Mrs. James E.

Summerville

Ms. Mary P. Sundheimer
Dr. Brian P. Sutton and Ms.

Cheryl Santagate-Sutton
Suwon Central Baptist Church

of Seoul, Korea
Ms. Constance Swank
Dr. Richard Swensen and The

Reverend Grace Swensen
Ms. Emilia S. Switgall
Dr. and Mrs. Zia E. Taheri
Mr. Roy N. Tamura and 

Ms. Debra K. Warner
Mr. Shao Kang Tang
Mr. and Mrs. Dan C. Tate Sr.
Ms. Elizabeth Taylor
Mr. and Mrs. Gary G. Taylor
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Taylor
Mr. Ronald Taylor
Ms. Jo Ellen Teasdale
Ms. Barbara Teichert
Mr. Michael Temcov
Mr. Christopher P. Terilli
Dr. and Mrs. Claude E. Terry
Mr. Patrick A. Terry
Mr. and Mrs. Carl Terwilliger
Dr. Michael H. Thaut
Mr. and Mrs. David Thayer
Mr. and Mrs. Mike P. Thayer
Ms. Allison Thomas
Ms. Melinda M. Thomas
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas L. Thomas
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas J.

Thomasma
Ms. Margot K. Thomson
Mrs. Olive Tiller
Ms. Beverly Tippen
Mr. James M. Toomey
The Reverend Dr. and 

Mrs. Gordon M. Torgersen
Mr. and Mrs. Gino Torretta
Ms. Dorset Townley
Mr. and Mrs. Theodore W. Tozer
Mr. and Mr. Frederick Tresher
Mr. and Mrs. Charles H. Trillich
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Tucker
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Tudor
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy C. Tuff
Mr. and Mrs. Leslie G. Turner
Mr. Steven P. Turner and 

Ms. Thuy Nguyen
Mr. James R. Uber
The Honorable Thomas A.

Unverferth
Mr. James M. Vaillancourt
Ms. Judith Valor
Van Andel Foundation
Mary and Lowell Van DeRiet

Family Fund of the
Minneapolis Foundation

The Reverend and Mrs. Lowell
W. Van Tassel

Dr. Jennifer S. Van Vickle and
Ms. Carolyn H. Cole

Ambassador and Mrs. William J.
vanden Heuvel

Mr. and Mrs. J. Edward Varallo
Mr. David Vatthauer
Mr. and Mrs. Roger P. Vincent
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Vinton
Mr. and Mrs. James P. Volcker

Mr. Paul Von Kuster
Mr. Bud Vos
Ms. Lois P. Vrhel
Mr. and Mrs. William D. Waddill
Dr. Judith Elaine Wade
Ms. Juanita Z. Walker
Mr. Lester D. Wallace
Mr. Donald J. Ward and 

Ms. Jennifer L. Eis
Mr. Edward W. Ward
The Honorable Horace T. Ward
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Ward
Mr. and Mrs. Frank W. 

Warner III
Mr. and Mrs. J. N. Warren
Mr. and Mrs. Roger D. Warren
Mr. and Mrs. William L. Warren
Dr. and Mrs. Nelson B. Watts
Dr. and Mrs. J. Dix Wayman
Mr. John C. Weaver
Dr. Joseph G. Weaver
Mr. and Mrs. Charles E. Webster
Mr. Rogers Weed
Ms. Susen Wehner
Mr. George T. Wein
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley C.

Weinberg
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew M. Weir
Mr. and Mrs. James Weiss
Mr. Stanley P. Weiss
Mr. Samuel H. Weissbard
Mr. Marvin F. Weissberg
Ms. Suzanne H. Welles
Mr. and Mrs. John Wells
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Wells
Mr. and Mrs. Robert C. Welter
Dr. Joseph D. Duffey and The

Honorable Anne Wexler
Karen and Robert Whalen
Ms. Marilee Wheeler
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher White
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph F. White
Ms. Patricia White
Mr. Samuel P. White and 

Ms. Eva R. Cordes
Ms. Tracey W. Whitehouse
Mr. and Mrs. Paul K. Wichman
Dr. and Mrs. Per H. Wickstrom
Dr. and Mrs. David A. Wiebe
Dr. and Mrs. Hartmut

Wiedersich
Ms. Carolyn Wood and 

Mr. Leigh Wilco
Mr. and Mrs. Peter D. Wildes
Ms. Cheryl Wilfong
John and Marcia Wilkinson
Mr. and Mrs. Anthony Williams
Mrs. Barbara Williams
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas D.

Williams
Mrs. Lillie B. Williams
Dr. Marilyn Williams
Mr. Roger Williams
Mr. James W. Williamson
Dr. John S. Willis and 

Dr. Judith Horowitz Willis
Ms. Dena G. Willmore
Mr. and Mrs. John C. Wilson
Ms. Peggy A. Wilson

Mr. and Mrs. Matthew A.
Wiltshire

Ms. Mary K. Winchester
Miss Rainey Isabel Wise
The Honorable Milton A. Wolf
The Wonderful Foundation
Ms. Julia T. Wood
Mr. and Mrs. Leonard W. Wood
Mr. and Mrs. Peter H. Wood
Dr. Patricia A. Woodall
Mr. and Mrs. James R. Woodbury
Ms. Marion Woodfield
Mr. Albert C. Woodroof III
Ms. Doris Woods
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas T.

Woodson
Mr. and Mrs. J. Allen Woodward
Dr. and Mrs. Stinson E. Worley
Ms. Gina Wright
Mr. Homer Wright
Mr. Alexander Wu
Mr. and Mrs. Prescott P.

Wurlitzer
Mr. and Mrs. Merrill A. Yavinsky
Ms. Brigid Yentz
Ms. Marie Elise Young
Mr. and Mrs. Michael P. Young
Mrs. Mae Zahl
Mr. Richard W. Zahn
Ms. Clare P. Zens
Mr. Eric Zerof
Mr. James R. Ziegler
Ms. Patricia Ziegler
Ms. Virginia Allen Zimmerman
Mr. and Mrs. Brooks Zug

The Carter Center
appreciates the

support of its many
donors. Although we
are able to list only
those gifts that totaled
$1,000 or more during
the fiscal year, we are
grateful for each gift,
in whatever amount,
which helps to support
the vital work of The
Carter Center. Every
effort has been made
for accuracy. Should
there be any omission
or error, we apologize
and ask that it be
brought to our 
attention.
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Anonymous (28)
Dr. Alvin L. Ackerman Trust
Ms. Caroline Adams
Dr. and Mrs. Holyoke P. Adams
Mr. and Mrs. Shawn M. Aebi
Dr. John F. Ahearne
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Allen
Mrs. Philip H. Alston
Ms. Carrie Amestoy
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W.

Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. D. C. Anderson
Ms. Marion Anderson-Peat
Ms. Mary R. Angulo
Mr. and Mrs. Colin S. Archibald
Ms. Jane Ariail
Mr. Carroll Arnold
Mr. and Mrs. Frederick J. Artz
Ms. Ethel J. Astwood
Ms. Kathleen M. Bader
Mrs. Mary Balfour
Mrs. Cecilia T. Banulski
Ms. Nancy E. Barnwell
Ms. Hildegard Bartkowski
Ms. Martha H. Beach
Dr. Christa-Maria Beardsley
Mr. Jay Beck
Mr. Lon A. Beck
Mr. Richard S. Beebe
Mrs. Mae Woods Bell
Mrs. Jean B. Bergmark
Ms. Mary Ellen Bernhardt
Mrs. Robert F. Bigham
Mr. and Mrs. Lee N. Blatt
Mrs. Elsie S. Bleimiller
Dr. Amy R. Boscov
Mrs. Vernon O. Bowles
Mrs. Laura Boyd
Mr. and Mrs. Albert Boysen
Mr. Raymond W. Brandt
Ms. Edith R. Bray
Mr. and Mrs. John E. Brelsford
Ms. Angela Brown
Ms. Ella L. Brown
Mr. and Mrs. J. Chris Brown
Ms. Mary L. Brown
Kenneth E. Bruce, Esq.
Ms. Barbara Bruner
Ms. Beatrice Buck
Ms. Virginia M. Bukowski
Mr. and Mrs. Richard L. Bulinski
Ms. E. Beatrice Bumgardner
Ms. LuVella C. Burnett
Ms. Elaine Burstatte
Mr. and Mrs. Henry L. Burton
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce C. Byrne
Mr. and Mrs. Michael G. Byrne
Mr. James C. Calaway
Mrs. Margaret J. Canavan
The Reverend Dr. F. Andrew

Carhartt and Mrs. Virginia
Carhartt

Dr. and Mrs. Ernest Carlson
Mr. and Mrs. Don E. Carter
Mr. Floyd William Carter

The Honorable Jimmy Carter
and Rosalynn Carter

Mr. and Mrs. Kermon A. Carter
Mr. and Mrs. Alvin Chaiken
Mr. and Mrs. Donald B. Chalker
Ms. Estrella Chan
Dr. Jessalyne L. Charles
Mr. Robert Charm
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Chen
Mr. and Mrs. Carl C. Clark
Mr. Charles Clark and 

Mrs. Lois Clark
Ms. Patricia J. Clark
Ms. Ferne Cleven
Dr. Gail L. Clifford
Ms. Nancy B. Cogsdale
Mr. Mark B. Cohen and 

Ms. Sheila M. Fyfe
Mrs. Richard A. Coker
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph A. Coleman
Mr. Herbert A. Conley
Ms. Paula M. Cooke
Mr. and Mrs. R. Selwyn

Copeland
Mr. and Mrs. Jesse M. Corum III
Mr. John H. Cox
Mrs. Margaret S. Crawford
Ms. Carol Ann Crotty
Dr. Thomas Crowell
Mr. and Mrs. William B.

Crowley
Mrs. Ann Baker Currie
Ms. Barbara L. Curry
Dr. and Mrs. Paul Cutler
Mr. and Mrs. Eugene Dahnke
Mr. James F. Dalton
Mr. and Mrs. John Daniels
Mr. and Mrs. Victor Daub Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. George A. Daum
Ms. Adalyn Davis
Mr. Christopher L. Davis
Mr. and Mrs. David M. Davis
Dr. Margaret D. Davis
Mrs. Jon A. de Vos
Mr. Bernard S. Derow
Mr. and Mrs. Jack F. Dittman
Ms. Alice Donaldson
Ms. Madalene Eckstein
Dr. K. David G. Edwards
Mr. and Mrs. William T. Edwards
Mr. Alfred Egendorf
Mr. William D. M. Elfrink
Ms. Gail M. Ervin
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas N. Evans
Mr. Willis M. Everett III
Mr. Curtis Farley and Ms.

Barbara Jones
Marjorie A. Farley
Mr. and Mrs. William C. Finch
Mr. and Mrs. John Folsom
Mr. Guy Formichella
Ms. Nell Funk
Mr. W.F. Gasner and 

Ms. Lurlene Kyles
Ms. Kathryn A. George

Mr. and Mrs. Darwin Gervais
Ms. Elizabeth Gibbons
Mr. Harland Gibson
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Gillen
Mr. and Mrs. Martin A. Gilman
Mr. Donald S. Gingrich
Mr. Alejandro R. Gonzales-

Garcia
Mr. and Mrs. Ken Gouw
Ms. Beverly J. Grant
Ms. Catherine Green
Ms. Ruth A. Green
Ms. Mary Louise Greene
Ms. Matilda M. Grey
Mrs. Leslie Grimes and Mr.

Daniel C. Grimes
Ms. Cynthia F. Grinnell
Ms. Kay Hamner
Mr. and Mrs. Earl K. Hanna
Mr. Richard C. Hardes
Rev. and Mrs. William K.

Harman
Ms. Janet Harold
Mr. and Mrs. David H. Harris
Mr. and Mrs. Hubert L. Harris Jr.
Mr. Wayne Harsh
Mr. Leonard W. Hass
Mr. Joseph R. Haun
Heartspring Foundation
Mr. John W. Henry and 

Dr. Rachel Henry
Ms. Aileen A. Herrmann
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Hochman
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne E.

Hochstetler
Ms. Edith Holiday
Ms. R. Diane Holliday
Mr. and Mrs. Alan Horne
Mr. Scott A. Horning
Ms. Mattie P. Howze
Mr. Robert R. Humphrey
Mr. Richard G. Hutcheson III
Mr. Robert A. Ipock Jr. and 

Dr. Kim Ipock
John Izard, Esq.
Mr. and Mrs. Robert B. Jackson
Ms. M. Christine Jacobs
Ms. Diane S. Jacqmin
Ms. Bella Jarrett
Ms. Barbara Ann Jezl
Dr. and Mrs. J. Timothy Johnson
Mr. James S. Johnson
Ms. Phyllis Cady Johnson
Ms. Sheelah R. Johnson
Ms. Susan F. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Warren Jones
Mr. and Mrs. John Jopling
Mr. W. Hamilton Jordan
Ms. Marie J. Kane
Mr. and Mrs. Harold Kapelovitz
Mr. John T. Katsaros
Ms. Eva Madsen Kelly
Ms. Katherine A. Kent
Ms. Judy Kieffer
Mrs. Charlotte Kimelman

Ambassador Henry L. Kimelman
Mr. and Mrs. David Kirk
Mrs. Sylvia S. Kirkman and 

Ms. Jo Anne Kirkman
Mr. Bill L. Knowles
Mr. and Mrs. Francis J. 

Koppeis Jr.
Ms. Susan Kotar
Mr. and Mrs. Myron Kownacki
Mrs. Georgia E. Koyl
Mr. Elmer C. Kreisel Jr. and 

Ms. Vikki A. Schick
Mrs. Emma Jayne Kretlow
Mr. and Mrs. Franklin Kuhlman
Dr. and Mrs. Bidy Kulkarni
Ms. Pauline Kummer
Mr. Greg Lafortune
Mr. Kenneth C. Lang
Mr. and Mrs. J. Brand Laseter
Mr. Earl A. Lash
Mr. James H. Laubach
Ms. Elaine Lazzeroni
Ms. Tammye M. Lee
Ms. Anne M. Lennon
Mr. and Mrs. Paul R. Leonard Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Glenn N. Lesniak
Mr. and Mrs. Justin C. Lewis
Ms. Mary Lindsey Lewis
Mr. Albert Leyva
Dr. Sara Pamela Little
Ms. Mona Logsdon
Mr. Harold K. Lonsdale and 

Ms. Bryn Hazell
Mr. and Mrs. Lloyd R. Loven
Dr. Willa Dean Lowery
Ms. Jane W. Lusk
Mr. and Mrs. Anthony T. Maggio
Mr. David Maginnes and 

Dr. Fairlie Maginnes
Mr. A. Russell Marane
Ms. Barbara Maros
Mr. Neilson Marshall
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas F. Marshall
Ms. Marilyn Martin
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Maxwell
Mr. and Mrs. W. Steve Maxwell
Mr. and Mrs. Ben G. McDow
Mrs. Camille E. McKee
Mr. and Mrs. A. Dean McKenzie
Mr. and Mrs. Hugh J. McLellan
Mr. William W. McMillan
Ms. Mary M. McPherson
Ms. Peggy J. Meade-Cohen
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas F. Melvin
Mr. Robert G. Merkle
Mr. Robert Messersmith
Ms. Ethel P. Metcalfe
Ms. Jill M. Meuser and 

Mr. Gary L. McKown
Ms. Margery Meyer
Ms. Janice Miller
Ms. Ruth H. Miner
Mrs. Mildred A. Mitchell
Dr. Masakazu Miyagi and Dr.

Mary Miyagi
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Mr. and Mrs. T.R. Mock
Mr. and Mrs. Edwin L. Moon
The Reverend L. Katherine

Moore
Mr. and Mrs. John J. Moores Sr.
Ms. Sandra Morrison
Mrs. Emily J. Mumma and 

Mr. Luke R. Mumma
Mrs. Barbara Brown Munford
Mr. and Mrs. Nordan C. Murphy
Ms. Ethel C. Naffah
Mr. Lee A. Nascimento
Mrs. Linda R. Nascimento
Mr. Phil Nash
Dr. and Mrs. Will L. Nash
Dr. and Mrs. Daniel E. Nathan
Dr. Joyce Neu
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce L. Newman
Mr. and Mrs. Ralph H. Nicolson
Ms. Barbara R. Nielsen
Mr. Samuel L. Norris
Mr. and Mrs. Walter T. Nyberg
Mr. George W. O’Quinn
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph O’Sullivan
Mrs. John W. Ogletree
Ms. Carol Ogline
Mr. and Mrs. Henry G. Osborne
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel L.

Ostrander
Ms. Mary Kay Parham
Ms. Carole M. Park
Ms. Geraldine J. Parker
Mr. and Mrs. S. Thomas Parks
Mrs. Katherine W. Paterson and

Mr. John B. Paterson
Mr. and Mrs. Randy G. Paul
Mr. and Mrs. Harold J. Peters
Ms. Una Marie Pierce
Mrs. John M. Pope
Ms. Rose Prisko
The Reverend James H. Purks III
Mr. John L. Quigley Jr. and 

Ms. Barbara R. Cole
Ms. Claudia Ramisch
Ms. Martha J. Reddout
Mrs. Annie T. Redman
Ms. Magdalen M. Redman
Mr. Kurt A. Reichle
Mrs. Suzanne C. Reichle
Ms. Augustine J. Rhodes
Mr. Fred A. Richards
Ms. Kendra M. Riden
Mr. and Mrs. Carl Rigney
Ms. Michelle Riley
Dr. and Mrs. Edward H.

Robinson
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald A.

Rosenthal
Mr. and Mrs. Conway Rulon-

Miller
Mr. Cecil L. Russell
Ms. Elizabeth H. Russell
Mr. Robert K. Russell Jr.
Ms. Loretta Russo
Ms. Cynthia K. Sabin

Mr. and Mrs. James Sallen
Ms. Irma Sandage
Mr. and Mrs. Russell G. Sarner
Ms. Janet Sawyer
Ms. Bernice L. Schaefer
Dr. John Schatmeyer
Mr. Bob Schoos
Ms. Edna I. Schram
Ms. Elsa N. Schultz
The Honorable and 

Mrs. William B. Schwartz Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Walter R. Scott
Mr. and Mrs. LaRoy E. Seaver
Ms. Ruth M. Seibert
Mr. and Mrs. James H.

Shackelford
Mr. Christopher R. Shantz
Dr. Bertram H. Shapiro
Mr. and Mrs. Edward C. Shearer
Mr. Jason W. Sheedy
Mr. and Mrs. Robert

Shellenbarger
Mr. Allen W. Shelton Jr.
Ms. Marjorie F. Shipe
Ms. Ruth Shults and 

Mr. Charles Bradley
Mr. and Mrs. Martin H. Silton
Dr. and Mrs. William H.

Simpson
Mr. and Mrs. Brent L. Slay
Ms. Dorcas Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Glenn Smouse
Mr. and Mrs. Baird Stephens
Mr. Duke S. Stewart
Mrs. Milton D. Stewart
Ms. Misty M. Stone
Ms. Beverly M. Stoy
Ms. Mary B. Strauss
Mr. and Mrs. Maynard F. Stukey
Dr. and Mrs. James Sun
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Swaner
The Reverend and 

Mrs. M. Thomas Swantner
Ms. Katharine Swift
Mr. and Mrs. Elyseo Taylor
Ms. Nancy J. Taylor
Ms. Jo Ellen Teasdale
Mr. and Mrs. W. Benson Temple
Ms. Mary Frances Templer and

Mr. Darryl Langdon Templer
Ms. Anne G. B. Thomas
Dr. Gail E. Thomas
Mrs. Jane E. Thomas
Mr. Douglas R. Thompson
Mr. George R. Thornton
Mr. and Mrs. James F. Thorpe
Ms. Barbara Torode
Miss Louise Tucker
Ms. Charlene E. Twente
Dr. David U’Prichard
Mrs. Lisa U’Prichard
Mr. Arthur E. Ullrich
Mr. Pong Vilaysane
Mrs. A. Henry von Mechow
Ms. Lois P. Vrhel

Ms. Barbara Wadkins
Mr. and Mrs. Clifford K. Wallace
Mr. and Mrs. Denton Ward
Ms. Elizabeth Warren
Mrs. Joan Warzeka
Mr. Arthur G. Wasserman
Mrs. Lew R. Wasserman
Mr. and Mrs. Sam A. Way III
Dr. and Mrs. J. Dix Wayman
Mr. John C. Weaver
Ms. Janet Welsh
Ms. Helen H. West
Dr. Betty Jo White
Mrs. Lucy M. Whitney
Ms. Selma M. Wiener
Mrs. Carolyn Jones Williams
Ms. Patricia Wirth
Colonel and Mrs. Nat Wisser
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas H. Wood
Ms. Doris Woods
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas T.

Woodson
Ms. Adeline Wuslich
Colonel Mary H. Yeakel and

Colonel Virginia A. Metcalf
Mr. Hai Tee Young

VOLUNTEERS

Approximately 
164 volunteers

donated 10,237 
hours of service in
2004–2005. Their
energy and devotion
help the Center
achieve much more
with the resources 
it receives from its
financial contributors.
We thank our volun-
teers for their support.
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Thomas F. Chapman
Chairman
Equifax

Anthony N. Charaf
SVP, Technical Operations
Delta Air Lines

Bruce C. Coles
Chairman & CEO
MACTEC

Michael J. Coles
Chief Executive Officer
Caribou Coffee

John M. Cook
CT Investments

A. D. “Pete” Correll
Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer
Georgia-Pacific Corporation

Ann Cousins

Ann Wilson Cramer
Manager, Southern Area

External Programs
IBM Corporation

Robert Crispin
Chairman & CEO
ING Investment Management

E. Stockton Croft IV
Director
Arcapita

Elkin A. Cushman

F. T. “Tread” Davis Jr.
Partner
McKenna Long & Aldridge 

Kathleen Day

Rene Diaz
President and Chief 

Executive Officer
Diaz Foods

Salvador Diaz-Verson
Diaz-Verson Capital Investments

Larry I. Dorfman
President and CEO
APCO/EasyCare

Lisa Dunavin
Cushman & Wakefield

Robert G. Edge
Partner
Alston & Bird

Ed Ellis
Regional Vice President
Kimley-Horn and Associates

W. Douglas Ellis Jr.
Chairman
Southern Mills

James H. Blanchard
Chairman
Synovus Financial Corporation

Charles W. Brady
Chairman
AMVESCAP

Milton W. Brannon
Livingston Foundation

Charles M. Brewer
Chairman
Green Street Properties

Rosalind G. Brewer
Vice President
Kimberly-Clark Corporation

Ronald D. Brown
President and CEO
Atlanta Life Insurance

Amanda Brown-Olmstead
President/Chief Executive

Officer
A. Brown-Olmstead Associates

Guy F. Budinscak
Office Managing Partner
Deloitte & Touche

John H. “Pepper” Bullock Jr.
Managing Director
Northwestern Mutual 

Financial Network

Dr. Mary Brown Bullock
President
Agnes Scott College

Kenneth G. Byers Jr.
President
Byers Engineering Company

Timothy J. Cambias Sr.
Chairman and CEO
Massey-Fair Industrial

Kenneth S. Canfield
Partner
Doffermyre, Shields, Canfield,

Knowles & Devine

James B. Carson Jr.
Vice-Chairman
Carter

Amy Carter

Chip and Becky Carter

Hugh A. Carter Jr.
Chairman and President
Darby Printing Company

Jack and Elizabeth Carter

Jason and Kate Carter

Jeff and Annette Carter

Dan T. Cathy
President
Chick-fil-A

R. E. “Ted” Turner III
Turner Enterprises

William B. Turner
W. C. Bradley Co.

Robert A. Yellowlees
Global Payments

Erwin Zaban
National Service Industries

Limited Term Members
Hank Aaron
Senior Vice President
The Atlanta Braves

Kevin Abel
President
Abel Solutions

Alan R. Abrams
Co-Chairman, President 

and CEO
Abrams Industries

F. D. Ackerman
Chairman and CEO
BellSouth Corporation

H. Inman Allen
Chairman
Ivan Allen Workspace

Ronald W. Allen

Tricia Allen

Gayle Alston

Claire Arnold
CEO
Leapfrog Services

Thomas N. Bagwell
President and CEO
American Proteins

Gregory T. Baranco
President
Baranco Automotive Group

Thomas I. Barkin
Partner
McKinsey & Company

Thomas A. Barrow III
President
Tom Barrow Co.

Jean B. Bergmark

Garry Betty
Chief Executive Officer
EarthLink

J. Veronica Biggins
Partner
Heidrick & Struggles

Dr. Marilyn S. Black
Chairman and Chief Scientist
Air Quality Sciences

Chair
Frank J. Belatti
Chairman
AFC Enterprises

Vice Chair
Ingrid Saunders Jones
Senior VP, Corporate 

External Affairs
The Coca-Cola Company

Life Members
Mrs. Philip H. Alston Jr.

James S. Balloun

W. Frank Barron Jr.
Rome Coca-Cola Bottling

Company

Paula Lawton Bevington
Marcus Institute

Arthur M. Blank
The Arthur M. Blank 

Family Foundation

Jimmy Carter

Rosalynn Carter

John L. Clendenin
BellSouth Corporation

Bradley N. Currey Jr.
Rock-Tenn Company

A. W. “Bill” Dahlberg
Mirant Corporation

J. B. Fuqua
The Fuqua Companies

Luck F. Gambrell

T. Marshall Hahn Jr.
Georgia-Pacific Corporation

Robert M. Holder Jr.
The RMH Group

Donald R. Keough
Allen & Company

James R. Lientz Jr.
State of Georgia

Robert J. Lipshutz
Lipshutz, Greenblatt & King

John W. McIntyre
C&S Georgia Corporation

Kent C. “Oz” Nelson
United Parcel Service

William B. Schwartz Jr.

S. Stephen Selig III
Selig Enterprises

B. Franklin Skinner
BellSouth Telecommunications
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Charles S. Mayfield III
Principal
Chappell, Mayfield & Associates

James J. McAlpin Jr.
Chairman
Powell Goldstein

Robert F. McCullough
Senior Partner
AMVESCAP

James F. McDonald
Chairman, President and CEO
Scientific-Atlanta

Dr. Thomas C. Meredith
Chancellor
University System of Georgia

Steve Merritt

D. Kris Miller
President
Ackerman & Co.

Leo F. Mullin

Dan Myers
President and CEO
Alimera Sciences

Robert L. Nardelli
Chairman, President and CEO
The Home Depot 

Thomas E. Noonan
President and CEO
Internet Security Systems

Leon Novak
Principal
The Trilogy Group

James R. Nowicki
Enterprise Client Executive
EDS

Colleen Nunn

Dorothy B. “Dot” Padgett

Mike Patel
President
Diplomat Hotel Corporation

Elizabeth Plunkett-Buttimer
Chairman and Chief 

Executive Officer
Bowdon Manufacturing

Company

Jeffery C. Pope

Mark C. Pope IV
President
Geographics

Richard C. Ramsden
Partner
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Eric J. Joiner
President and COO
AJC International

Lewis H. Jordan
Wingspread Enterprises

W. Hamilton Jordan

Barbara Babbitt Kaufman
CEO
Kaufman Consulting

Blaine Kelley Jr.

Richard C. Kerns
Richard Kerns Truck Parts

James A. Kilberg
Vice President, Land

Management
Plum Creek Timber Company

Thomas W. Kitchin
Chairman and CEO
Jameson Inns

Joel M. Koblentz
Partner
Morgan Howard Worldwide

James B. Langford Jr.
State Director
The Trust for Public Land

Donald M. Leebern Jr.
Chairman and CEO
Georgia Crown 

Distributing Company

The Honorable Liane R.
Levetan

Jeff Levy
Chairman and CEO
Biltmore Communications

William H. Linginfelter
Chief Executive Officer
Wachovia Bank of Georgia

Scott A. Livengood

Gay M. Love
Chairman of the Board
Printpack

Joseph T. Mallof
Chairman and CEO
Ciba Vision Corp.

Mylle Mangum
Chief Executive Officer
International Banking

Technologies

Marilyn R. Marks

John S. Markwalter Jr.
President and CEO
Atlantic Trust Private Wealth

Management

Hubert L. “Herky” Harris Jr.
Chief Executive Officer
INVESCO North America

Ellen Weaver Hartman
President, Atlanta
Weber Shandwick Worldwide

Stanford R. Harvey III
Principal
Urban Collage

Laura M. Heery
President
Laura Heery Architecture 

& Planning

Babette Henagan
Managing Partner
Linx Partners

Joan E. Herbig
President and CEO
Cambia

Philip J. Hickey Jr.
Chairman and CEO
RARE Hospitality International

B. Harvey Hill Jr.
Partner
Alston & Bird

R. Glenn Hilliard
The Hilliard Group

Thomas D. Hills
Chief Financial Officer
State of Georgia

John R. Holder
Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer
Holder Properties

Janice M. Holyfield M.D.

G. Thomas Hough
Area Managing Partner
Ernst & Young

C. Tycho Howle
Chairman
nuBridges

L. Phillip Humann
Chairman and CEO
SunTrust Bank

Jerry Hunt

M. Christine Jacobs
Chief Executive Officer 

and President
Theragenics Corporation

T. Stephen Johnson
President
T. Stephen Johnson Associates

W. Thomas Johnson

Michael L. Eskew
Chairman and CEO
United Parcel Service

Barbara Faga
Chair of the Board
EDAW

Paul Francis
Managing Partner
The Cedar Street Group

A. D. Frazier Jr.
Of Counsel
Balch & Bingham 

Jeffrey L. Freemyer

S. Marce Fuller

J. Rex Fuqua
President and CEO
Fuqua Capital Corporation

Paul R. Garcia
Chairman, President and CEO
Global Payments

Mary Ellen Garrett
First VP— Investments
The Garrett Group/

Merrill Lynch

Lawrence L. Gellerstedt III
President, Office/Multi-Family
Cousins Properties

W. Reeder Glass
Partner
Holland & Knight

John T. Glover

Eugene J. Godbold Jr.
Georgia President
Bank of America

Jonathan Golden
Livingston Foundation

José Ignacio González
Executive Director
Hemisphere Inc.

Margo Grbinich Hunt

E. Alex Gregory
President and CEO
YKK Corporation of America

Philip M. Greifeld
Chief Executive Officer
Huddle House

Bruce Gunter
President
Progressive Redevelopment

Jack Guynn
President
Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta

Richard L. Hammonds M.D.
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Ex-Officio Members
The Honorable Sonny Perdue
Governor
State of Georgia

The Honorable Shirley Franklin
Mayor
City of Atlanta

James W. Wagner, Ph.D.
President
Emory University

Mark A. van Weegen
Vice President
A. T. Kearney

Erik Vonk
Chair and CEO
Gevity HR

Jack H. Ward
President
Hodges Ward Elliott

John F. Ward
Chairman and CEO
Russell Corporation

William L. Warren
Partner
Sutherland Asbill & Brennan

John Watts
President and CEO, 

National Accounts
Wellpoint

Livia Whisenhunt-Johnson
Founder and Chief Executive

Officer
PS Energy Group

Don L. Williams
President and CEO
Princeton Healthcare

Sam Williams
President
Metropolitan Atlanta 

Chamber of Commerce

Debora J. Wilson
President
The Weather Channel

Leonard W. Wood
Director
Wood Partners

Scott Woodall
Woodall & Broome

Albert C. “Woody” 
Woodroof III

Chairman/President
Spectrum Stores

Gina Wright
Founder and Chair
The Leader Publishing Group

Yasuo Yoshioka

James E. Young
President and CEO
Citizens Trust Bank

William M. Sharp Sr.
Partner
Sharp and Harrison

William Sharp
Sharp Advertising

Sharon N. Shirley
Chief Executive Officer
Newell Recycling of Atlanta

Jane E. Shivers
Shivers Consulting

Arnold P. Silverman
President
Silverman Construction Services

Calder P. Sinclair Esq.
President
Sinclair, Townes & Company

Joe Sisson
Sisson Company

Scott S. Smith
Vice President
Coalition America

Sean S. Smith
Chairman and CEO
Coalition America

W. Thomas Smith Jr.

Gail A. Solomon
Executive Services Manager
Georgia Dome

William R. Spalding
Partner
King & Spalding

Shelton g. Stanfill
President and CEO
Robert W. Woodruff Arts Center

The Honorable Cathey W.
Steinberg

Connie W. Stewart

Rebekah Stewart
Brigadoon Lodge

Wally Stover
CEO
Wally Stover Homes

Carolyn A. Stradley
Founder and CEO
C & S Paving

Constance Swank

Marcia Taylor
President and CEO
Bennett International Group

Timothy C. Tuff
Chairman, President and CEO
John H. Harland Co.

David M. Ratcliffe
Chairman, President and CEO
Southern Company

Robert J. Ratliff
Chairman
AGCO Corporation

Robert L. Rearden Jr.
Kestrel Communications

James H. Reese

Patricia B. Reid
Ford Motor Company

Roy Richards Jr.
Chairman
Southwire Company

Spurgeon Richardson
President and CEO
Atlanta Convention and 

Visitors Bureau

Clarence H. Ridley
Chairman
Haverty Furniture Companies

Joseph A. Riedel Jr.

James O. Robbins
President and CEO
Cox Communications

Karen A. Robinson
President and CEO
Prime Point Media

DeWitt R. Rogers
Partner
Troutman Sanders

Paula Rosput Reynolds
Chairman, President and CEO
AGL Resources

Herman J. Russell
Chairman
H. J. Russell & Company

Louise Sams
President, TBS International
Turner Broadcasting System

George W. Sands
Partner
KPMG

William B. Schwartz III
Rockefeller & Co.

R. K. Sehgal

Jerry W. Seneker
Executive Vice President
Old Fashion Foods

Charles M. Shaffer Jr.
President and CEO
Marcus Institute
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Agha Hasan Abedi 

Senator Hajime Akiyama

Ivan Allen III 

Dwayne O. Andreas 

Arthur and Diana Blank 

Richard C. Blum 

W. Michael Blumenthal 

Edgar M. Bronfman 

James C. and Connie Calaway 

Mr. and Mrs. Michael C. Carlos 

Anne Cox Chambers 

Warren Christopher 

Dominique de Menil 

Charles W. Duncan Jr. 

His Majesty King Fahd of 
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J.B. Fuqua 

Roberto C. Goizueta 

Walter and Elise Haas 

Armand Hammer 

Sidney Harman and Jane Frank Harman, Esq. 

Governor and Mrs. W. Averell Harriman 

Jess Hay 

Christopher B. and Patricia K. Hemmeter 

Philip M. and Ethel Klutznick 

Mathilde and Arthur Krim 

George P. Livanos 

Fraydun Manocherian 

G. William Miller 

Guy W. Millner 

George P. and Cynthia Mitchell 

Set Charles Momjian 

David Packard 

George and Thelma Paraskevaides 

Allen E. Paulson 

Lamar and Frances Plunkett 

John and Betty Pope 

James D. Robinson, III 

Hasib J. Sabbagh 

Deen Day Sanders

Ryoichi Sasakawa 

Walter H. and Phyllis J. Shorenstein 

Richard R. Swann 

R.E. “Ted” Turner 

Robert and Ann Utley 

Edie and Lew Wasserman 

Thomas J. Watson Jr. 

Milton A. Wolf 

Robert W. Woodruff 

Tadao Yoshida 

Erwin E. Zaban 

The Carter Center and The Jimmy Carter Library were built in large measure
thanks to the early leadership and financial support of The Carter Center Founders.
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The Carter Center, Inc.
Financial Statements

August 31, 2005 and 2004

(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Trustees
The Carter Center, Inc:

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of The Carter Center, Inc. (CCI) 
as of August 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash

flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of CCI’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of CCI’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of The Carter Center, Inc. as of August 31, 2005 and 2004, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

December 23, 2005
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Statements of Financial Position
August 31, 2005 and 2004

2005 2004

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents, including cash restricted by donors 

of $10,872,962 and $8,849,142 in 2005 and 2004, respectively $ 26,862,833 36,946,251
Accounts receivable:

Due from Federal government 1,621,799 1,666,945
Other 296,347 169,690

Total accounts receivable 1,918,146 1,836,635
Contributions receivable, net (note 3) 41,372,627 13,654,624
Inventory (note 4) 38,050,051 31,274,660
Investments (note 5) 257,077,482 194,883,947
Property, plant, and equipment, net (note 6) 10,158,068 10,701,142
Artwork 2,020,415 1,834,815
Other assets 36,892 36,892

Total assets $377,496,514 291,168,966

Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (note 7) $ 6,092,792 4,671,702
Net assets (note 10):

Unrestricted 171,235,243 132,531,360
Temporarily restricted 80,745,213 39,249,907
Permanently restricted 119,423,266 114,715,997

Total net assets 371,403,722 286,497,264
Commitments and contingencies (note 12)

Total liabilities and net assets $377,496,514 291,168,966

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statement of Activities
Year Ended August 31, 2005 (With Comparative Totals for 2004)

Temporarily Permanently Totals
Unrestricted restricted restricted 2005 2004

Revenue and support
Contributions and grants:

Operating $ 20,725,067 34,674 — 20,759,741 20,307,171
Programs:

Health 6,300,479 48,556,681 — 54,857,160 18,725,211
Peace 3,773,392 813,168 — 4,586,560 5,520,296
Cross-program — 884,183 — 884,183 362,973

In-kind goods (note 9):
Health — 66,494,397 — 66,494,397 96,842,020
Peace — — — — 50,000
Operating 203,000 — — 203,000 198,716

Endowment — — 4,707,269 4,707,269 8,931,147
Total contributions and grants 31,001,938 116,783,103 4,707,269 152,492,310 150,937,534

Endowment fund earnings 13,057,670 81,726 — 13,139,396 11,804,412
Appreciation of restricted 

endowment investments, net 15,878,199 — — 15,878,199 6,355,092
Facilities use income 365,385 — — 365,385 409,172
Interest and investment income 730,273 116,392 — 846,665 401,230
Net assets released from restrictions:

Health 72,749,630 (72,749,630) — — —
Peace 2,092,037 (2,092,037) — — —
Cross-program 532,820 (532,820) — — —
Operating 111,428 (111,428) — — —

Total revenue and support 136,519,380 41,495,306 4,707,269 182,721,955 169,907,440

Expenses
Program:

Health 76,909,595 — — 76,909,595 101,652,815
Peace 7,189,777 — — 7,189,777 6,779,312
Cross-program 449,028 — — 449,028 387,217

Fund-raising 7,915,560 — — 7,915,560 7,419,977
General and administrative 5,351,537 — — 5,351,537 5,159,472

Total expenses 97,815,497 — — 97,815,497 121,398,793
Change in net assets 38,703,883 41,495,306 4,707,269 84,906,458 48,508,647

Net assets at beginning of year 132,531,360 39,249,907 114,715,997 286,497,264 237,988,617
Net assets at end of year $171,235,243 80,745,213 119,423,266 371,403,722 286,497,264

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statement of Activities
Year Ended August 31, 2004

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted restricted restricted Total

Revenue and support
Contributions and grants:

Operating $  20,229,556 77,615 — 20,307,171
Programs:

Health 5,516,558 13,208,653 — 18,725,211
Peace 3,802,635 1,717,661 — 5,520,296
Cross-program — 362,973 — 362,973

In-kind goods (note 9):
Health — 96,842,020 — 96,842,020
Peace — 50,000 — 50,000
Operating 198,716 — — 198,716

Endowment — — 8,931,147 8,931,147
Total contributions and grants 29,747,465 112,258,922 8,931,147 150,937,534

Endowment fund earnings 11,748,454 55,958 — 11,804,412
Appreciation (depreciation) of 

endowment investments, net 6,355,092 — — 6,355,092
Facilities use income 409,172 — — 409,172
Interest and investment income 362,266 38,964 — 401,230
Net assets released from restrictions:

Health 97,843,178 (97,843,178) — —
Peace 2,872,981 (2,872,981) — —
Cross-program 221,585 (221,585) — —
Operating 323,656 (323,656) — —

Total revenue and support 149,883,849 11,092,444 8,931,147 169,907,440

Expenses
Program:

Health 101,652,815 — — 101,652,815
Peace 6,779,312 — — 6,779,312
Cross-program 387,217 — — 387,217

Fund-raising 7,419,977 — — 7,419,977
General and administrative 5,159,472 — — 5,159,472

Total expenses 121,398,793 — — 121,398,793
Change in net assets 28,485,056 11,092,444 8,931,147 48,508,647

Net assets at beginning of year 104,046,304 28,157,463 105,784,850 237,988,617
Net assets at end of year $132,531,360 39,249,907 114,715,997 286,497,264

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended August 31, 2005 and 2004

2005 2004

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 84,906,458 48,508,647
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 918,791 1,053,626
Appreciation in fair value of endowment investments (15,878,199) (6,355,092)
Donated artwork (185,600) (13,165)
Permanently restricted contributions (4,707,269) (8,931,147)
Increase in inventory balances due to noncash contributions

in excess of noncash distributions (6,775,391) (14,762,773)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (81,511) (548,456)
Contributions receivable, net of permanently restricted (31,250,618) 195,786
Other assets — —
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,421,090 1,760,837

Net cash provided by operating activities 28,367,751 20,908,263

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment, net of related payables (375,717) (480,398)
Purchase of investments (46,315,336) (38,226,588)
Disposals of artwork — 72,100

Net cash used in investing activities (46,691,053) (38,634,886)

Cash flows from financing activities
Permanently restricted contributions 4,707,269 8,931,147
Decrease in permanently restricted contributions receivable 3,532,615 4,059,592

Net cash provided by financing activities 8,239,884 12,990,739
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (10,083,418) (4,735,884)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 36,946,251 41,682,135
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 26,862,833 36,946,251

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended August 31, 2005 (With Comparative Totals for 2004)

Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended August 31, 2004

Program expenses Supporting expenses

Cross- General and Total expenses
Health Peace program Fundraising administrative 2005 2004

Salaries $ 5,717,455 2,539,840 184,661 1,716,380 2,809,519 12,967,855 11,834,552
Consulting 972,807 1,022,518 49,484 295,803 294,120 2,634,732 2,595,024
Communications 533,473 302,048 6,555 2,392,102 199,679 3,433,857 3,531,341
Services 161,205 205,529 102,336 1,875,235 143,719 2,488,024 2,334,790
Office and equipment 619,447 284,352 5,838 57,436 120,594 1,087,667 1,059,464
Vehicles 757,400 30,875 53 692 1,637 790,657 948,661
Travel/meetings 1,759,763 2,274,123 67,302 975,961 47,880 5,125,029 4,514,749
Interventions 65,015,240 — — — — 65,015,240 89,679,804
Other 195,008 46,500 2,253 204,860 795,371 1,243,992 1,123,434
Grants 867,727 113,770 — — — 981,497 1,670,420

76,599,525 6,819,555 418,482 7,518,469 4,412,519 95,768,550 119,292,239
Common area and depreciation 310,070 370,222 30,546 397,091 939,018 2,046,947 2,106,554

Total expenses $ 76,909,595 7,189,777 449,028 7,915,560 5,351,537 97,815,497 121,398,793

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Program expenses Supporting expenses

Cross- General and Total
Health Peace program Fundraising administrative expenses

Salaries $ 5,104,326 2,405,235 181,091 1,438,057 2,705,843 11,834,552
Consulting 887,902 1,098,412 48,332 333,066 227,312 2,595,024
Communications 576,611 297,960 5,497 2,453,764 197,509 3,531,341
Services 177,459 182,819 9,270 1,778,393 186,849 2,334,790
Office and equipment 534,879 329,690 8,221 68,230 118,444 1,059,464
Vehicles 934,508 12,015 48 621 1,469 948,661
Travel/meetings 1,720,402 1,888,003 100,936 735,435 69,973 4,514,749
Interventions 89,679,804 — — — — 89,679,804
Other 196,654 34,926 2,387 203,756 685,711 1,123,434
Grants 1,521,171 149,249 — — — 1,670,420

101,333,716 6,398,309 355,782 7,011,322 4,193,110 119,292,239
Common area and depreciation 319,099 381,003 31,435 408,655 966,362 2,106,554

Total expenses $101,652,815 6,779,312 387,217 7,419,977 5,159,472 121,398,793

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Supporting expenses

General and Total expenses
Fundraising administrative 2005 2004

1,716,380 2,809,519 12,967,855 11,834,552
295,803 294,120 2,634,732 2,595,024

2,392,102 199,679 3,433,857 3,531,341
1,875,235 143,719 2,488,024 2,334,790

57,436 120,594 1,087,667 1,059,464
692 1,637 790,657 948,661

975,961 47,880 5,125,029 4,514,749
— — 65,015,240 89,679,804

204,860 795,371 1,243,992 1,123,434
— — 981,497 1,670,420

7,518,469 4,412,519 95,768,550 119,292,239
397,091 939,018 2,046,947 2,106,554

7,915,560 5,351,537 97,815,497 121,398,793

Supporting expenses

General and Total
Fundraising administrative expenses

1,438,057 2,705,843 11,834,552
333,066 227,312 2,595,024

2,453,764 197,509 3,531,341
1,778,393 186,849 2,334,790

68,230 118,444 1,059,464
621 1,469 948,661

735,435 69,973 4,514,749
— — 89,679,804

203,756 685,711 1,123,434
— — 1,670,420

7,011,322 4,193,110 119,292,239
408,655 966,362 2,106,554

7,419,977 5,159,472 121,398,793
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Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2005 and 2004

1. Organization and Operation
Carter Presidential Library, Inc. (CPL) was organized on October 26, 1981 under the laws of Georgia as a 
not-for-profit corporation to be operated exclusively for charitable and educational purposes. During 1986, 
CPL changed its name to Carter Presidential Center, Inc. (CPC). Effective January 1988, CPC changed its
name to The Carter Center, Inc. (CCI).

CCI operates programmatically under two main action areas: Peace and Health. In addition, CCI has
received broad-based support which is beneficial to all programs and is categorized as “cross-program.”

Initiatives in Peace include preventing and resolving conflict, protecting basic human rights, promoting 
sustainable development, and monitoring elections in emerging democracies. The Health area strives to
improve health in the United States and around the world. Initiatives include disease eradication and control
and mental health reform. CCI operates field offices in various African and Latin American countries as 
needed to fulfill its programmatic objectives.

The board of trustees of CCI consists of 22 members, which include President and Mrs. Carter, the president
of Emory University, 9 members appointed by Emory University’s board of trustees, and 10 members appointed
by President Carter and those trustees not affiliated with Emory University’s board of trustees (Carter Center
class of CCI trustees). Additionally, Emory University’s board of trustees has the authority to approve amend-
ments to CCI’s articles of incorporation and bylaws and to approve the annual and capital budgets of CCI. CCI
is affiliated with Carter Center of Emory University (CCEU). CCEU is a department of Emory University
which was established to assist with the operations of CCI’s programs. The financial data for CCEU is not
included in these financial statements.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Matters

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of CCI have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation
Net assets and revenue, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of CCI and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets—Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets—Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will 
be met either by actions of CCI and/or the passage of time.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets—Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that must be 
maintained permanently by CCI. Generally, the donors of these assets permit CCI to use all or part 
of the income earned on related investments for general or specific purposes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
CCI’s cash equivalents represent liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less. 
Restricted cash has been designated by the donor to be spent on specific programmatic activities.
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Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2005 and 2004

Contributions
Contributions received, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenue when a donor’s
commitment is received.

Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at net 
realizable value. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded 
at the present value of their estimated future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using
risk-free interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received. Conditional promises to give
are not included as support until the conditions are substantially met.

Contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor.
Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for specific purposes are
reported as temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support that increases those net asset classes.

Contributed property and equipment is recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If donors stipulate 
how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded as restricted support. In the absence of such
stipulations, contributions of property and equipment are recorded as unrestricted support.

Inventory
Inventory consists of Mectizan tablets, which are used to treat onchocerciasis (river blindness), and Zithromax
tablets and syrup, which are used for trachoma control. Inventory is received as an in-kind donation and is 
valued using the first-in, first-out method at fair value at the time of the gift.

Investments
Investments in the pooled endowment fund are stated at fair value as determined by the custodian, Emory
University. All other investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices. Net realized and 
unrealized gains or losses on investments are reflected in the statements of activities.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost at date of acquisition, or fair value at date of donation in the 
case of gifts.

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets on a straight-line basis.

Artwork
CCI has capitalized works of art and collectibles received since its inception at the estimated fair market value
at the date of acquisition. Works of art whose service potential diminishes very slowly over time are not subject
to depreciation.

Federal and Other Government Grants
Federal and other government grant revenue is recognized to the extent that the CCI incurs actual expenditures
under program agreements with Federal or other government agencies. The revenue is recorded as unrestricted
support. Amounts recorded as accounts receivable due from the Federal government are for program grant
expenses incurred in advance of the receipt of funds. Funds received in advance of program grant expenses are
recorded as grant commitments, which are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the statement
of financial position.
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Donated Goods and Services
Donated materials and equipment, primarily medical supplies, are reflected as contributions at their estimated
fair values. Donated services are reflected as contributions if the following criteria are met: (1) the services
received or to be received create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (2) the services require specialized skills, are
provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would be purchased if not provided by donation. Donated
services are recognized as the services are performed.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities approximates fair value because of the relative terms and short maturity of these financial instruments.
The carrying value of investments in the pooled endowment fund is fair value as determined by Emory
University. The carrying value of all other investments is fair value based on quoted market prices. The 
carrying value of contributions receivable is based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows.

Tax Status
CCI has received a determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service dated December 16, 1991 indicating
that it is recognized as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) whereby only unrelated business income,
as defined by Section 512(a) of the Code, is subject to Federal income tax. Accordingly, no provision for
income taxes has been made in the financial statements.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make a number of estimates and assumptions
relating to the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period.
Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the useful lives of property, plant, and
equipment, carrying values of contributions receivable and inventory, fair values of contributed items, and 
obligations under split-interest agreements and various employment arrangements. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

3. Contributions Receivable
Contributions receivable consists of the following at August 31, 2005 and 2004:

2005 2004

Temporarily restricted:
Health $30,942,311 75,000
Cross-program 463,761 —
Time-restricted 847,489 927,943

Permanently restricted:
Endowment 9,119,066 12,651,681

Total $41,372,627 13,654,624

Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2005 and 2004
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The anticipated receipts of these receivables are as follows at August 31, 2005 and 2004:

2005 2004
Less than one year $14,079,947 4,343,937
One to five years 24,572,680 5,484,411
More than five years 8,038,483 8,064,847
Less unamortized discount (5,318,483) (4,238,571)

$41,372,627 13,654,624

Contributions to be received after one year are discounted at an appropriate discount rate commensurate with
the risks involved. Amortization of discounts is recorded as additional contribution revenue in accordance with
donor-imposed restrictions on the contributions. Estimated future cash flows to be received after one year were
discounted at rates ranging from 1.3% to 6%, based on the U.S. Treasury bill rate in effect in the fiscal year in
which the pledge was made. In the opinion of CCI’s management, all contributions receivable recorded at
August 31, 2005 and 2004 are deemed fully collectible.

4. Inventory
Inventory at August 31, 2005 and 2004 is comprised of:

2005 2004

Medication:
Mectizan $27,082,155 26,288,550
Zithromax 9,974,586 3,858,538

Medical Kits 993,310 1,127,572
Total $38,050,051 31,274,660

5. Investments
CCI invests its endowment assets in a pooled investment fund managed by Emory University. As of August 
31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, the pooled investment fund was invested in a composite of cash equivalents
(4% and 3%), bonds (14% and 11%), equity holdings (42% and 53%), marketable alternatives (18% and 
15%), private market investments (12% and 10%), marketable real estate (5% and 4%), and natural resources
(5% and 4%).

CCI’s other investments include assets invested for its charitable gift annuities. These investments are 
presented in the accompanying statements of financial position at their fair values.

2005 2004

Fair value Cost Fair value Cost

Pooled investment fund $253,649,409 222,992,694 192,081,513 177,302,997
Cash and cash equivalents 59,443 59,443 89,095 89,095
Fixed income securities 1,411,455 1,400,163 1,155,579 1,132,616
Equity securities 1,957,175 1,725,901 1,557,760 1,586,810

Total $257,077,482 226,178,201 194,883,947 180,111,518

Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2005 and 2004
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6. Property, Plant, and Equipment
The components of property, plant, and equipment are as follows at August 31, 2005 and 2004:

Estimated
useful

2005 2004 lives

Land $ 636,732 636,732 N/A
Buildings 16,293,041 16,293,041 30 years
Grounds and land improvements 696,751 940,595 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 602,800 1,042,276 10 years
Office equipment 408,884 502,258 5 years
Computer equipment 500,244 633,711 3 years
Building improvements 1,491,240 1,425,452 15 years

20,629,692 21,474,065
Less accumulated depreciation (10,471,624) (10,772,923)

$10,158,068 10,701,142

Depreciation expense totaled $918,791 and $1,053,626 during 2005 and 2004, respectively.

7. Split-Interest Agreements
CCI is beneficiary under several split-interest agreements, primarily charitable gift annuities. Under these 
agreements, CCI received assets from a donor in exchange for promising to pay the donor (or other designee) 
a fixed amount for a specified period of time, normally until the death of the donor. Assets related to charitable
gift annuities are recorded at their fair values when received and an annuity payment liability is recognized at
the present value of future cash flows expected to be paid to the donor or other designee. At the time of the
gift, CCI recognizes contribution revenue in an amount equal to the difference between these two amounts.
The gross fair value of the related assets is included in investments in the statement of financial position, with
an offsetting liability included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities for the present value of benefits due to
the donor (or other designee). Discount rates and actuarial assumptions used to determine the liability are those
contained in mortality tables published by the Internal Revenue Service, and are typically based on factors such
as applicable Federal interest rates and donor life expectancies. The changes in the value of these agreements
are included in operating contributions and grants in the statement of activities.

Certain states have restrictions on investment allocations. CCI has complied with any known restrictions in
states in which it has received charitable gifts subject to such restrictions.

The fair value of the assets related to the split-interest agreements is $3,428,073 and $2,802,433 at August
31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The annuity liability related to these agreements is $2,119,333 and $1,833,716
at August 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The net contribution revenue reported for split-interest agreements
was $345,924 and $552,981 during the years ended August 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2005 and 2004



69

8. Leases
CCI is not lessee under any material short-term or long-term lease commitments.

CCI leases space to various entities under noncancelable leases with various terms. CCI leases to CCEU
approximately 20% of CCI’s space under a lease for a term of 99 years with a rental payment of $1 per year. A
business agreement with CCI’s caterer has no annual rent; rather, CCI receives 5% to 10% of the tenant’s gross
revenue, as defined. Rental income from these leases is included in facilities use income in the accompanying
statements of activities.

9. Donated Goods and Services
The components of donated goods and services for the years ended August 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

2005 2004

Health:
Medication $66,481,145 95,639,448
Medical kits — 1,127,572
Other 13,252 75,000

Peace:
Computer equipment — 50,000

Operating:
Transportation 203,000 180,000
Other — 18,716

Total $66,697,397 97,090,736

The majority of the donations of medication were received from two pharmaceutical companies during the years
ended August 31, 2005 and 2004.

10. Net Assets

Unrestricted
As of August 31, 2005 and 2004, unrestricted net assets are as follows:

2005 2004
Unrealized gain on restricted endowment investments $ 30,657,046 14,778,847
Designated by the board of trustees for maintenance of

property and equipment 500,000 500,000
Designated by management for:

Endowment investments 114,816,855 79,061,473
Program funds 5,020,024 5,220,499
Undesignated 20,241,318 32,970,541

Total $171,235,243 132,531,360

Unrealized gains on endowment investments are classified as increases in unrestricted net assets. Unrestricted
net assets also include funds designated by management as additions for endowment investments and program
funding. These amounts are classified as unrestricted net assets due to the lack of explicit donor stipulations 
that temporarily or permanently restrict their use.

Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2005 and 2004
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Temporarily Restricted
As of August 31, 2005 and 2004, temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes:

2005 2004
Health $77,606,212 35,188,372
Peace 1,052,531 2,355,830
Cross-program 1,235,281 777,762
Time-restricted 851,189 927,943

Total $80,745,213 39,249,907

Permanently Restricted
In 1989, CCI began its campaign to raise an endowment fund. An endowment fund represents a fund subject 
to restrictions of gift instruments requiring that the principal of the fund be invested in perpetuity and only the
income be used for operations. Permanently restricted net assets are invested in perpetuity, and the income from
these assets is expendable to support activities of CCI.

11. Related-Party Transactions
Emory University provides certain administrative functions to CCI, including, but not limited to, payroll
administration, investment management, information technology, and legal services. CCI paid Emory
University $429,420 and $426,456 during the years ended August 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, for the 
provision of these services.

Emory University made unrestricted contributions to CCI of $748,717 and $748,717, respectively, during the
years ended August 31, 2005 and 2004. In addition, CCEU made unrestricted contributions to CCI, related to
endowment earnings at CCEU, of $228,682 and $472,742 during the years ended August 31, 2005 and 2004.

CCI is currently affiliated with two separately incorporated organizations, Carter Center U.K. and Carter
Center U.K. Foundation. Payments made by CCI in support of its affiliates are included in Peace Program
expense in the accompanying financial statements. Revenue provided by these affiliates was $38,746 and $0 
for fiscal years 2005 and 2004, respectively, and is included in program grants in the accompanying statements
of activities. Net receivables due from these affiliates were $108,693 and $0 as of August 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, and are included in other accounts receivable in the accompanying statements of financial position.

12. Commitments and Contingencies
Federally funded programs are routinely subject to special audits that could result in claims against the resources
of CCI. Management does not believe that there will be any claims arising from such audits that could have a
material adverse effect on the financial position of CCI.

Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2005 and 2004
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